James Sidlofsky
T 416.367.6277
F 416.361.2751
jsidlofsky@blg.com

July 17, 2013

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP
Scotia Plaza, 40 King Street W
Toronto, ON, Canada M5H 3Y4

T 416.367.6000
F 416.367.6749
blg.com

Delivered by RESS and Courier

Ms. Kirsten Walli

Board Secretary

Ontario Energy Board

2300 Y onge Street, 27" Floor
Toronto, Ontario M4P 1E4

Dear Ms. Wdlli:

Re: EB-2012-0109 — Brantford Power Inc.
Application to the Ontario Energy Board for Electricity Distribution

Rates and Char ges effective November 1, 2013

BLG

Borden Ladner Gervais

We are counsdl to Brantford Power Inc. (“BPI”) with respect to the above-captioned matter.
Please find accompanying this letter BPI's Application for Electricity Distribution Rates and
Charges effective November 1, 2013. The Application, together with Excel versions of the
models that BPI is required to filein “live’ form, is being filed electronically. Two hard copies
of the Application will be delivered to the Board.

A copy of BPI’s certification with respect to the accuracy of the Application evidence, signed by
Heather Wyatt, BPI’'s Director of Regulatory Affairs and Board Secretary, accompanies this

|etter.

We ask that copies of all correspondence and orders pertaining to this proceeding be delivered to
the following individuals:

Heather Wyatt

Director, Regulatory Affairs
Brantford Power Inc.

84 Market Street

Brantford, ON

N3T 5N8

Mailing Address:
P.O. Box 308
Brantford, ON N3T 5N8

Tel:  1-519-751-3522, Ext. 3269
Fax: 1-519-753-6130
E-mail: hwyatt@brantford.ca

Lawyers | Patent & Trade-mark Agents



BLG

Borden Ladner Gervais

James C. Sidlofsky

Partner

Borden Ladner GervaisLLP
Scotia Plaza, 40 King Street West
Toronto, ON M5H 3Y4

Tel: 416-367-6277
Fax: 416-361-2751
E-mail: jsidlofsky@blg.com

Should you have any questions or require further information, please do not hesitate to contact
me.

Yours very truly,
BORDEN LADNER GERVAISLLP

Original signed by James C. Sdlofsky

James C. Sidlofsky
JCS

cC. Paul Kwasnik, Brantford Power Inc.
Heather Wyatt, Brantford Power Inc.

TORO1: 5284054 v3
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: " Your d]ivry company

Brantford Power Inc.
Application for Approval of Electricity Distribution Rates —~ EB-2012-0109
Certification — Accuracy of Application Evidence

I have teviewed the suppotting evidence contained in the above-noted application for
approval of electticity distribution rates and certify that to the best of my knowledge, it is

accurate,

Dated July 17, 2013
Heather Wyatt
Ditector of Regulatory Affairs, Board Secretary

Telephone
519.751-3522
Fax
519-753-6130

Brantford Power Inc.
84 Market Street, PO, Box 308, Brantford, Ontarioc N3T SN8



Brantford Power Inc.
EB-2012-0109
Exhibit 1

Tabl

Schedule 1

Page1 of 11

Filed: July 17,2013

BRANTFORD POWER INC.

APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION RATES
EFFECTIVE NOVEMBER 1, 2013 INDEX

Exhibit Tab Schedule Appendix Contents

1 - Administrative
Documents

1 Administration
Index

N

Application

A Schedul e of Proposed Rates and Charges
Contact Information
List of Specific Approvas Requested
Proposed Issues List
Procedural Orders/Motions/Notices
Accounting Orders Requested

o N o 0o b~ W

Compliance with Uniform System of
Accounts

9 Distribution Service Territory and
Distribution System

B Map of Distribution Service Territory
C Map of Distribution System
10 List of Neighboring Utilities
11 Explanation of Host and Embedded
Utilities
12 Utility Organization Structure
13 Corporate Entities Relationships Chart
14 Planned Changesin Structure

15 Status of Board Directives from Previous
Board Decisions



Exhibit

1-Administrative
Documents-Cont.

Tab

Schedule Appendix Contents

Brantford Power Inc.
EB-2012-0109
Exhibit 1

Tabl

Schedule 1

Page2 of 11

Filed: July 17,2013

16
17

D OB~ WDN B

Conditions of Service
Preliminary List of Witnesses

Overview

Summary of the Application
Budget Overview

Changes in Methodol ogy
Calculation of Revenue Deficiency
Causes of Revenue Deficiency

Revenue Requirement Work Form
(RRWF)

Finance
Financial Statements—
2009, 2010 and 2011

Copy of Audited Financia Statements
for 2009, 2010 and 2011

Reconciliation between Financia
Statements and Regulatory Accounting

Pro Forma Financia Statements —
2012 and 2013

2012 Pro Forma Statements

2013 Pro Forma Statements

Reconciliation Between Pro Forma
Statements and Revenue Deficiency
Statements

2011 Annual Statements — Parent
Company

Information on Affiliates

Brantford Energy Corporation Annual
Report 2011



Brantford Power Inc.
EB-2012-0109

Exhibit 1
Tab1l
Schedule 1
Page 3 of 11
Filed: July 17, 2013
Exhibit Tab Schedule Appendix Contents
4 1 Materiality Thresholds

Tab  Schedule Appendix Contents
Exhibit
2 —Rate Base
1 Overview
Overview

Variance Anaysis of Rate Base

2 Gross Assets — Property, Plant and
Equipment Accumulated Amortization

Continuity Statements

Gross Assets Table

Variance Anaysis on Gross Assets
Accumulated Amortization Table

Variance Anaysis on Accumulated
Amortization

a b~ W N

3 Capital Budget
Introduction
Capital Projects By Year and USoA
Capitalization Policy
A Accounting Policies - Capitalization
Changesto Capitalization Policy
Asset Management Program
B-1 UEM Asset Management Executive Summary
B-2 UEM Asset Management Report
C 5 Year Capital Forecast
6 Service Quality and Reliability Performance
4 Allowance for Working Capital
1 Overview and Calculation by Account



Exhibit

Tab Schedule

Appendix

D

Contents

Cost of Power Calculation

Brantford Power Inc.
EB-2012-0109
Exhibit 1

Tabl

Schedule 1

Page4 of 11

Filed: July 17,2013

Green Energy Plan Introduction

Green Energy Plan
OPA Letter of Content



Brantford Power Inc.
EB-2012-0109
Exhibit 1

Tabl

Schedule 1

Page5 of 11

Filed: July 17,2013

Exhibit Tab Schedule Appendix Contents

3 —Operating Revenue

1

Overview
Overview of Operating Revenue

Weather Normalized Load and Customer/
Connection Forecast

Monthly Data Used for Regression Analysis
Operating Revenue Variance Analysis.
Transformer Allowance

Variance Analysis on Other Distribution
Revenue

Specific Service Charges



Exhibit Tab
4 — Operating Costs
1

Schedule  Appendix

1
1
5 A
6

B
7

C
8
1

D
2

E
3

F

G

Brantford Power Inc.
EB-2012-0109
Exhibit 1

Tabl

Schedule 1

Page 6 of 11

Filed: July 17,2013

Contents

Overview

Manager’s Summary of Operating Costs
OM&A Costs

Departmental and Corporate OM& A
Activities

OM&A Detailed Costs Tables

Variance Analysison OM&A Costs

Employee Compensation, Incentive Plan
Expenses, Pension Expense and Post-
Retirement Benefits

Actuarial Evauation Draft Post-Retirement
Benefits Reports

Charges to Affiliates for Services Provided
Affiliate Services Agreement

Purchase of Products and Services from Non-
Affiliates

BPI Purchasing Policy

Depreciation, Amortization and Depletion
Income Tax, Large Corporation Tax

Taxes, Paymentsin Lieu of Taxes (PILS) and
Property Taxes

PILs Model

Tax Calculation

2011 Federal & Ontario Tax Return
Capital Cost Allowance (CCA)
CDM

2011 OPA Final Evaluation Report
LRAM Third Party Report



Exhibit Tab Schedule Appendix

5-Cost of Capital and
Rate of Return

Contents

Overview

Brantford Power Inc.
EB-2012-0109
Exhibit 1

Tabl

Schedule 1

Page 7 of 11

Filed: July 17,2013

Capita Structure Deemed & Actual
Copy of Promissory Note with City of

Brantford



Brantford Power Inc.
EB-2012-0109
Exhibit 1

Tabl

Schedule 1

Page 8 of 11

Filed: July 17,2013

Exhibit Tab Schedule Appendix Contents

6 — Calculation of
Revenue Deficiency or
Surplus

1 1 Revenue Deficiency - Overview
Cost Driversfor Revenue Deficiency



Brantford Power Inc.
EB-2012-0109
Exhibit 1

Tabl

Schedule 1

Page9 of 11

Filed: July 17,2013

Exhibit Tab Schedule Appendix Contents
7—Cost 1 1 Cost Allocation Overview
Allocation
2 Summary of Results and Proposed Changes

A 2013 Updated Cost Allocation Study



Exhibit

8 —Rate
Design

Tab Schedule Appendix

1

0 N o o0~ WN B

Brantford Power Inc.
EB-2012-0109
Exhibit 1

Tabl

Schedule 1

Page 10 of 11

Filed: July 17,2013

Contents

Rate Design Overview

Rate Mitigation

Existing Rate Classes

Existing Rate Schedule

Proposed Rate Classes

Proposed Rates and Charges
Reconciliation of Rate Class Revenue

Rate and Bill Impacts
Bill Impacts
RTSR Work Form



Exhibit Tab Schedule
9 —Deferral and
Variance Accounts
1 1
2
2 1
2
3
4
5
3 1
4 1
5 1

Brantford Power Inc.
EB-2012-0109
Exhibit 1

Tabl

Schedule 1

Page 11 of 11

Filed: July 17,2013

Appendix Contents

Overview

Previous Deferra and Variance A ccount
Disposition

Status of Deferral and Variance Accounts

Energy Sales and Cost of Power

Deferral and Variance Account Balances

Accounts Requested for Disposition
Method of Disposition

Accounting Order Requested
Completed DVA Continuity Schedule
Smart Meters Proposal

Fairness Commissioner Attestation
Smart Meter Model

Stranded Meters Proposal

Basic Green Energy Plan - Funding Adder



Brantford Power Inc.
EB-2012-0109
Exhibit 1

Tabl

Schedule 2

Pagelof 4

Filed: July 17,2013

IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, being
Schedule B to the Energy Competition Act, 1998, S.0O. 1998, c.15,
as amended;

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by Brantford Power
Inc. to the Ontario Energy Board for an Order or Orders approving
or fixing just and reasonable rates and other service charges for the
distribution of electricity as of November 1, 2013.

Title of Proceeding: An Application by Brantford Power Inc. for an Order or Orders
approving or fixing just and reasonabl e distribution rates and other
charges, effective November 1, 2013

Applicant’s Name: BRANTFORD POWER INC.
Applicant’s Addressfor Service: 84 Market St.

P.O. Box 308

Brantford, ON

N3T 5N8

Attention: Heather Wyaitt, Director, Regulatory Affairs,
Board Secretary

Tel: (519) 751-3522 Ext. 3269
Fax: (519) 753-6130
Email: hwyatt@brantford.ca

Applicants Counsdl: Borden Ladner GervaisLLP
Suite 4100
40 King Street West
Toronto, ON
M5H 3Y4

James C. Sidlofsky

Telephone:  (416) 367-6277

Fax: (416) 361-2751
Email: jsidlofsky@blg.com
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APPLICATION
Introduction

The Applicant is Brantford Power Inc. (BPI). The Applicant is a corporation incorporated
pursuant to the Ontario Business Corporations Act with its head office in the City of Brantford,
ON. The Applicant carries on the business of distributing electricity within the City of
Brantford, ON.

The Applicant hereby applies to the Ontario Energy Board (the “Board”) pursuant to Section 78
of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998 (“the OEB Act”) for approval of its proposed distribution
rates and other charges, effective November 1, 2013. A list of requested approvals is set out
below.

Except where specifically identified in the Application, the Applicant followed the Board's
Chapter 2 of the Filing Requirements for Transmission and Distribution Applications, update
issued June 28, 2010 (the “Filing Requirements”) in order to prepare this Application.

The Test Year budget was approved by the BPI Board of Directors on January 24, 2013. The
Load Forecast was approved by BPI’s Senior Leadership Team on March 13, 2013

Application Notice

Application notice will be published in “The Expositor” a paid publication with circulation of
20,000.

“The Expositor” is published 6 days a week Monday to Saturday, and has a daly pad
circulation of 20,000. The paper serves Brantford, as well as Paris, Burford and the rest of Brant
County. Notice will aso be posted on the BPI website.

Proposed Distribution Rates and Other Charges

The Proposed Schedule of Rates and Charges in this Application is set out in Exhibit 1, Tab 1,
Schedule 2, Appendix A and in Exhibit 8. The material being filed in support of this Application
sets out BPI’ s approach to its distribution rates and charges.

Proposed Effective Date of Rate Order

The Applicant requests that the Board make its Rate Order effective November 1, 2013 in
accordance with the Filing Requirements.
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The Proposed Distribution Rates and Other Charges are Just and Reasonable

The Applicant submits the proposed distribution rates contained in this Application are just and
reasonabl e on the following grounds:

a)

b)

€)

The proposed rates, as set out in Exhibit 1 for the distribution of electricity have been
prepared in accordance with the Filing Requirements and reflect traditiona rate making
and cost of service principles;

The proposed and adjusted rates are necessary to ensure BPI has sufficient funds to meet
its capital expenditure obligations, fund OM&A expenses, provide for a reasonable
Market Based Rate of Return (“MBRR”) and Paymentsin Lieu of Taxes (“PILS").

BPI advises that it is seeking approval of changes to the Specific Service Charges as set
out in Exhibit 3, Tab 3, Schedule 4.

There are no impacts to any of the customer classes or consumption level subgroups that
are so significant as to warrant the deferral of any adjustments being requested by the
Applicant or the implementation of any other mitigation measures.

Such other grounds as may be set out in the material accompanying this Application
Summary.

Relief Sought

The Applicant applies for an Order or Orders approving the proposed distribution rates and
charges set out in Exhibit 8 to this Application as just and reasonable rates and charges pursuant
to Section 78 of the OEB Act, to be effective November 1, 2013.

The Applicant seeks approval of its Green Energy Plan as part of this Application in accordance
with the Deemed Conditions of License as reported by the Board in its Distribution System
Planning Guidelines G-2009-0087, issued June 16, 2009. The Applicant’s Green Energy Plan
has been prepared in accordance with the Board’ s Filing Requirements as reported in EB-2009-

0397 —

Distribution System Plans under the Green Energy Act issued on December 18, 2009.
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Form of Hearing Requested

The Applicant requests that this Application be disposed of by way of awritten hearing. DATED
at Brantford, Ontario, this 17 day of July, 2013.

All of which isrespectfully submitted,
BORDEN LADNER GERVAISLLP

James C. Sidlofsky
Counsal to Brantford Power Inc.
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Brantford Power Inc.
TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES
Effective and Implementation Date November 1, 2013
This schedule supersedes and replaces all previously approved schedules of Rates, Charges
and Loss Factors

RESIDENTIAL SERVICE CLASSIFICATION

This classification refers to an account taking electricity at 750 volts or less where the electricity is used
exclusively in a separately metered living accommodation. Customers shall be residing in single-dwelling units
that consist of a detached house or one unit of a semi-detached, duplex, triplex or quadruplex house, with a
residential zoning. Separately metered dwellings within a town house complex or apartment building also
qualify as residential customers. Further servicing details are available in the distributor’s Conditions of
Service.

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any
Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to
the administration of this schedule.

No rates and charges for the distribution of electricity and charges to meet the costs of any work or service
done or furnished for the purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made except as permitted by this
schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and amendments
thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

Unless specifically noted, this schedule does not contain any charges for the electricity commodity, be it under
the Regulated Price Plan, a contract with a retailer or the wholesale market price, as applicable.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges, assessments or credits that are required by law
to be invoiced by a distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement
Charge, the Global Adjustment, the Ontario Clean Energy Benefit and the HST.

Monthly Rates and Charges — Delivery Component

Service Charge 12.52
Distribution Volumetric Rate 0.0151 per kWh
Rate Rider for Lost Revenue Adjustment Mechanism (LRAM) Recovery 0.0003 per kWh
Rate Rider for Deferral/Variance Account (0.0039) per kWh
Rate Rider for Global Adjustment Sub-Account Disposition 0.0018 per kWh
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate 0.0084 per kWh
Retail Transmission Rate — Connection Service Rate 0.0057 per kWh
Smart Meter Disposition Rate Rider (SMDR) (0.19)

Stranded Meter Recovery Rate Rider (SMRR) 1.77

Rate Rider for Smart Metering Entity Charge - effective until Oct. 31, 2018 0.79



Monthly Rates and Charges — Regulatory Component

Wholesale Market Service Rate 0.0044 per kWh
Rural Rate Protection Charge 0.0012 per kWh
Standard Supply Service — Administrative Charge (if applicable) 0.25



Brantford Power Inc.
TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES
Effective and Implementation Date November 1, 2013
This schedule supersedes and replaces all previously approved schedules of Rates, Charges
and Loss Factors

GENERAL SERVICE LESS THAN 50 kW SERVICE CLASSIFICATION

This classification refers to a non residential account taking electricity at 750 volts or less whose monthly
average peak demand is less than, or is forecast to be less than, 50 kW. Further servicing details are available
in the distributor’s Conditions of Service.

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any
Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to
the administration of this schedule.

No rates and charges for the distribution of electricity and charges to meet the costs of any work or service
done or furnished for the purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made except as permitted by this
schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and amendments
thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

Unless specifically noted, this schedule does not contain any charges for the electricity commaodity, be it under
the Regulated Price Plan, a contract with a retailer or the wholesale market price, as applicable.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges, assessments or credits that are required by law
to be invoiced by a distributor and that are not subject to Board approval,

Monthly Rates and Charges — Delivery Component

Service Charge 27.13
Distribution Volumetric Rate 0.0071 per kWh
Rate Rider for Lost Revenue Adjustment Mechanism (LRAM) Recovery 0.0002 per kWh
Rate Rider for Deferral/Variance Account (0.0039) per kWh
Rate Rider for Global Adjustment Sub-Account Disposition 0.0018 per kWh
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate 0.0076 per kWh
Retail Transmission Rate — Connection Service Rate 0.0049 per kWh
Smart Meter Disposition Rate Rider (SMDR) (0.77)

Stranded Meter Recovery Rate Rider (SMRR) 1.75

Rate Rider for Smart Metering Entity Charge - effective until October 31,2018 0.79



Monthly Rates and Charges — Regulatory Component

Wholesale Market Service Rate 0.0044 per kWh
Rural Rate Protection Charge 0.0012 per kWh
Standard Supply Service — Administrative Charge (if applicable) 0.25



Brantford Power Inc.
TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES
Effective and Implementation Date November 1, 2013
This schedule supersedes and replaces all previously approved schedules of Rates, Charges
and Loss Factors

GENERAL SERVICE 50 to 4,999 kW SERVICE CLASSIFICATION

This classification applies to a non residential account whose average monthly maximum demand used for
billing purposes is equal to or greater than, or is forecast to be equal to or greater than, 50 kW but less than
5,000 kW. Further servicing details are available in the distributor’s Conditions of Service.

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any
Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to
the administration of this schedule.

No rates and charges for the distribution of electricity and charges to meet the costs of any work or service
done or furnished for the purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made except as permitted by this
schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and amendments
thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

Unless specifically noted, this schedule does not contain any charges for the electricity commodity, be it under
the Regulated Price Plan, a contract with a retailer or the wholesale market price, as applicable.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges, assessments or credits that are required by law
to be invoiced by a distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement
Charge, the Global Adjustment, the Ontario Clean Energy Benefit and the HST.

Monthly Rates and Charges — Delivery Component

Service Charge 320.78
Distribution Volumetric Rate 2.8142 per kW
Rate Rider for Lost Revenue Adjustment Mechanism (LRAM) Recovery 0.0157 per kW
Rate Rider for Deferral/Variance Account (1.5264) per kW
Rate Rider for Global Adjustment Sub-Account Disposition 0.7080 per kW
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate 2.5958 per kW
Retail Transmission Rate — Connection Service Rate 1.6850 per kW

Monthly Rates and Charges — Regulatory Component

Wholesale Market Service Rate 0.0044 per kWh
Rural Rate Protection Charge 0.0012 per kWh
Standard Supply Service — Administrative Charge (if applicable) 0.25



Brantford Power Inc.
TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES
Effective and Implementation Date November 1, 2013
This schedule supersedes and replaces all previously approved schedules of Rates, Charges
and Loss Factors

UNMETERED SCATTERED LOAD SERVICE CLASSIFICATION

This classification refers to an account taking electricity at 750 volts or less whose monthly average peak
demand is less than, or is forecast to be less than, 50 kW and the consumption is unmetered. Such
connections include cable TV power packs, bus shelters, telephone boots, traffic lights, railway crossings, etc.
The customer will provide detailed manufacturer information/ documentation with regard to electrical
demand/consumption of the proposed unmetered load. Further servicing details are available in the
distributor’s Conditions of Service.

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any
Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to
the administration of this schedule.

No rates and charges for the distribution of electricity and charges to meet the costs of any work or service
done or furnished for the purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made except as permitted by this
schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and amendments
thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

Unless specifically noted, this schedule does not contain any charges for the electricity commodity, be it under
the Regulated Price Plan, a contract with a retailer or the wholesale market price, as applicable.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges, assessments or credits that are required by law
to be invoiced by a distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement
Charge, the Global Adjustment, the Ontario Clean Energy Benefit and the HST.

Monthly Rates and Charges — Delivery Component

Service Charge (per connection) 13.17
Distribution Volumetric Rate 0.0079 per kWh
Rate Rider for Deferral/Variance Account (0.0039) per kWh
Rate Rider for Global Adjustment Sub-Account Disposition 0.0018 per kWh
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate 0.0076 per kWh

Retail Transmission Rate — Connection Service Rate 0.0049 per kWh



Monthly Rates and Charges — Regulatory Component

Wholesale Market Service Rate 0.0044 per kWh
Rural Rate Protection Charge 0.0012 per kWh
Standard Supply Service — Administrative Charge (if applicable) 0.25



Brantford Power Inc.
TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES
Effective and Implementation Date November 1, 2013
This schedule supersedes and replaces all previously approved schedules of Rates, Charges and Loss Factors

STANDBY POWER SERVICE CLASSIFICATION

This classification refers to an account that has Load Displacement Generation and requires the distributor to
provide back-up service. Further servicing details are available in the distributor’s Conditions of Service.

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any
Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to
the administration of this schedule.

No rates and charges for the distribution of electricity and charges to meet the costs of any work or service
done or furnished for the purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made except as permitted by this
schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and amendments
thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

Unless specifically noted, this schedule does not contain any charges for the electricity commaodity, be it under
the Regulated Price Plan, a contract with a retailer or the wholesale market price, as applicable.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges, assessments or credits that are required by law
to be invoiced by a distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement
Charge, the Global Adjustment, the Ontario Clean Energy Benefit and the HST.

MONTHLY RATES AND CHARGES — APPROVED ON AN INTERIM BASIS

Standby Charge — for a month where standby power is not provided.
The charge is applied to the contracted amount (e.g. nameplate rating
of generation facility) 1.6729 per kW



Brantford Power Inc.
TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES
Effective and Implementation Date November 1, 2103
This schedule supersedes and replaces all previously approved schedules of Rates, Charges and Loss Factors

SENTINEL LIGHTING SERVICE CLASSIFICATION

This classification refers to accounts that are an unmetered lighting load supplied to a sentinel light. Further
servicing details are available in the distributor’s Conditions of Service.

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any
Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to
the administration of this schedule.

No rates and charges for the distribution of electricity and charges to meet the costs of any work or service
done or furnished for the purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made except as permitted by this
schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and amendments
thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

Unless specifically noted, this schedule does not contain any charges for the electricity commodity, be it under
the Regulated Price Plan, a contract with a retailer or the wholesale market price, as applicable.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges, assessments or credits that are required by law
to be invoiced by a distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement
Charge, the Global Adjustment, the Ontario Clean Energy Benefit and the HST.

Monthly Rates and Charges — Delivery Component

Service Charge (per connection) 4.28
Distribution Volumetric Rate 20.5359 per kW
Rate Rider for Deferral/Variance Account (1.2707) per kW
Rate Rider for Global Adjustment Sub-Account Disposition 0.5894 per kW
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate 2.4240 per kW
Retail Transmission Rate — Connection Service Rate 1.5737 per kW

Monthly Rates and Charges — Regulatory Component

Wholesale Market Service Rate 0.0044 per kWh
Rural Rate Protection Charge 0.0012 per kWh
Standard Supply Service — Administrative Charge (if applicable) 0.25



Brantford Power Inc.
TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES
Effective and Implementation Date November 1, 2103
This schedule supersedes and replaces all previously approved schedules of Rates, Charges and Loss Factors

STREET LIGHTING SERVICE CLASSIFICATION

This classification refers to an account for roadway lighting with a Municipality, Regional Municipality, Ministry
of Transportation and private roadway lighting operation, controlled by photocells. The consumption for
these customers will be based on the calculated load times the required lighting times established in the OEB
approved street lighting load shape template. Further servicing details are available in the distrbutor’s
Conditions of Service.

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any
Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to
the administration of this schedule.

No rates and charges for the distribution of electricity and charges to meet the costs of any work or service
done or furnished for the purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made except as permitted by this
schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and amendments
thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

Unless specifically noted, this schedule does not contain any charges for the electricity commodity, be it under
the Regulated Price Plan, a contract with a retailer or the wholesale market price, as applicable.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges, assessments or credits that are required by law
to be invoiced by a distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement
Charge, the Global Adjustment, the Ontario Clean Energy Benefit and the HST.

Monthly Rates and Charges — Delivery Component

Service Charge (per connection) 0.71
Distribution Volumetric Rate 2.9627 per kW
Rate Rider for Deferral/Variance Account (1.2513) per kW
Rate Rider for Global Adjustment Sub-Account Disposition 0.5804 per kW
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate 2.3960 per kW
Retail Transmission Rate — Connection Service Rate 1.5555 per kW

Monthly Rates and Charges — Regulatory Component

Wholesale Market Service Rate 0.0044 per kWh
Rural Rate Protection Charge 0.0012 per kWh
Standard Supply Service — Administrative Charge (if applicable) 0.25



Brantford Power Inc.
TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES
Effective and Implementation Date November 1, 2013
This schedule supersedes and replaces all previously approved schedules of Rates, Charges and Loss Factors

microFIT GENERATOR SERVICE CLASSIFICATION

This classification applies to an electricity generation facility contracted under the Ontario Power Authority’s
microFIT program and connected to the distributor’s distribution system. Further servicing details are
available in the distributor’s Conditions of Service.

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any
Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to
the administration of this schedule.

No rates and charges for the distribution of electricity and charges to meet the costs of any work or service
done or furnished for the purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made except as permitted by this
schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and amendments
thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

Unless specifically noted, this schedule does not contain any charges for the electricity commodity, be it under
the Regulated Price Plan, a contract with a retailer or the wholesale market price, as applicable.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges, assessments or credits that are required by law
to be invoiced by a distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement
Charge, the Global Adjustment, the Ontario Clean Energy Benefit and the HST.

Monthly Rates and Charges — Delivery Component

Service Charge 5.40



Brantford Power Inc.
TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES
Effective and Implementation Date November 1, 2013
This schedule supersedes and replaces all previously approved schedules of Rates, Charges and Loss Factors

EMBEDDED DISTRIBUTOR SERVICE CLASSIFICATION

This classification applies to an electricity distributor licensed by the Board that is provided electricity by
means of this distributor’s facilities. Further servicing details are available in the distributor’s Conditions of
Service.

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any
Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to
the administration of this schedule.

No rates and charges for the distribution of electricity and charges to meet the costs of any work or service
done or furnished for the purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made except as permitted by this
schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and amendments
thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

Unless specifically noted, this schedule does not contain any charges for the electricity commodity, be it under
the Regulated Price Plan, a contract with a retailer or the wholesale market price, as applicable.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges, assessments or credits that are required by law
to be invoiced by a distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement
Charge, the Global Adjustment, the Ontario Clean Energy Benefit and the HST.

Monthly Rates and Charges

Service Charge 293.34
Distribution Volumetric Rate 1.7466 per kW
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate 2.5958 per kW

Retail Transmission Rate — Connection Service Rate 1.6850 per kW



Brantford Power Inc.
TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES
Effective and Implementation Date November 1, 2103
This schedule supersedes and replaces all previously approved schedules of Rates, Charges and Loss Factors

Allowances

Transformer Allowance for Ownership -

per kW of billing demand/month (0.60) S/kw
Primary Metering Allowance for transformer losses —
applied to measured demand and energy (1.00) %

SPECIFIC SERVICE CHARGES

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any
Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to
the administration of this schedule.

No charges to meet the costs of any work or service done or furnished for the purpose of the distribution of
electricity shall be made except as permitted by this schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s Licence or a
Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges, assessments or credits that are required by law
to be invoiced by a distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement
Charge, the Global Adjustment, the Ontario Clean Energy Benefit and the HST.

Customer Administration

Easement letter 15.00
Credit reference/credit check (plus credit agency costs) 15.00
Returned cheque charge (plus bank charges) 15.00
Account set up charge/change of occupancy charge

(plus credit agency costs if applicable) 30.00
Meter Dispute Charge 30.00
plus Measurement Canada fees (if meter found correct) 60.00

Non-Payment of Account

Late Payment - per month 1.50%
Late Payment - per annum 19.56 %
Collection of account charge — no disconnection 30.00
Disconnect/Reconnect charge - At Meter — during regular hours 65.00
Disconnect/Reconnect charge - At Meter — after regular hours 185.00
Disconnect/Reconnect charge - At Pole — during regular hours 185.00

Disconnect/Reconnect charge - At Pole — after regular hours 415.00



Install/Remove load control device — during regular hours
Install/Remove load control device — after regular hours

OTHER

Temporary Service — Install and remove — overhead — no transformer
Temporary Service — Install and remove — underground — no transformer
Specific Charge for Access to the Power Poles — per pole/year

65.00
185.00

500.00
300.00
22.35



Brantford Power Inc.
TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES
Effective and Implementation Date November 1, 2013
This schedule supersedes and replaces all previously approved schedules of Rates, Charges and Loss Factors

RETAIL SERVICE CHARGES (if applicable)
APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any
Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to
the administration of this schedule.

No rates and charges for the distribution of electricity and charges to meet the costs of any work or service
done or furnished for the purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made except as permitted by this
schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and amendments
thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

Unless specifically noted, this schedule does not contain any charges for the electricity commaodity, be it under
the Regulated Price Plan, a contract with a retailer or the wholesale market price, as applicable.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges, assessments or credits that are required by law
to be invoiced by a distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement

Charge, the Global Adjustment, the Ontario Clean Energy Benefit and the HST.

Retail Service Charges refer to services provided by a distributor to retailers or customers related
to the supply of competitive electricity.

Retail Service Charges (if applicable)

One-time charge, per retailer, to establish the service agreement

between the distributor and the retailer 100.00
Monthly Fixed Charge, per retailer 20.00
Monthly Variable Charge, per customer, per retailer 0.50/cust.
Distributor-consolidated billing charge, per customer, per retailer 0.30/cust.
Retailer-consolidated billing credit, per customer, per retailer (0.30)/cust.
Service Transaction Requests (STR)

Request fee, per request, applied to the requesting party 0.25
Processing fee, per request, applied to the requesting party 0.50

Request for customer information as outlined in Section 10.6.3

and Chapter 11 of the Retail Settlement Code directly to retailers

and customers, if not delivered electronically through the Electronic Business

Transaction (EBT) system, applied to the requesting party

Up to twice a year no charge
More than twice a year, per request (plus incremental delivery costs) 2.00



Loss Factors

If the distributor is not capable of prorating changed loss factors jointly with distribution rates, the revised loss
factors will be implemented upon the first subsequent billing for each billing cycle.

Total Loss Factor — Secondary Metered Customer < 5,000 kW 1.0349
Total Loss Factor — Primary Metered Customer < 5,000 kW 1.0246
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CONTACT INFORMATION

FOR BPI

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DIRECTOR — REGULATORY AFFAIRY

BOARD SECRETARY

SENIOR REGULATORY ANALYST

REGULATORY ANALYST

REGULATORY ANALYST

APPLICANT’S COUNSEL

84 Market Street
Brantford, ON

N3T 5N8

Mailing Address:

P.O. Box 308

Brantford, ON N3T 5N8

Paul Kwasnik

Telephone: 519-751-3522 x 3226
Facsimilie: 519-753-6130

Email: pkwasnik@brantford.ca

Heather Wyaitt

Telephone: 519-751-3522 x 3269
Facsimilie: 519-753-6130

Email: hwyatt@brantford.ca

NadiaTahir

Telephone: 519-751-3522 x 3335
Facsimilie: 519-753-6130

Email: ntahir@brantford.ca

Phillip Chisulo

Telephone: 519-751-3522 x 3243
Facsimilie: 519-753-6130

Email: pchisulo@brantford.ca

Oana Stefan

Telephone: 519-751-3522 x 3232
Facsimilie: 519-753-6130

Email: ostefan@brantford.ca

Borden Ladner GervaisLLP
Suite 4100

40 King Street West
Toronto ON

M5H 3Y4

James C. Sidlofsky

Telephone: 416 367-6277
Facsimile: 416 361-2751

Email: jsidlofsky@blgcanada.com
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SPECIFIC APPROVALSREQUESTED

In this proceeding, BPI is requesting the following approvals:

e Approva to charge rates effective November 1, 2013 to recover a revenue requirement of
$17,864,601 which includes a revenue deficiency of $1,409,559 as set out in Exhibit 6,
Schedule 1, Tab 1 the schedule of proposed ratesis set out in Exhibit 8, Tab 1, Schedule 6.

e Approva of the CDM savings projected in the Load Forecast in Exhibit 3, Tab 2, Schedule 1
as the LRAM Variance Account baseline. Approval of the proposed loss factor as set out in
Exhibit 8, Tab 1, Schedule 1.

e Approva to charge a Retail Transmission Network Service rate and a Retaill Transmission
Connection Rate as proposed and described in Exhibit 8, Tab 1, Schedule 1.

e Approva to charge Wholesadle Market, as per the Wholesale Market Service Charge (EB-
2013-0067) decision March 21, 2013; Rura Rate Protection (EB-2012-0453) decision
December 20, 2012 and Smart Meter Entity Charges (EB-2012-0100/EB-2012-0211),
decision dated March 28, 2013.

e Approva to continue the Transformer Allowance approved in the OEB Decision and Order
in the matter of BPI’s 2008 Distribution Rates (EB-2007-0698).

e Approval of changesto Specific Service Charges as set out in Exhibit 3, Tab 3, Schedule 4.

e Approva to dispose of the following Deferral and Variance Account balances as at
December 31, 2012 including interest up to April 30, 2013 over a one year period using the
method of recovery described in Exhibit 9, Tab 2, Schedule 2 for the following accounts.



© 00 N oo o0~ WD

N NN B PR R R R R R R
N B O © ©0 N O O M W N L O

23
24

25
26

27

Brantford Power Inc.

EB-2012-0109
Exhibit 1
Tab1l
Schedule 5
Page2 of 3

Filed: July 17, 2013

GROUP 1 ACCOUNTS

1580
1584
1586
1588
1589
1595

Retail Settlement Variance Account - Wholesale Market Service Charges
Retail Settlement Variance Account - Retail Transmission Network Charges
Retail Settlement Variance Account - Retail Transmission Connection Charges
Retail Settlement Variance Account — Power (excluding Globa Adjustment)
Retail Settlement Variance Account - Power, Sub-account Global Adjustment

Disposition and Recovery/Refund of Regulatory Balances

GROUP 2 ACCOUNTS

1508
1508
1518
1525
1532
1548
1555
1556
1582
1592

Other Regulatory Assets - Sub-account OEB Cost Assessments
Other Regulatory Assets — Sub-account - Other

Retall Settlement Variance Account — Retall

Miscellaneous Deferred Debits

Renewable Connection OM&A Deferral Account

Retail Settlement Variance Account — Service Transaction Request
Smart Meter Capital and Recovery Offset Variance

Smart Meter OM&A Variance

Retail Settlement Variance Account — One-time

PILs and Tax Variance for 2008 and Subsequent Y ear — Sub - account HST/OVAT Input

Tax Credits

Approval to recover LRAM amounts related to persistence of 2005-2010 programs in

2011 over aone year period, using the method of recovery described in Exhibit 4, Tab 4,

Schedule 2.

Approva to dispose of Smart Meter balances through a disposition rate rider over a 4

year period using the method of recovery as outlined in Exhibit 9, Tab 3, Schedule 1.

Approval to dispose of Stranded Meter balances through a disposition rate rider over a4

year period using the method of recovery as outlined in Exhibit 9, Tab 4, Schedule 1.

Approval of Request for Accounting Order as described in Exhibit 9, Tab 2, Schedule 4.



Brantford Power Inc.
EB-2012-0109
Exhibit 1

Tabl

Schedule5

Page3of 3

Filed: July 17, 2013

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges or assessments that are required by
law to be charged by a distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt
Retirement Charge, charges for Ministry of Energy and Infrastructure Conservation and

Renewable Energy Program, the Provincial Benefit and any applicabl e taxes.
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PROPOSED ISSUESLIST

The Applicant would expect, based on previous regulatory experience and other hearings, that
the following matters pertaining to the 2013 Test Y ear may constitute issues in this Application:

1. GENERAL (Exhibit 1)

e Are the Applicant’s overall economic and business planning assumptions for the Test

Y ear appropriate?
e Isservice quality, based on the Board specified performance indicators, acceptable?
e Isthe proposed revenue requirement appropriate?
2. RATE BASE (Exhibit 2)
e Arethe Applicant’s asset management assumptions appropriate?
e Isthe Applicant’s capitalization and depreciation policy appropriate?
e Arethe capital expenditures appropriate?

e Arethein-service dates accurate for projects closed prior to the Test Year and are they
appropriate for proposed projects?

e Istheworking capital allowance for the Test Y ear appropriate?
e |sthe proposed rate base for the Test Y ear appropriate?

e |sthe accounting for smart metersin rate base appropriate?

e |sthe accounting for stranded meters appropriate?

e |sthebasic Green Energy Plan appropriate?
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.LOADS, CUSTOMERS - THROUGHPUT REVENUE (Exhibit 3)
Is the load forecast methodology including weather normalization appropriate?

Are the proposed customers/connections and load forecasts (both kWh and kW) for the
Test Y ear appropriate?

Is CDM appropriately reflected in the load forecast?
Are the proposed revenue offsets appropriate?
. OPERATING COSTS (Exhibit 4)
Isthe overall OM&A forecast for the Test Y ear appropriate?
Are the methodol ogies used to allocate shared services and other costs appropriate?
Is the proposed level of depreciation/amortization expense for the Test Y ear appropriate?
Arethe 2013 compensation costs and employee levels appropriate?
Isthe Test Y ear forecast of PILs appropriate?
. COST OF CAPITAL AND RATE OF RETURN (Exhibit 5)
Is the proposed capital structure appropriate?
Isthe cost of debt appropriate?
Is the proposed return on equity appropriate?
. CALCULATION OF REVENUE DEFICIENCY OR SURPLUS (Exhibit 6)

Isthe calculation of Revenue Deficiency accurate?
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7. COST ALLOCATION (Exhibit 7)

Isthe Applicant’s cost allocation appropriate?

Isthe applicant’s Cost Allocation including weighting factors appropriate?

Are the proposed revenue-to-cost ratios appropriate?

8. RATE DESIGN (Exhibit 8)

Are the customer charges and the fixed-variable splits for each class appropriate?

Arethe proposed Retail Transmission Service Rates appropriate?

Are the proposed |oss factors appropriate?

Isthe Applicant’s proposed Tariff of Rates and Charges appropriate?

9. DEFERRAL AND VARIANCE ACCOUNTS (Exhibit 9)

Are the account balances, cost allocation methodol ogy and disposition plan appropriate?

Is the request for an accounting order to authorize the creation of a variance account to
capture specifically defined differences related to BPI’ s future transition to International
Financial Reporting Standards appropriate?
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1 PROCEDURAL ORDERS/MOTIONS/NOTICES

2  BPI requested and received permission to defer its Cost-of-Service Rate Application for 2012 to
3 2013
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ACCOUNTING ORDERS REQUESTED

Asitis expected that BPI will adopt IFRS before the next Cost-of-Service Rate Application, BPI
IS requesting an accounting order to authorize the creation of a variance account to capture the
following specific differences related to the transition to IFRS:

e (Gains or losses on disposition of property, plant and equipment; and

e Other post unemployment & benefits.
The details of this requested accounting order are set out in Exhibit 9, Tab 2, Schedule 5, and
Appendix A.
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COMPLIANCE WITH UNIFORM SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTS

BPI has followed the accounting principles and main categories of accounts as stated in the
Board’'s Accounting Procedures Handbook (the “APH”) and the Uniform System of Accounts
(“US0A”) in the preparation of this Application.
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DISTRIBUTION SERVICE TERRITORY AND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM

Description of Distributor:

COMMUNITY SERVED: City of Brantford
URBAN AREAS: 74 sg km

RURAL SERVICE AREA: 0sgkm

TOTAL SERVICE AREA: 74 sg km
DISTRIBUTION TY PE: Electricity distribution
MUNICIPAL POPULATION: 95,960

POPULATION OF URBAN AREAS SERVED: 95,960

The Powerline Municipal Transformer Station (PMTS) is jointly owned by (BPI) with Brant
County Power Inc. (BCPI) and was deemed a distribution asset in 2006 (EB-2005-0342). BPI

owns 5/8 of the transformer station and BCPI owns 3/8.
A map of BPI’ s Distribution Service Territory accompanies this Exhibit as Appendix B.

A schematic diagram of BPI’ s distribution system is attached in Appendix C.
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The outlined area represents BPI's service territory which is the existing City of Brantford

municipal boundaries.
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MAP OF BRANTFORD POWER INC — DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM
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LIST OF NEIGHBOURING UTILITIES

BPI is bounded by Brant County Power Inc. on al serviceterritory boundaries.

Brant County Power Inc.

65 Dundas Street East

Paris, ON

N3L 3H1

Direct line: 519-422-2215

Direct fax: 519-442-3701

Email: info@brantcountypower.com
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EXPLANATION OF HOST AND EMBEDDED UTILITIES

BPI acts as a host utility to Brant County Power Inc. [“BCPI”], which is a wholesale market
participant, at the Brantford Transformer Station, Mary Street, Brantford. The Brantford
Transformer Station is owned by Hydro One Networks Inc [“HONI”]. BPI provides electricity

to BCPI from this location at two connection points.

Further, BPI provides electricity to BCPI from the Powerline Transformer Station at one
connection point. As discussed above, the Powerline Municipa Transformer Station is owned
and operated jointly by BPI and BCPI.

BPI receives electricity at distribution-level voltages from BCPI at Jennings Rd.
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UTILITY ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

Since the 2008 Cost-of-Service Rate Application, BPI has undergone a significant corporate
restructuring.

On April 1, 2012, approximately 60 employees were transferred from the Corporation of the City
of Brantford [“the City”] to BPI. Functions transferred at that time included operations and
maintenance, metering, settlement, engineering design and construction, customer services,
finance, conservation and demand management, and regulatory and administration. The Chief
Executive Officer, reporting to the BPI Board of Directors, had historically been an employee of

BPI. The resultant utility organizational structureis set out in the organization chart below.

The details of this corporate reorganization and other internal reorganizations including the
impacts on distribution expenses are discussed in details in Exhibit 4, Tab 2 Schedule 3.

The BPI Board of Directors is comprised of 5 directors, of whom 2 directors aso sit on the
Board of BPI's holding company, Brantford Energy Corporation (“BEC”). No BPI staff sit on

the BPI Board as directors.

BPI purchases some services under a Service Agreement from its affiliate service provider, the
City. Generdly, those services include Accounts Payable processing, Payroll processing,
Purchasing; Human Resources, IT Servicesincluding the use of IT assets, Legal and Real Estate,
Records Management, Mail processing, Telephone services including the use of assets, Property
Management including the use of facilities assets and tree trimming services. These services are
discussed in greater detail in Exhibit 4, Tab 2, Schedule 6.
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1 UTILITY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

Brantford Power
Inc.
Board of Directors

Chief Executive

Officer
Director, Regulatory . N . Director,
Affairs/Board D|regto;,r;inoerrlgy & Chwéff;:g:rnqal Engineering &
Secretary P Construction

Regulatory, SSA

Administration, 3&8;?:10'1; Finance, Customer
Administration, 9 Service & CDM
Settlement

Board Secretariat
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BRANTFORD ENERGY GROUP OF COMPANIES
CORPORATE STRUCTURE

CORPORATE ENTITIESRELATIONSHIP CHART

CORPORATION OF THE
CITY OF BRANTFORD
(SHAREHOLDER)

100% ownership of
Brantford Energy

BRANTFORD ENERGY
CORPORATION
(HOLDING COMPANY)

100% ownership of Brantford
Power, Brantford Hydro and
Brantford Generation

BRANTFORD POWER

(ELECTRICITY
DISTRIBUTION
COMPANY)

Wires

BRANTFORD HYDRO
INC.
(RETAIL COMPANY)

Fibre Optics, Water Heater
Rentals, Sentinel Light
Rentals

BRANTFORD
GENERATIONINC.

(ELECTRICITY
GENERATION)
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BPI provides street lighting maintenance to the City of Brantford and sentinel lighting
maintenance to Brantford Hydro Inc. The accounting treatment of these revenues is discussed
further in Exhibit 3, Tab 3, Schedule 3.
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1 PLANNED CHANGESIN CORPORATE AND OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE

2 Nochangesto BPI’s corporate and operational structures are planned at the present time.
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STATUS OF BOARD DIRECTIVES FROM PREVIOUS BOARD DECISIONS

Directive from 2008 Cost of Service Application (EB-2007-0698)

The Board prescribed a phase-in period to adjust its revenue-to-cost rates, moving the Sentinel
Lighting and Street Lighting from their 2009 positions to the bottom of the Board' s target ranges
during 2010 and 2011. BPI has complied with this directive and as of its 2011 IRM Application
(EB-2010-0238), Sentinel Lighting and Street Lighting Revenue-to-Cost Ratios have been

moved to within the Board’ s target ranges.

2009 BCP Embedded Distribution Proceeding

On August 10, 2010, the Board rendered its decision in response to a motion by BCPI directing
BPI to establish an embedded distributor class and apply for rates to be recovered from that class
(Board File No. EB-2009-0063). In its decision, the Board permitted BPI to track the amount of
any revenue deficiency that may result from the differences in the GS >50 kW rate and the
resultant embedded distributor rate in a tracking account. Subsequently, the Board approved the
rates for the new embedded distributor class effective May 1, 2008 and BPI has tracked the
revenue deficiency in a variance account that BPI is requesting to dispose of in this proceeding
as described in detail in Exhibit 9, Tab 2, Schedule 1.
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CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

BPI's current Conditions of Service dated January 1, 2012 are posted on BPI's website at
(www.brantfordpower.com). The Board approves BPI’s distribution rates and charges, which
are published in the existing “Schedule of Rates and Charges.” These rates include, at a

minimum, the monthly service charge for distribution services, the distribution volumetric
charge, competitive and non-competitive electricity charges and specific service charges. The
“Schedule of Rates and Charges’ is included on a Rate Card sent to customers in their utility bill
annually, is posted on the website at www.brantfordpower.com, or is available from BPI upon
request by a customer. In addition to the Board approved specific service charges which are
discussed in Exhibit 3, Tab 3, Schedule 4, BPI charges on atime and materials basis for activities
that are outside of its standard level of service as described in the Conditions of Service.
Activities subject to such time and materials based charges include, but are not limited to the
following:

a) Installations of primary and secondary services outside of normal business hours and at the
request of the customer;

b) Reconnections of service not related to collection activities outside of normal business hours
and at the request of the customer;

c) Trouble calls outside of normal business hours and at the request of the customer;

d) Temporary service installation and removal where atransformer is required,

€) Damage to equipment owned by BPI while in the care and custody of the customer;

f) Damage to equipment owned by BPI due to customer neglect or action; for example, pole or
transformer hits;

g) Connection costs beyond BPI’s standard level of services as defined in Section 2.1 of the
Conditions of Service;

h) Assistance from BPI to resolve electrical disturbances,

i) Specialized metering arrangements;

]) Interval metering equipment beyond BPI’s standard level of service;

K) Interval metering communications requirements,
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I) Relocations of BPI equipment like poles at the request of the customers;

m) Relocations of BPI equipment where services were not located in consultation with BPI or
were removed without BPI's consent;

n) Ancillary services including, as examples, isolate and grounds, house moves, lifting lines and

pole holding.

There are no changes to BPI’s Conditions of Service anticipated at the present time.



Brantford Power Inc.
EB-2012-0109
Exhibit 1

Tabl

Schedule 17
Pagelof 1

Filed: July 16, 2013

1 PRELIMINARY LIST OF WITNESSES
2  While BPI requests that this Application be disposed of by way of awritten hearing

3 should an ora hearing be necessary, BPI will provide alist of potential witnesses as required.
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SUMMARY OF THE APPLICATION

Preamble

BPI has submitted this Application in order to meet its corporate mission and corporate goals
outlined below. The increased rates are required to:

1)

2)

3)

4)

Maintain current capital investment levels in infrastructure to ensure a safe, reliable

distribution system.

Continue with operating expenses necessary to maintain and operate the distribution

system, meet customer service expectations and ensure regulatory compliance.

Maintain current staffing requirements, including training and preparing for succession

planning.

To provide areasonable rate of return to the Shareholder.

BPI’sMission Statement is:

Brantford Power provides safe, reliable and competitively priced servicesto our
customers while ensuring excellent shareholder returns.

Vision

Brantford Power is driven to be a leading electricity distribution company.
Values

Safety

Openness and integrity in all relationships

Innovation and creativity

A customer focus

Employee engagement
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BPI’'sSERVICE RELIABILITYAND QUALITY INDICATORS AVERAGE
PERFORMANCE FOR 2008 - 2013

BPI’s Service Reliability Indicators and Service Quality Indicators for 2008 to 2012 with its
target for 2013 are set out below in Tables 1.1, 1.2 and 1.3
Table 1.1 — Service Reliability Indicators
Year | 2008 | 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013* | 2013+
including Loss of Supply
SAIDI 0.863 0.982 1.087 0.490 0.305 0.627 0.746
SAIFI 1.713 1.387 1.954 1.169 1.231 1.452 1.491
CAIDI 0.504 0.708 0.556 0.432 0.248 0.412 0.490
excluding Loss of Supply
SAIDI 0.600 0.400 0.665 0.288 0.213 0.388 0.433
SAIFI 1.400 0.630 0.960 0.832 1.231 1.008 1.011
CAIDI 0.430 0.650 0.694 0.448 0.173 0.438 0.479
* 3 year average
** 5 year average
Table 1.2 — Service Reliability Target - 2013
Including Loss of Supply Excluding Loss of Supply
SAIDI 0.75 0.43
SAIFI 1.49 1.01

Asdiscussed further in Exhibit 2, Tab 3, Schedule 6, BPI’ s service reliability target is based on

the 5 year average performance.




Brantford Power Inc.
EB-2012-0109
Exhibit 1

Tab 2

Schedule 1

Page 3 of 11

Filed: July 17, 2013

Table 1.3 - Service Quality Indicators

Indicator OEB Minimum Standard 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Connection of New |y, iihin 5 business days | 100% | 100% | 100% 99% | 99.6% | 100%
Services - Low Voltage
Connection of N

oARECton OLNEW 19004, within 10 business days| 100% | N/A | 100% | N/A | N/A | N/A
Services - High Voltage
—

ppotntment 90% within 5 business days | N/A 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100%
Scheduling
Appointment - Met  |90% of the time 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 99.5% | 100%
Rescheduli issed [100% of the ti % of

esc~ eduling a missed [100 /'0 of t e. time (90% o N/A 98% 100% 89% 83% 100%
appointment the time until 2009)

% of call
Telephone Accessiblity |° . OF calls answered 80% 76% 71% 2% | 647% | 65%
* |within 30 seconds

Telephone Call

Abandon Rate 10% or less on a yeatly basis N/A 3%, 4% 50 5.9% 70,
erttcir? Responses to 80% within 10 business days 98% 100% 100% 100% 99.8% 100%
Enquiries
Emergency Response - 80% within 60 minutes 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Urban Areas
E 7 R se -

METEEncy BESPONSE = 16004 within 120 minutes N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Rural Areas
R -

ceonneetion 85% within 2 business days N/A N/A N/A 999%, 100% 999,

Performance Standard

An explanation for Service Quality Indicators under performance can be found at Exhibit 2, Tab
3, Schedule 6.

BPI's requested revenue requirement for 2013 in the amount of $17,864,601 includes the
recovery of its costs to provide distribution services, its permitted Return on Equity [“ROE”] and

the funds necessary to service its debt.

When forecasted energy and demand levels for 2013 are considered, BPI estimates that its
present rates will produce a deficiency in gross distribution revenue of $1,409,559 for the 2013
Test Year.
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Therefore, BPI seeks the Board’s approval to revise its electricity distribution rates. The rates
proposed to recover its projected revenue requirement and other relief sought are set out in

Exhibit 1, Tab 1, Schedule 2, Appendix A and Exhibit 8, Tab 1, Schedule 6 to this Application.

The information presented in this Application represents BPI’s forecasted results for its 2013
Test Year. BPI is also presenting the forecasted results for 2012 Bridge Year and audited
financial information for fiscal 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011.

Timing

The financia information supporting the Test Y ear for this Application will be BPI’sfiscal year
ending December 31, 2013 (the “2013 Test Year”). However, BPI is requesting rates effective
November 1, 2013 continuing through April 30, 2014.

Customer | mpact

In preparing this Application, BPI has considered the impacts on its customers, with a goal of
minimizing those impacts. With respect to cost allocation, BPI notes that no customer classes
fall outside the applicable threshold defined by the Board in the March 31, 2012 Report of the
Board on Review of Electricity Distribution Cost Allocation Policy (EB-2011-0219). Customer
impacts including the percentage average Total Bill Impact and Average Dollar Impact, which
include revised distribution rates (monthly service charge and volumetric rates), revised retail
transmission rates, revised loss factors, LRAM, Smart Meter and Stranded Meter rate riders, and
regulatory asset rate riders to dispose of the balances in the Deferra and Variance Accounts
requested in this Application are set out in Table 1.4 below, for typical Residential (800 kWh per
month) and Commercia (2000 kWh per month) customers. A complete listing of bill impacts
for al customer classes at various levels of consumption is provided in Exhibit 8, Tab 1,
Schedule 8, Appendix A.
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Transition to Modified I nternational Financial Reporting Standards (MIFRS) (M odify for
CGAAP)
This Application has been prepared in Modified CGAP. BPI continues to monitor the
developments in Canadian and International Accounting Standards impacting rate regulated
entities. The following principles were considered in determining the accounting framework to

be used as the basis for its Application:

. The selection of the accounting framework should provide maintain organizational
flexibility regarding accounting options until al International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) uncertainties with respect to rate regulated accounting are resolved, i.e.: the selection of
an accounting framework should not restrict BPI's eligibility for any future interim measures
introduced by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or Canadian Accounting
Standards Board (AcSB) regarding rate regulated accounting;

. The selection of a new accounting framework should be made only when adoption is
mandatory or when sufficient uncertainties regarding the treatment of rate regulated entities have
been resolved to allow an informed decision to be made and avoid the possibility of multiple
changes in accounting for rate regul ated entities as new standards are developed. Thiswill avoid

unnecessary confusion to the users of BPI’ s financial reporting; and

. To the extent possible, BPI should minimize differences between general purpose
external financial reporting and the reporting required for rate regulation purposes.

Based on BPI’ s current assessment of the devel opments the following observations can be made:

. The mandatory adoption of use of IFRS for Canadian rate regulated entities can be
deferred to January 1, 2015;

. The IASB has issued an exposure draft for an interim IFRS standard that if adopted, is
expected to permit the continuation of existing rate regulated accounting practices. This interim

measure will be in place until the IASB assesses the unique issues related to rate regulated
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entities in its current conceptual framework to establish whether permanent changes are required

to International Financial Reporting Standards;

. This draft interim standard was issued in April 2013, and could result in the approval of a
final interim standard for rate regulated entities by the end of 2013. Based on current
expectations, mandatory transition to IFRS is expected to be no later than January 1, 2015 with
restatement of the opening balance sheet as at January 1, 2014 and restated comparative figures
for 2014 prepared using IFRS. The new standard may provide for early adoption.

. Based on the discussions at the IASB to date, it appears a utility’ s migration to IFRS
prior to the issuance of any interim standards for rate regulated entities would likely disqualify
an entity from applying the provisions of any interim standard issued for rate regulated entities

transitioning to IFRS;

. The Board expects local distribution companies to adopt the IAS 16 Property Plant and
Equipment standards with respect to capitalization of indirect overheads and revisions to useful

life for rate regulation purposesin 2013.

Based on the above analysis, BPI has concluded that it is not in its interest to adopt IFRS in 2013

for general purpose financial reporting because:

. With the deferral option available until 2015, there is no pressing need to proceed to
adopt at this time and such adoption would likely result in giving up any of the transitional

measures likely available in the interim standard expected to be issued in 2013;

. Although BPI has addressed most of the IFRS requirements in its primary business
processes, work remains on the required IFRS note disclosures. It is prudent that this work be
completed before transitioning to IFRS;

. By not adopting in 2013 for general purpose reporting, there is no requirement to change

retrospectively any 2012 account balances.
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As aresult of BPI's decision to stay with CGAAP for general purpose financia reporting, BPI
has concluded that the continuation of CGAAP for rate regulatory purposes would produce the

following benefits consistent with the above note principles:

. The accounting framework in use for regulatory reporting and for genera purpose

financial reporting will be substantially harmonized,

. The avoidance of a full conversion to IFRS in 2013, will simplify the information
required in the 2013 Cost-of-Service Rate Application as no evidence will be required regarding
variances caused by IFRS transition with the exception of the changes capitalization and useful

lives, impacting the accounting of Property Plant and Equipment; and

. BPI will remain eligible for any IFRS rate regulated interim standards which may be
issued.
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Current Board-Approved Proposed Impact
Charge Rate Volume | Charge Rate Volume | Charge
($) $) ($) ($) $ Chang % Change
Monthly Senice Charge $  11.4600 1% 1146 $ 12,5200 18 12.52 $ 1.06 9.25%
Smart Meter Rate Adder 1% - 18 - $ -
Smart Meter Disposition Rate Rider 1% - -5 0.1900 1-8 0.19 -5 0.19
Smart Metering Entity Charge * 1% - $ 0.7880 13 0.79 $ 0.79
Stranded Meter Recovery Rate Rider 1% - $ 1.7600 1% 1.76 $ 1.76
b 18 - 18 - $ -
Distribution Volumetric Rate $ 0.0138 800§ 11.04 £ 0.0151 800| 3 12.08 $ 1.04 9.42%
18 - 18 - $ -
LRAM & SSM Rate Rider $ 0.0013 800| $ 1.04 s 0.0003 800| 3 0.21 -$ 0.83 -79.41%
Tax change h $ 0.0005 800-%  0.40 800| 3 - $ 0.40 -100.00%
ki 800|$ - 800 $ $ -
h 800| $ - 800 $ - $ -
3 800| § - 800| § - $ -
h 800| $ - 800| $ - $ -
™ 800| $ - 800 3 - $
b 800/ - 800 $ - $ -
|Sub-TotaI A $ 2314 $ 27.17 $ 4.03 17.43%|
Deferral/Vaniance Account =1y 8oo|$ 560| |6 0.0039 sools  311| |s 249 |  -44.49%
Disposition Rate Rider
Global Adjustment - Non RPP * 800| § - 800| § - $ -
h 800| $ - 800| $ - $ -
3 800($ - 800 $ - $ -
Low Voltage Senvice Charge 800| $ - 800| $ $ -
Smart Meter Entity Charge T 1T 800| § $ -
Sub-Total B - Distribution
(includes Sub-Total A) $ 17.54 $ 24.06 $ 6.52 37.19%
RTSR - Network $ 0.0080 834§ 6.67 $ 0.0084 828| 3 6.95 $ 0.29 4.28%
RTSR - Line and
Transformation Connection $ 0.0055 B34/ 5 458 0.0057 828| § 4.72 $ 0.13 2.93%
Sub-Total C - Delivery
(including Sub-Total B) $ 28.79 $ 3574 $ 6.94 24.11%
Wholesale Market Senvice $ 0.0052
Charge (WMSC) 834/ 4.33 $ 0.0044 828| 3.64 -$ 0.69 -15.96%
Rural and Remote Rate $ 0.0011
Protection (RRRP) 834§ 092 5 0.0012 828| 3 0.99 $ 0.08 8.35%
Standard Supply Senice Charge $ 0.2500 1% 025 $ 0.2500 13 0.25 $ - 0.00%
Debt Retirement Charge (DRC) $ 0.0070 834| § 5.84 ] 0.0070 828| 3 5.80 $ 0.04 -0.68%
Energy - RPP - Tier 1 $ 0.0780 600 § 46.80 $ 0.0780 600| 3 46.80 $ - 0.00%
Energy - RPP - Tier 2 $ 0.0910 234§ 21.26 $ 0.0910 228 % 20.74 -$ 0.52 -2.43%
TOU - Off Peak $ 0.0670 534§ 3574 $ 0.0670 530| § 35.50 -$ 0.24 -0.68%
TOU - Mid Peak $ 0.1040 150( $ 15.60 $ 0.1040 149 8 15.50 -$ 0.11 -0.68%
TOU - On Peak $ 0.1240 150| § 18.61 $ 0.1240 149| § 18.48 -$ 0.13 -0.68%
Total Bill on RPP (before Taxes) $ 108.19 $ 11396 $ 5.77 5.33%
HST 13% $ 14.06 13% $ 14.81 $ 0.75 5.33%
Total Bill (including HST) $ 12225 5 12877 $ 6.52 5.33%
Ontario Clean Energy Benefit ' $ 1223 -$ 12.88 -$ 0.65 5.31%
Total Bill on RPP (including OCEB) $ 110.02 $ 115.89 $ 5.87 5.34%
Total Bill on TOU (before Taxes) $ 110.09 $ 11590 $ 5.81 5.28%
HST 13% $ 143 13% $ 15.07 $ 0.76 5.28%
Total Bill (including HST) $ 124.40 $ 130.96 $ 6.57 5.28%
Ontario Clean Energy Benefit 5 1244 -5 1310 5 0.66 5.31%
Total Bill on TOU (including OCEB) $ 111.96 $ 117.86 $ 5.91 5.28%
Loss Factor (%) 3.49%
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Bill Impacts

Customer Class: GS<50
Consumption kWh @ May1-October31 (O November1 - Apri 30 (Select this radio button for appications fied afte

Current Board-Approved Proposed Impact
Charge Rate Volume | Charge Rate Volume | Charge
Unit ($) (%) ($) ($) $ Chang % Change
Monthly Senice Charge $ 248100 1% 2481 $ 27.1300 1% 2713 3 232 9.35%
Smart Meter Rate Adder 18 - 1% - $ -
Smart Meter Disposition Rate Rider 1% - -5 0.7700 1|-% 0.77 5 0.77
Smart Metering Entity Charge * 1% - $  0.7880 1% 0.79 $ 0.79
Stranded Meter Recovery Rate Rider 1% - $ 1.7500 1% 1.75 $ 1.75
b 18 - 18 - $ -
Distribution Volumetric Rate $  0.0085 2000($ 13.00| [$  0.0071 20000  14.20 $ 1.20 9.23%
Smart Meter Disposition Rider 1% - 1% - $ -
LRAM & SSM Rate Rider $  0.0004 2000($ 080| [$ 00002 2000( $ 0.45 3 0.35 -43.50%
Tax change ‘ 3 0.0002 2000|-8 0.40 2000 $ - S 0.40 -100.00%
h 2000 $ - 2000| $ - $ -
h 2000( % - 2000| $ - $ -
h 2000 $ - 2000| $ - $ -
M 20008 - 2000| $ - 5 -
b 2000| $ - 2000| $ - $ -
b 20000% - 2000| $ - 5 -
[Sub-Total A $  38.21 $ 4355 $ 5.34 13.98%)
Deferral/\Variance Account $ 0.0052
Disposition Rate Rider 2000|-§ 10.40 -$  0.0039 2000(-% 7.77 $ 263 -25.27%
Global Adjustment - Non RPP 2000| $ - 2000 $ - $ -
h 2000| $ - 2000| $ - $ -
b 20008 - 2000/ $ - $ -
Low Voltage Senice Charge 2000| $ - 2000| $ - 3 -
Smart Meter Entity Charge I 2000| $ - 5 -
Sub-Total B - Distribution o
(includes Sub-Total A) $ 21.81 $ 3578 $ 7.97 28.65%
RTSR - Network $ 00072 2084\ $ 15.00 $  0.0076 2070($ 1573 $ 0.73 4.84%
RTSR - Line and
Transformation Connection $ 0.0048 2084/ $ 10.00 $ 0.0049 2070| $ 10.14 $ 0.14 1.39%
Sub-Total C - Delivery
(including Sub-Total B) $ 52.82 $ 61.65 $ 8.83 16.72%
Wholesale Market Senvice $ 0.0052 $ 0.0044
Charge (WMSC) 2084| 5 10.84 2070| $ 9.11 -5 1.73 -15.96%
Rural and Remote Rate $ 0.0011
Protection (RRRP) 2084 3 229 $ 0.0012 2070 $ 2.48 $ 0.19 8.35%
Standard Supply Senice Charge $  0.2500 1% 025 $  0.2500 1% 0.25 3 - 0.00%
Debt Retirement Charge (DRC) % 0.0070 2084| 3 14.59 % 0.0070 2070| % 14.49 3 0.10 -0.68%
Energy - RPP - Tier 1 $ 0.0780 600| $§ 46.80 $ 0.0780 600| $ 46.80 $ - 0.00%
Energy - RPP - Tier 2 $ 0.0910 1484 $ 135.04 $ 0.0910 1470| $ 133.75 -3 1.29 -0.96%
TOU - Off Peak $ 0.0670 1334/ $ 89.36 $ 0.0670 1325 % 88.75 -5 0.61 -0.68%
TOU - Mid Peak $ 0.1040 375(% 39.01 $ 0.1040 373| % 38.75 -3 0.27 -0.68%
TOU - On Peak $ 0.1240 375| % 46.51 $ 0.1240 373| $ 46.20 -3 0.32 -0.68%
Total Bill on RPP (before Taxes) $ 262.63 $ 268.53 $ 5.90 2.25%
HST 13% $ 3414 13% $ 34.91 s .77 2.25%
Total Bill (including HST) $ 296.77 $ 303.44 $ 6.67 2.25%
Ontario Clean Energy Benefit ' $ 2968 $ 3034| |S 0.66 2.22%
Total Bill on RPP (including OCEB) $ 267.09 $ 273.10 $ 6.01 2.25%
Total Bill on TOU (before Taxes) $ 255.67 $ 261.68 $ 6.00 2.35%
HST 13% $ 3324 13% $ 34.02 $ 0.78 2.35%
Total Bill (including HST) $ 288.91 $ 29570 $ 6.78 2.35%
Ontario Clean Energy Benefit ' 5 2889 s 2057 |S 0.68 2.35%
Total Bill on TOU (including OCEB) $ 260.02 $ 266.13 $ 6.10 2.35%

Loss Factor (%
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Bill mpacts

Customer Class: GS>50

Consumption]  100]kw @ May 1 - October 31 ) November 1 - April 30 (Select this radio button for applications filed after ¢

Consumption 39,339 kWh
Current Board-Approved Proposed Impact
Charge Rate Volume Charge Rate Volume Charge
Unit () ($) ($) () $ Change | % Change
Monthly Senice Charge Monthly $ 293.7100 18 293.7 $ 320.7800 18 320.78 $ 27.07 9.22%
Smart Meter Rate Adder Monthly 1% - 1% - $ -
Stranded Meter Recovery b 1% - 18 $ -
A 18 - 1% $ -
A 18 - 18 - $ -
b 18 - 18 - $ -
Distribution Volumetric Rate per kW $ 2.6043 100| $ 260.43 s 2.8142 100| $ 281.42 $ 20.99 8.06%
Smart Meter Disposition Rider  Monthly 1% - $ - 1% - $ -
LRAM & SSM Rate Rider per kW $ 0.0633 100| $ 6.33 s 0.0157 100| $ 1.57 -$ 476 -75.26%
Tax change Y per kW -5 0.0609 100(-$ 6.09 100| $ - 5 6.09 [ -100.00%
A $ - o|$ - $ -
A 3 - ol % s -
A 3 - ol % s -
] 3 - ol % s -
] $ - 0|3 - $ -
3 $ - 0$ - $ -
[Sub-Total A $  554.38 §  603.77 $ 49.39 8.91%
D.Eferrd.wa“ance ﬁltccount ad 3 1.8203 100(-$ 182.03 -5 1.5264 100(-$ 152.64 $ 29.39 -16.14%
Disposition Rate Rider
Global Adjustment - Non RPP 3 per kWh -$ 0.5790 100|-$ 57.90 s 0.7080 100| $ 70.80 $ 128.70 -22227%
] $ - 0|s - $ -
A $ - 0s $ -
Low Voltage Senice Charge $ - 0% - $ -
Smart Meter Enity Charge [ — — os - ||s -
Sub-Total B - Distribution
(includes Sub-Total A) $ 314.45 $ 521.92 $ 207.47 65.98%
RTSR - Network per kW $ 2.4601 104| $ 256.34 $ 2.5958 103.49| § 268.64 $ 12.30 4.80%
RTSR - Line and
Transformation Connection per kW § 1.6398 104| $ 170.87 $ 1.6850 103.49| § 174.38 $ 3.51 2.06%
Sub-Total C - Delivery
(including Sub-Total B) $ 741.66 $ 964.94 $ 223.28 30.11%
Wholesale Market Senice per kWh $ 0.0052
Charge (WMSC) 40991 $ 213.15 $ 0.0044 | 40711.9| % 179.13 -5 34.02 -15.96%
Rural and Remote Rate per kWh t] 0.0011
Protection (RRRP) 40991 $ 45.09 $ 0.0012 | 40711.9| % 48.85 $ 3.76 8.35%
Standard Supply Senice Charge Monthly $  0.2500 18 0.25 $ 02500 1% 0.25 $ - 0.00%
Debt Retirement Charge (DRC) per kWh $ 0.0070 40991| $ 286.94 $ 0.0070 | 40711.9| % 284.98 -$ 1.96 -0.68%
Energy - RPP - Tier 1 $ 0.0750 0% - $ 0.0750 0% - $ -
Energy - RPP - Tier 2 $  0.0880 0% - $  0.0880 0$ - $ -
Energy - COP $0.08717 40991| $ 3,573.21 $0.08717 | 40711.9|$ 3,548.86 -$ 24.35 -0.68%
Total Bill $ 4,860.30 $ 5027.02| [§  166.72 3.43%
HST 13% $ 63184 13% $ 65351 |§ 2167 3.43%
Total Bill (including HST) $ 549214 $ 5,680.53 $ 188.39 3.43%
Ontario Clean Energy Benefit [$ 54921 '$ 568.05| |5 18.84 3.43%
$

Total Bill on TOU (includiﬁ OCEB) $ 4,942.93 $ 5112.48 169.55 3.43%
Loss Factor (%) 4.20% 3.49%
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Smart Meters
Smart meter costs are included in the 2013 rate base and revenue requirement. BPI is adso
requesting the recovery of stranded meter amounts as outlined in Exhibit 9 of this Application.
Capital Structure
BPI is requesting the continuation of its current deemed capital structure of 40% Equity, 4%
Short Term Debt, 56% Long Term Debt.
Return on Equity
BPI has assumed a return on equity of 8.98% consistent with the Cost of Capital Parameter
Updates for 2013 Cost of Service Applications issued by the Board on February 14, 2013. BPI
understands the Board will be finalizing the cost of capital parameters for 2013 rates based on
January 2013 market interest rate information, and that adjustments to the Application may be
required as aresult.
Capital Expenditures
BPI continues to expand and reinforce its distribution system in order to meet the demand of new
and existing customers in its service territory. Expenditures are also being made to meet
regulations set out by both the Board and IESO including load transfers and primary metering

points.



© 00 N o 0o b~ W N P

e~ - i e =
o A W N R O

16
17
18
19

20
21
22

23
24
25
26

Brantford Power Inc.
EB-2012-0109
Exhibit 1

Tab 2

Schedule 2

Pagelof 4

Filed: July 17, 2013

BUDGET OVERVIEW

The current budget process is a bottom-up process [i.e. prepared by the managers of the
operating departments] with some high-level guidance from the CFO and Senior Leadership
Team (SLT). Such high level guidance for 2013 required the accommodation of changes to
compensation and other new nondiscretionary changes to costs that could not be accommodated
within existing budget base, but otherwise staff were instructed to proceed with 0% increasesin
other cost areas. Departments are expected to highlight any non-discretionary increases. It is
expected that the Department Heads incorporate guidance from the strategic plan into their initial
budget submissions. The BPI budget process begins with Department Heads putting forth capital
or operational requests which are reviewed by the SLT and if accepted, are incorporated into the
budget. Finance relies on Department Heads to present reasonable and relevant requests to the
team with justification for any deviations to the guidelines. Although the focus of the
Operational and Capital Budget is the immediate fiscal year, the requests must be consistent with
the financial parameters expected over a five year period. Among the factors considered are
expected level of customer or load growth, expected cost increases due to inflation or new

requirements. IRM productivity requirements are generally offset by new cost requirements.

In addition to the detailed scrutiny of submissions, overall reasonabl eness checks are achieved by
performing comparisons to previous year actuals, current year budget and projections to the
levels proposed in the new budget. This baseline is then forecasted out for four additional fiscal
years to assess the sustainability of the budget proposal within the overall financial plan.

With respect to financing costs, the budget is based on the actual financing cost for the existing
portfolio of debt instruments plus a forecast for the upcoming budget year requirements. Of note

isthe fact that BPI has not planned for any new borrowingsin 2013.

The proposed capital budget reflects a number of specific components. Projects other than
nondiscretionary projects are based on BPI's asset management program and outputs. Non-
discretionary projects are based on historical trends or known projects that have been identified.
Non-discretionary projects represent projects related to identified or anticipated new services, or
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the cost of relocation of electricity distribution plant because of municipal or provincia road

widening’ /rel ocations.

Replacements to fleet units are based on the fleet management program and are detailed in the
capital budget on a specific item basis.

The level of capital expenditures has been impacted by the required change in capitalization
policy to be implemented in 2013 dealing with indirect overhead costs. The former capitalization
policy was approved by the BPI Board in 2006. This former two-staged process was a cost
allocation process as follows. Firstly, the applicable share of indirect costs was attributed 100%
to the applicable direct expense activity. Thisinitial cost allocation process determined the fully
absorbed gross costs of each distinct department of service area. As aresult of this initial cost
allocation step, a department or service area reflected its share of indirect costs. The second cost
allocation step accomplished the capitalization of indirect costs by, transferring an appropriate
amount of these fully absorbed costs to the capital and recoverable works programs based on the
labour units supporting these non OM&A cost activities. Once this alocation was completed,
the costs remaining in OM&A represented the fully absorbed OM&A costs.

The resulting level of OM&A costs depended on how much indirect costs were assigned to a
particular department or service area in the first cost alocation step and the extent that
department or service area contributed to the capital and recoverable works programs in the

second stage of the cost allocation process.

With the required change in capitalization practices mandated in 2013, the second step outlined
above has been discontinued resulting in all OM& A expenses being recorded on a fully absorbed

basis.

Once the various budget items have been compiled, the working version of the budget is updated
as required to reflect required revisions as determined by the by the SLT comprised of BPI's
CEO and Directors.
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Once the SLT has concluded the budget is acceptable, the proposed budget is submitted to the
BPI Board for approval and subject to their approval, it is submitted to the Brantford Energy

Corporation Board (shareholder of BPI) for fina approval.

BPI compiles budget information for the three major components of the budgeting process.
revenue forecasts, operating and maintenance expense forecast and capital budget forecast. This
budget information is compiled for both the 2012 Bridge Y ear and the 2013 Test Y ear.

Revenue For ecast

BPI's energy sales and revenue forecast model were updated to reflect more recent information.
This model was then used to prepare the revenues sales and throughput volume and revenue
forecast at existing rates for fiscal 2012 and 2013. The forecast is weather normalized as
outlined in Exhibit 3, Tab 2, Schedule 1 and considers such factors as average weather

conditions and economic conditions in the area serviced by BPI.

Operating Maintenance and Administration (“OM& A”) Expense For ecast

The OM&A expenses for the 2012 Bridge Year and the 2013 Test Year have been based on an
in-depth review of operating priorities and requirements and is strongly influenced by prior year
experience, year-to-date results and expected changes for the forecast periods. Each item is
reviewed account by account for each of the forecast years with indirect costs allocated to direct

costs for budget presentation.

Capital Budget

The 2012 capital plan, a blend of actual and forecasted costs and the 2013 capital budget
forecasts are influenced by, among other factors, the highest priority capital requirements and
BPI’s capacity to finance capita projects. All proposed capital projects, are assessed within the
framework of their capital budget priority and are outlined in Exhibit 2, Tab 3, Schedule 2.

BPI began the development and implementation of an Asset Management Program in June 2010
to support a rate rebasing Application and improve the overall management of capital assets.
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1 The implementation and improvement of the program is an ongoing project which BPI is
2 undertaking in consultation with Asset Management specialists. More information on the Asset
3 Management Program can be found in Exhibit 2, Tab 3, Schedule 5.
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CHANGESIN METHODOLOGY

As compared with BPI's 2008 Cost-of-Service Rate Application, this Application reflects the

following changes to methodol ogy.
1. Capitalization policy reflecting modified CGAAP;
2. Depreciation reflecting modified CGAAP,
3. Capital planning approach with the introduction of asset management;
4. Load forecast methodology; and

5. Transfer pricing mechanisms for services purchased from the City of Brantford.
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REVENUE DEFICIENCY

BPI has provided detailed calculations supporting its 2013 revenue deficiency. BPI's net
revenue deficiency is $1,069,602 and when grossed up for PILs BPI’'s revenue deficiency is
$1,409,559. Table 1.5 on the following page provides the revenue deficiency calculations for the
2013 Test Year at Existing 2012 Board-approved rates and the 2013 Test Year Revenue
Requirement.



Table 1.5: Calculation of Revenue Deficiency

Revenue Deficiency Determination
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2012 Bridge 2013 Test 2013 Test -
Description Actual Existing Rates | Required Revenue
Revenue

Rewvenue Deficiency 1,409,559

Distribution Revenue 14,309,974 15,293,896 15,293,896

Other Operating Revenue (Net) 632,386 1,161,146 1,161,146
Total Revenue 14,942,360 16,455,042 17,864,601
Costs and Expenses

Administrative & General, Billing & Collecting 4,898,507 5,594,429 5,594,429

Operation & Maintenance 2,914,167 3,609,596 3,609,596

Depreciation & Amortization 3,837,203 2,995,584 2,995,584

Property Taxes 5,091 12,000 12,000

Deemed Interest 2,300,897 2,346,500 2,346,500
Total Costs and Expenses 13,955,865 14,558,108 14,558,108
Utility Income Before Income Taxes 986,495 1,896,934 3,306,492
Income Taxes:

Corporate Income Taxes 301,701 137,894 477,851
Total Income Taxes 301,701 137,894 477,851
Utility Net Income 684,794 1,759,040 2,828,641
Income Tax Expense Calculation:

Accounting Income 986,495 1,896,934 3,306,492

Tax Adjustments to Accounting Income 274,678 (1,325,186) (1,325,186)
Taxable Income 1,261,173 571,747 1,981,306
Income Tax Expense 301,701 137,894 477,851
Tax Rate Refecting Tax Credits 23.92% 24.12% 24.12%
Actual Return on Rate Base:

Rate Base 76,015,169 78,748,369 78,748,369

Interest Expense 2,300,897 2,346,500 2,346,500

Net Income 684,794 1,759,040 2,828,641
Total Actual Return on Rate Base 2,985,691 4,105,539 5,175,141
Actual Return on Rate Base 3.93% 5.21% 6.57%
Required Return on Rate Base:

Rate Base 76,015,169 78,748,369 78,748,369
Return Rates:

Return on Debt (Weighted) 5.04% 4.97% 4.97%

Return on Equity 8.57% 8.98% 8.98%

Deemed Interest Expense 2,300,897 2,346,500 2,346,500

Return On Equity 2,605,800 2,828,641 2,828,641
Total Return 4,906,697 5,175,141 5,175,141
Expected Return on Rate Base 6.45% 6.57% 6.57%
Revenue Deficiency After Tax 1,921,006 1,069,602 0
Revenue Deficiency Before Tax 2,525,056 1,409,559 0
Tax Exhibit 2013
Deemed Utility Income 2,828,641

Tax Adjustments to Accounting Income (1,325,186)
Taxable Income prior to adjusting revenue to PILs 1,503,455
Tax Rate 24.12%
Total PILs before gross up 362,603

Grossed up PILs 477,851
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CAUSES OF REVENUE DEFICIENCY

BPI's net revenue deficiency is calculated as $1,069,602 and when grossed up for PILs, the
revenue deficiency is $1,409,559 BPI’s calculation of its 2013 revenue deficiency is provided in
Exhibit 1, Tab 2, Schedule 4 and Exhibit 6, Tab 1, Schedule 1.

The revenue deficiency is primarily the result of two factors:

1. Increases to OM&A costs due to the change in BPI's capitalization policy in the
amount of $972,502; and
2. Increases as aresult of BPI's organizational restructuring in 2012 and the splitting

of the customer invoice in 2013 offset by other cost reductions in the net amount
of $437,405.
The changes to BPI's capitalization policy are discussed in Exhibit 2, Tab 3, Schedule 4 and the
cost impacts are discussed in Exhibit 4,Tab 2, Schedule 3 in relation to the cost Driver Table and

description.

The changes to BPI's organizational structure and the cost impacts are discussed in Exhibit 4,Tab
2, Schedule 3.



Brantford Power Inc

EB-2012-0109
Exhibit 1
Tab 2
Schedule 6
Pagelof 7
Filed: July 2013
REVENUE REQUIREMENT WORK FORM (RRWF)
Data Input @
Initial Per Board
Application @ © Decision
1 Rate Base
Gross Fixed Assets (average) $99,621,478 $ 99,621,478 $99,621,478
Accumulated Depreciation (average) ($34,814,160) (5) ($34,814,160) ($34,814,160)
Allowance for Working Capital:
Controllable Expenses $9,216,025 $ 9,216,025 $9,216,025
Cost of Power $98,022,828 $ 98,022,828 $98,022,828
Working Capital Rate (%) 13.00% (9) 13.00% (9) 13.00% (9)
2 Utility Income
Operating Revenues:
Distribution Revenue at Current Rates $15,293,896
Distribution Revenue at Proposed Rates $16,703,454
Other Revenue:
Specific Service Charges $422,134
Late Payment Charges $120,000
Other Distribution Revenue $639,012
Other Income and Deductions ($20,000)
Total Revenue Offsets $1,161,146  (7)
Operating Expenses:
OM+A Expenses $9,204,025 $ 9,204,025 $9,204,025
Depreciation/Amortization $2,995,584  (10) $ 2,995,584 $2,995,584
Property taxes $12,000 $ 12,000 $12,000
Other expenses
3 Taxes/PILs
Taxable Income:
Adjustments required to arrive at taxable ($1,325,186) (3)
income
Utility Income Taxes and Rates:
Income taxes (not grossed up) $362,603
Income taxes (grossed up) $477,851
Federal tax (%) 15.00%
Provincial tax (%) 9.12%
Income Tax Credits
4 Capitalization/Cost of Capital
Capital Structure:
Long-term debt Capitalization Ratio (%) 56.0%
Short-term debt Capitalization Ratio (%) 4.0% (8) (8) ®)
Common Equity Capitalization Ratio (%) 40.0%
Prefered Shares Capitalization Ratio (%)
100.0%
Cost of Capital
Long-term debt Cost Rate (%) 5.17%
Short-term debt Cost Rate (%) 2.07%
Common Equity Cost Rate (%) 8.98%
Prefered Shares Cost Rate (%)
Adjustment to Return on Rate Base (11) (12) (11)

associated with Deferred PP&E balance as a
result of transition from CGAAP to MIFRS ($)
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Rate Base and Working Capital
Rate Base
Line Particulars Initial Per Board
No. Application Decision
1 Gross Fixed Assets (average) ?3) $99,621,478 $- $99,621,478 $- $99,621,478
2 Accumulated Depreciation (average) (3) ($34,814,160) $ - ($34,814,160) $ - ($34,814,160)
3 Net Fixed Assets (average) ®3) $64,807,318 $- $64,807,318 $- $64,807,318
4 Allowance for Working Capital 1) $13,941,051 $ - $13,941,051 $- $13,941,051
5 Total Rate Base $78,748,369 $ - $78,748,369 $- $78,748,369
Allowance for Working Capital - Derivation
@

6 Controllable Expenses $9,216,025 $- $9,216,025 $- $9,216,025
7 Cost of Power $98,022,828 $ - $98,022,828 $- $98,022,828
8 Working Capital Base $107,238,853 $- $107,238,853 $- $107,238,853
9 Working Capital Rate % (@) 13.00% 0.00% 13.00% 0.00% 13.00%
10 Working Capital Allowance $13,941,051 $- $13,941,051 $- $13,941,051
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Utility Income
Line . Initial Per Board
No. Particulars Al eati Decision
Operating Revenues:
1 Distribution Revenue (at $16,703,454 {$16,703,454) $- $- $-
Proposed Rates)
2 Other Revenue (1) $1,161,146 ($1,161,146) $- $- $ -
3 Total Operating Revenues $17,864,600 ($17,864,600) $- $- $-
Operating Expenses:
4 OM+A Expenses $9,204,025 $- $9,204,025 $- $9,204,025
5 Depreciation/Amortization $2,995,584 $- $2,995,584 $- $2,995,584
6 Property taxes $12,000 $- $12,000 $- $12,000
7 Capital taxes $- $- $- $- $-
8 Other expense $- $- $-
9 Subtotal (lines 4 to 8) $12,211,609 $- $12,211,609 $- $12,211,609
10 Deemed Interest Expense $2,345,126 {$2,345,126) $- $- $-
1" Total Expenses (lines 9 to 10) $14,556,735 ($2,345,126) $12,211,609 $- $12,211,609
12 Adjustment to Return on Rate $- $- $- $- $-
Base associated with Deferred
PP&E balance as a result of
transition from CGAAP to
MIFRS
13 Utility income before
income taxes $3,307,865 ($15,519,474) ($12,211,609) $- ($12,211,609)
14 Income taxes (grossed-up) $477,851 $ - $477,851 $- $477,851
15 Utility net income $2,830,014 ($15,519,474) ($12,689,460) $- ($12,689,460)
Notes Other Revenues / Revenue Offsets
(1 Specific Senice Charges $422,134 $- $-
Late Payment Charges $120,000 $- $-
Other Distribution Revenue $639,012 §- $-
Other Income and Deductions ($20,000) $- $-
Total Revenue Offsets $1,161,146 $- $- $- $-




Taxes/PILs

Line
No.

Particulars

10

11
12
13

Determination of Taxable Income

Utility net income before taxes

Adjustments required to arrive at taxable
utility income

Taxable income

Calculation of Utility income Taxes

Income taxes

Total taxes

Gross-up of Income Taxes
Grossed-up Income Taxes

PILs / tax Allowance (Grossed-up Income
taxes + Capital taxes)

Other tax Credits
Tax Rates
Federal tax (%)

Provincial tax (%)
Total tax rate (%)
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L Per Board
Applicat
ppiication Decision
$2,828,641 $- $-
($1,325,186) $- ($1,325,186)
$1,503,455 $ - ($1,325,186)
$362,603 $362,603 $362,603
$362,603 $362,603 $362,603
$115,248 $115,248 $115,248
$477,851 $477,851 $477,851
$477,851 $477,851 $477,851
$- $- $-
15.00% 15.00% 15.00%
9.12% 9.12% 9.12%
24.12% 24.12% 24.12%




Capitalization/Cost of Capital

":Le Particulars Capitalization Ratio Cost Rate
Initial Application
(%) (%) (%)
Debt
1 Long-term Debt 56.00% $44,099,087 5.17%
2 Short-term Debt 4.00% $3,149,935 2.07%
3 Total Debt 60.00% $47,249,021 4.96%
Equity
4 Common Equity 40.00% $31,499,348 8.98%
5 Preferred Shares 0.00% $- 0.00%
6 Total Equity 40.00% $31,499,348 8.98%
7 Total 100.00% $78,748,369 6.57%
(%) $) (%)
Debt
1 Long-term Debt 0.00% $- 0.00%
2 Short-term Debt 0.00% $- 0.00%
3 Total Debt 0.00% $- 0.00%
Equity
4 Common Equity 0.00% $- 0.00%
5 Preferred Shares 0.00% $- 0.00%
6 Total Equity 0.00% $- 0.00%
7 Total 0.00% $78,748,369 0.00%
Per Board Decision
(%) (%) (%)
Debt
8 Long-term Debt 0.00% $- 5.17%
9 Short-term Debt 0.00% $- 2.07%
10 Total Debt 0.00% $- 0.00%
Equity
1 Common Equity 0.00% $- 8.98%
12 Preferred Shares 0.00% 5- 0.00%
13 Total Equity 0.00% $- 0.00%
14 Total 0.00% $78,748,369 0.00%
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Return

®
$2,279,923

$65,204
$2,345,126

$2,828,641
- §-
$2,828,641

$5,173,768

%

6
$-

$-

$-

$-
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Per Board Decision

Line particulars At Current At Proposed At Current At Proposed At Current At Proposed
No. Approved Rates Rates Approved Rates Rates Approved Rates Rates
1 Revenue Deficiency from Below $1,408,186 ($3,503,478) $12,211,609
2 Distribution Revenue $15,293,896 $15,295,268 $15,293,896 $20,206,932 $- ($12,211,609)
3 Other Operating Revenue $1,161,146 $1,161,146 $- $- $- $-
Offsets - net
4  Total Revenue $16,455,042 $17,864,600 $15,293,896 $16,703,454 $ - $-
5 Operating Expenses $12,211,609 $12,211,609 $12,211,609 $12,211,609 $12,211,609 $12,211,609
6  Deemed Interest Expense $2,345,126 $2,345,126 $- $- $- $-
7  Adjustment to Return on Rate $-(2) $- $-(2) $- $-(2) $-
Base associated with Deferred
PP&E balance as a result of
transition from CGAAP to
MIFRS
8  Total Cost and Expenses $14,556,735 $14,556,735 $12,211,609 $12,211,609 $12,211,609 $12,211,609
9 Utility Income Before Income $1,898,307 $3,307,865 $3,082,287 $4,491,845 ($12,211,609) ($12,211,609)
Taxes
10  Tax Adjustments to Accounting ($1,325,186) ($1,325,186) ($1,325,186) ($1,325,186) $- $-
Income per 2013 PILs model
11  Taxable Income $573,120 $1,982,679 $1,757,100 $3,166,659 ($12,211,609) ($12,211,609)
12 Income Tax Rate 24.12% 24.12% 24.12% 24.12% 24.12% 24.12%
13 Income Tax on Taxable $138,225 $478,182 $423,777 $763,734 ($2,945,194) ($2,945,194)
Income
14  Income Tax Credits $- $- $- $- $- $ -
15 Utility Net Income $1,760,082 $2,830,014 $2,658,510 ($12,689,460) ($9,266,415) ($12,689,460)
16  Utility Rate Base $78,748,369 $78,748,369 $78,748,369 $78,748,369 $78,748,369 $78,748,369
17  Deemed Equity Portion of Rate $31,499,348 $31,499,348 $- $- $- $-
Base
18 Income/(Equity Portion of Rate 5.59% 8.98% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Base)
19 Target Return - Equity on Rate 8.98% 8.98% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Base
20 Deficiency/Sufficiency in Return -3.39% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
on Equity
21 Indicated Rate of Return 5.21% 6.57% 3.38% 0.00% -11.77% 0.00%
22 Requested Rate of Return on 6.57% 6.57% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Rate Base
23 Deficiency/Sufficiency in Rate of -1.36% 0.00% 3.38% 0.00% -11.77% 0.00%
Return
24  Target Return on Equity $2,828,641 $2,828,641 $- $- $- $-
25 Revenue Deficiency/(Sufficiency) $1,068,560 $1,373 ($2,658,510) $- $9,266,415 $-
26 Gross Revenue $1,408,186 (1) ($3,503,478) (1) $12,211,609 (1)

Deficiency/(Sufficiency)




Revenue Requirement

Line Particulars Application
No.
1 OM&A Expenses $9,204,025
2 Amortization/Depreciation $2,995,584
3 Property Taxes $12,000
5 Income Taxes (Grossed up) $477,851
6 Other Expenses $-
7 Return
Deemed Interest Expense $2,345,126
Return on Deemed Equity $2,828,641
Adjustment to Return on Rate
Base associated with Deferred
PP&E balance as a result of
transition from CGAAP to MIFRS $-
8 Service Revenue Requirement
(before Revenues) $17,863,228
9 Revenue Offsets $1,161,146
10 Base Revenue Requirement $16,702,081
(excluding Tranformer Owership
Allowance credit adjustment)
11 Distribution revenue $16,703,454
12 Other revenue $1,161,146
13 Total revenue $17,864,600
14 Difference (Total Revenue Less
Distribution Revenue
Requirement before Revenues) $1,373

)

Brantford Power Inc

$9,204,025
$2,995,584
$12,000
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Per Board Decision

$9,204,025
$2,995,584
$12,000
$477,851

$ -
$-

$-

$12,689,460

$-

$12,689,460

$ -
$ -

1) ($12,689,460)
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BPI’s Audited Financia Statements accompany this Schedule as Appendix D.
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APPENDIX D

COPIESOF BPI’s
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2009, 2010 and 2011
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Management Report
December 31, 2009

The accompanying financial statements are the responsibility of management of Brantford Power
Inc. In management's opinion, these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. Management has selected accounting principles
and methods that are appropriate to the Company's circumstances. Financial statements are not
precise since they include certain amounts based on estimates and judgments. Management has
determined such amounts on a reasonable basis in order to ensure that the financial statements are
presented fairly, in all material respects. The notes to the financial statements and any other
supplementary information presented are consistent with that in the financial statements.

The Company maintains systems of internal accounting and administrative controls that are
designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial information is relevant, reliable and
accurate, that transactions are properly authorized and that the Company's assets are properly
accounted for and adequately safeguarded.

The financial statements have been examined by Deloitte and Touche LLP, the external auditors of
the Company. The responsibility of the external auditors is to express their opinion on whether the
financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles,

The board of directors, through the finance committee, is responsible for ensuring that management
fulfills its responsibility for financial reporting and internal control. The finance committee meets
periodically with management, as well with the external auditors to satisfy itself that each party is
properly discharging its responsibilities with respect to internal controls and financial reporting.
The finance committee also reviews the financial statements and annual report and recommends
their approval to the board of directors. Deloitte and Touche LLP has full and free access to the
finance committee, with and without the presence of management.

George Mychailenko Brian D'Amboise, CA
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
March 15,2010 March 15,2010

Page ]



Deloitte.

1003 Skyview Crnive
Suite 202

Buriington, ON L7P 521
Canada

Tel: 905-315-6770
Fax: 905-315-8700
wunw.dealcitle.ca

Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of
Brantford Power Inc.

We have audited the balance sheet of Brantford Power Inc as at December 31, 2009 and the statements of
operations, retained earnings, comprehensive income and cash flows for the year then ended, These financial
statements ate the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, Those standards
require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement., An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. )

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the

Company as at December 31, 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

\oloitte & Forcha LLP

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
March 15,2010

Page 2

Membre rle / Member of Deloitte Touche fohmatsu
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Brantford Power Inc. )
Balance Sheet
as at December 31, 2009
Assets 2009 2008
3 b
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7,113,473 6,439,478
Accounts receivable 7,153,783 6,208,614
Unbilled revenue 9,612,975 8,349,543
Inventories 868,303 916,078
Special deposits 609,227 492,832
Prepaid expenses 140,368 175,205
Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 851,475 958,164
Future payments in lieu of corporate income taxes - note 21 - 176,390 158,400
26,525,994 23,698,314
Property, plant and equipment - note 6 _59_,828,069' 59,176,093
Other Assets | L
Regulatory assets - note 9 3,599,807 1,062,958
Long-term special deposits - 1,969,598 1,928,864
Long-term prepaid expenses 130,754 161,279
Future payments in lieu of corporate income taxes - note 21 3,776,613 3,056,950
Intangible assets - note 7 i 1,054,952 209,495
10,531,724 6,419,546
- 96,885,787 89,293,953

See accompanying notes
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Brantford Power Inc. -1
Balance Sheet
as at December 31, 2009

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity 2009 2008
3 b
Current Liabilities .
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 9,948,753 9,413,650
Accounts payable to the City of Brantford - note 8 ~ 1,654,882 1,390,347
Interest payable to the City of Brantford - note 10 1,511,823 1,511,823
Due to Brantford Energy Corporation - note 8 26,880 77,044
Current portion of customer deposits : 609,227 492,832
Current portion of long-term debt - note 10 499,546 474,847
C 14,251,111 13,360,543
Long-term debt - note 10 - - 35,818,427 32,461,093
Other Liabilities S RN
Regulatory liabilities - note 9 11,089,061 8,539,407
Long-term customer deposits - 1,969,598 1,928,864
Employee future benefits - note 11 C 0 T74,365 656,776
Derivative liabilities : 492,360 996,127

14,325,384 12,121,174

Contingencies and Commitments - note 12

Shareholder's Equity R R S S
Share capital - note 13 22,437,505 22,437,505
Retained Earnings 10,395,838 9,609,712
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss - note 14 . (342,478) (696,074)

32490865 31,351,143
96,885,787 89,293,053

Signed on behalf of the Board:

Director

Director

See accompanying notes Page 4
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Brantford Power Inc. A
Statement of Retained Earnings
for the year ended December 31, 2009

2009 2008

5 3
Retained Earnings, Beginning of Year 9,.609,712 8,082,607
Change in accounting policy for the recognition of future Sl
income tax regulatory liabilities - note 3 - (682,930 -

8,926,782 8,082,607
Net Income 2,219,056 2,027,105
Dividends (750,000) (500,000)
Retained Earnings, End of Year 10,395,838 9,609,712

See accompanying notes

Page 5



Brantford Power Inc.
Statement of Operations
for the year ended December 31, 2009

2009 200
S s
Revenue
Electricity distribution service charges - note 16 14,806,796 15,033,534
Ontario Power Authority conservation programs 2,128,577 379,832
Specific service charges 575,804 589,631
Interest income 128,823 385,736
Other income 333,732 383,277
17,973,732 16,772,010
Expenses
Distribution operations and maintenance 3,415,860 3,380,706
Billing and collecting 2,011,243 1,804,568
General administration 2,261,022 2,466,566
Ontario Power Authority conservation programs 1,785,379 321,480
Interest on long-term debt 1,976,824 2,001,271
Other financing expenses 98,782 394,513
Capital tax 151,200 113,116
Amortization - note 18 3,166,455 3,029,972
14,866,765 13,512,192
Income before payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 3,106,967 3,259,818
Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes
Current - note 21 1,930,422 2,754,613
Future (1,042,511) (1,521,900)
887,911 1,232,713
Net income 2,219,056 2,027,105
See accompanying notes Page 6
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Brantford Power Inc, 5 1
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended December 31, 2009
2009 2008
$ $
Net Income 2,219,056 2,027,105
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative instruments SR L
designated as cash flow hedges - Note 20 . - 523,506 (890,425)
Future (payments) recoveries in lieu of corporate income -~ "
taxes S (169,910) 258,230
353,596 (632,195)
Comprehensive Income 2,572,652 1,394,910

See accompanying notes Page 7
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Brantford Power Inc. ’
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended December 31, 2009
2009 2008
3 $
Operating activities -
Net income ' 2,219,056 2,027,105
Items not affecting cash R
Amortization - note |8 3,442,012 3,276,505
Future payments in lieu of corporate income taxes S (1,042,511) (1,521,%00)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment G0 22,96% (4,550)
Other items not affecting cash S (374,248) 127,432
4,267,278 3,904,592
Changes in non-cash working capital components - note 17 ** * (1,321,412) (2,491,666)
2,945,866 1,412,926
Investing activities : e
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment . (5,760,418) (5,934,694)
{Increase) decrease in regulatory assets “(2,536,849) 220,768
Increase in regulatory liabilities T _2,549,654 4,295,465
(Increase) decrease in special deposits S (157,129) 232,501
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 104,333 4,550

" (5,800,409) (1,181,410)

Financing activities e n L
Proceeds of issuance of long-term debt t1.73,851,000

Capital contributions received T 745,256 627,571
Repayment of long-term debt SO (474,84T) (428,547)
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits L 157,129 (232,501)
Dividends paid : (750,000) {(500,000)
3,528,538 (533,477)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ' 673,995 (301,961)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year Y '6.439,478 6,741,439

Cash and cash equivalents, end of vear 7,113,473 6,439,478

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flows : : o
Interest received 115,934 366,771

Interest paid 1,941,552 3,525,079
Payment for income taxes - 3,176,710 4,202,885

See accompanying nofes Page 8
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Brantford Power Inc. Ry it
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2009

1. Incorporation

On March 1, 2000, Brantford Power Inc. (the Company) was incorporated under the Business
Corporations Act (Ontario) along with its affiliate companies, Brantford Hydro Inc. and
Brantford Energy Corporation. Another affiliated company, Brantford Generation Inc., was
incorporated in 2007. The incorporations were pursuant to the provisions of the Encrgy
Competition Act, 1998. The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Brantford Energy
Corporation. The Company provides electricity distribution services to residents of the City of
Brantford. The operations of the company are regulated by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB).

2. Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and policies as set forth in the Accounting
Procedures Manual issued by the OEB under the authority of the Ontario Energy Board Act,
1998. Significant accounting policies are summarized below:

Regulation

The Company is regulated by the OEB and requires OEB approval for any distribution service
rate adjustments. The following accounting policies applicable to rate regulated operations
differ from GAAP for companies operating in an unregulated environment:

Regulatory assets and liabilities

Regulatory assets primarily represent costs that have been deferred because they are
expected to be recovered in future rates. Similarly, regulatory liabilities can arise from
differences in amounts billed to customers under the regulated pricing mechanism and the
corresponding wholesale market cost of power incurred by the utility.

Regulatory assets and liabilities will be recognized for rate-setting and financial statement
purposes only to the extent allowed by the regulator, The Company continually assesses
the likelihood of recovery of each of its regulatory assets and continues to believe that it is
probably that the OEB will factor its regulatory assets and liabilities into the setting of
future rates. If, at some future date, the Company judges that it is no longer probable that
the OEB will include a regulatory asset or liability in future rates, the appropriate carrying
amount will be reflected in the results of operations in the period that the assessment is
made. Asset and liability balances and current year activities are detailed in Note 9.

Page 9
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Brantford Power Inc. ’
Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended December 31, 2009

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Contributions in aid of construction

Contributions in aid of construction consist of third party contributions towards the cost of
constructing company assets. Capital contributions for the year of $745,256 (2008 -
$627,571) have been recorded as an offset to capital assets. Amortization of contributed
capital is recorded at an equivalent rate to that used for amortization of the related assets.

Allowance for use of funds during construction

The company capitalizes an allowance for use of funds during construction representing the
cost of funds during the construction period. The rate used is prescribed by the OEB and
updated on a quarterly basis. The total allowance for use of funds during construction
capitalized for the year amounted to $62,360 (2008 - $73,397).

Payment in lieu of income taxes

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Company is required to make payments in lieu of corporate
taxes (PILS) to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC), for the period beginning
on October 1, 2001. These payments are recorded in accordance with the rules for computing
income and taxable capital and other relevant amounts contained in the fncome Tax Act
(Canada) and the Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario) and modified by the Electricity Act, 1998, and
related regulations.

The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for payments in lieu of
corporate income taxes. Accordingly, future tax assets and liabilities are recognized for future
tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax rates. Future tax assets and liabilities
are measured using enacted or substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
In addition, the effect of future tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in
income in the year that includes the enactment or substantive enactment date.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure and contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year. Actual results
could differ from estimates, including changes as a result of future decisions made by the OEB
or the Minister of Energy and Infrastructure.

Page 10
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Brantford Power Inc. J
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2009

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term investments with maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition.

Inventories

Inventories consist of repair parts, supplies and materials and are valued at the lower of cost or
net realizable value determined using a weighted average method.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and removed from the accounts when disposed
or retired. Costs of assets which are pooled are removed from the accounts at the end of their
estimated average service lives. Gains or losses at retirement or disposition of such assets are
credited or charged to other income. Amertization is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful service life as follows,

Buildings 50 years
Transformer station 40 years
Distribution stations 30 years
Distribution lines - overhead 25 years
Distribution lines - underground 25 years
Distribution transformers 25 years
Distribution meters 25 years
Load control units 10 years
Vehicles 5-8 years
Tools and other equipment 5-10 years

Long-term prepaid expenses and special deposits

Long-term prepaid expenses consist of service fees paid providing the Company with the right
to use non-owned specified tangible assets for future periods. These charges are amortized on a
straight-line basis over 10 years representing the expected benefit period.

Amounts are recorded as special deposits when cash is collected related to customer deposits
and are expected to be held for a period exceeding one year.

Page 1]
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Brantford Power Inc. ® 19
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2009

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Revenue recognition

Distribution revenue is recorded as revenue in the period to which it relates. Distribution
revenue includes an estimated accrual for the variable component of the distribution rate based
on the electricity delivered but not yet billed to customers from the last meter reading date to
the year end.

Other revenue is recognized as services are rendered or contract milestones are achieved.

Unbilled revenue

Unbilled revenue is an estimate of customers' consumption of power from the last meter
reading during the year to the balance sheet date.

Customer deposits

Customer deposits are cash collections from customers and retailers to guarantee the payment
of electricity bills as prescribed by the OEB's Retail Settlement Code. Deposits expected to be
refunded to customers within the next fiscal period are classified as a current liability.

Employee future benefits

The Company provides post-retirement medical and life insurance benefits to eligible
employees. The cost of post-retirement medical and life insurance benefits is expensed using
the projected benefit cost method prorated on services.

The Company has adopted the corridor method of accounting for the actuarially determined
gains and losses. Cumulative gains and losses in excess of 10% of the beginning accrued
benefit obligation are amortized into expense on a straight-line basis over the expected
remaining lifetime of the inactive members receiving benefits under the plan (15 years)

Asset retirement obligations

The Company recognizes the liability for an asset retitement that results from acquisition,
construction, development or normal operations. The liability for an asset retirement is initially
recorded at its fair value in the year in which it is incurred and when a reasonable estimate of
fair value can be made. The corresponding cost is capitalized as part of the related assct and is
amortized over the asset's useful life. In subsequent years, the liability is adjusted for changes
resulting from the passage of time and revisions to either the timing or the amount of the
original estimate of the undiscounted cash flows. Any adjustment to the liability of its fair
value as a result of the passage of time is charged to earnings.

Page 12
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2009

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Comprehensive Income

CICA Handbook Section 1530 requires the presentation of comprehensive income and its
components in a financial statement. Comprehensive income is composed of the Company’s net
income and other comprehensive income (OCI), which includes unrealized gains and losses on
changes in the fair value of the effective portion of cash flow hedging instruments. The
Company discloses comprehensive income in the financial statement “Statement of
Comprehensive Income”. The cumulative changes in OCI are included in Accumulated other
comprehensive income net of tax (AOCI), which is presented as a category of Sharcholder's
equity on the Company’s Balance Sheet.

Financial Instruments

All financial instruments are initially recorded on the balance sheet at fair value except for
certain related party transactions. They are subsequently valucd either at fair value or amortized
cost depending on the classification selected by the Company for the financial instrument,

The Company has classified its financial instruments as follows:

Assefs Classification
Cash and cash equivalents Held for trading (HFT)
Accounts receivable Loans and receivables (LR)
Unbilled revenue Loans and receivables (LR)
Special deposits Held for trading (HFT)
Liabilities Classification

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Other liabilities (OL)
Accounts payable to the City of Brantford Other liabilities (OL)
Interest payable to the City of Brantford Other liabilities (OL})

Due to affiliates Other liabilities (OL)
Long-term debt Other liabilities (OL)
Customer deposits Other liabilities (OL)
Derivative liabilities Held for trading (HFT)

The Company has elected to add transaction costs related to financial instruments classified as
other than HFT to the carrying amount of the financial instrument.

The Company has elected to use settlement-date accounting for regular-way purchases and sales
of financial assets.

Page 13
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Brantford Power Inc. oy
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2009

3. Changes in Accounting Policies

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the following new Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants’ (CICA) Handbook Sections:

1100, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
3064, Goodwill and Intangibles
3465, Income Taxes

3862, Financial Instruments —Disclosures

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

CICA Handbook Section 1100 was amended to remove the temporary exemption that provided
relief to entities subject to rate regulation from the requirement to apply Section 1100 to the
recognition and measurement of assets and liabilities arising from rate regulation. In
accordance with Section 1100, the Company determined all of its regulatory assets and
liabilities qualified for recognition under Canadian GAAP.

The implementation of this standard did not have any impact on the Company's results of
operations or financial position.

Goodwill and Intangibles

In February 2008, CICA Handbook Section 3064 was issued, replacing Sections 3062,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, and Section 3450, Research and Development Costs.
The new standard provides more comprehensive guidance on the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of goodwill and intangible assets in accordance with the definition
of an asset and the criteria for asset recognition, in particular for internally generated intangible
assets.

This change in accounting standard has been adopted retrospectively and resulted in the
reclassification of $209,495 related to land rights, stranded meters and computer software
previously included in property, plant and equipment to intangible assets on the balance sheet at
December 31, 2008.

Page 14
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Brantford Power Inc. 22

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2009

3. Changes in Accounting Policies - continued

Income Taxes

In December 2007, the CICA revised Handbook Section 3465 Income Taxes. Amendments to
this Handbook Section requires the recognition of future income tax assets and liabilities as
well as a separate regulatory asset or liability for the amount of future income taxes expected to
be included in future rates and recovered from or paid to customers. Section 3465 requires rate
regulated companies to make these changes prospectively to its annual financial statements
beginning January 1, 2009. The Company had elected to adopt the future income tax assets and
liabilities on its financial statements beginning January 1, 2007. The Company adopted the
requirement to record the separate regulatory asset or liability in its financial statements
beginning January 1, 2009.

4" As of December 31, 2009, the Company recorded a regulatory liability of $547,982 (note 9).

Financial Instruments - Disclosures and Presentation

In June 2009, the CICA amended Section 3862, Financial Instruments - Disclosures to include
additional disclosure requirements about the fair value measurement of financial instruments
and enhanced liquidity risk disclosure. These amendments only impact the Company's
disclosures and are reflected in note 20. '

Section 3862 now requires that all financial instruments measured at fair value on the balance
sheet be categorized into one of three hicrarchy levels, described below, for disclosure
purposes. Each level is based on the transparency of the inputs used to measure the fair values
of assets and liabilities:

Level 1 Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices of identical instruments in active markets.

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 One or more significant inputs used in a valuation technique are unobservable
in determining fair values of the instruments.

Determination of fair value and the resulting hierarchy requires the use of observable market
data whenever available. The classification of a financial instrument in the hierarchy is based
upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the measurement of fair value.

Page 15
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2009

4, Future Changes in Accounting Policies

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

In February 2008, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) confirmed that publicly
accountable enterprises will be required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian GAAP effective
January 1, 2011. The adoption date of January 1, 2011 will require the restatement, for
comparative purposes, of amounts reported by the Company of its year ended December 31,
2010, and of the opening balance sheet as at January 1, 2010.

The Company is continuing to assess the financial reporting impacts of the adoption of [FRS on
its financial statements. The Company does anticipate significant changes to those accounting
policies which are unique to rate regulated entities under Canadian GAAP. In particular, the
adoption of IFRS is expected to result in significant changes to the accounting of regulatory
assets and liabilities and to the capitalization and other accounting policies applicable to self
constructed property, plant and equipment. The Company also anticipates a significant increase
in disclosure resulting from the adoption of IFRS and is continuing to assess the level of
disclosure required. At this time, the impact on the Company's future financial position and
results of operations is not reasonably determinable or estimable.

5. Rate Setting

The rates of the Company's electricity distribution business are subject to regulation by the
OEB.

The Company purchases electricity from the Independent Electricity System Operator (the
IESO) at spot market or prescribed rates and charges its customers unbundled rates. The
unbundled rates include the actual cost or prescribed cost of the electricity, transmission,
wholesale market service charges and an approved rate for electricity distribution. The cost of
electricity transmission and connection charges and debt retirement charges are collected by
Brantford Power Inc. and remitted fo the IESO and the Ontario Electricity Financial
Corporation (the OEFC) respectively. The Company retains the distribution charges reflected
on the customer billings.
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Brantford Power Inc. P2y
Notes to the Financial Statements )
for the year ended December 31, 2009

5. Rate Setting - continued

The OEB has the general power to include or exclude costs, revenues, losses or gains in the
distribution rates of a specific period, resulting in a change in the timing of accounting
recognition from that which would have applied in an unregulated company. Such change in
timing gives rise to the recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities. The Company's
regulatory assets represent certain amounts receivable from customers in the future and costs
that have been deferred for accounting purposes because it is probable that they will be
recovered in future rates. In addition, the Company has recorded regulatory liabilities which
represent amounts of expenses incurred in different periods than would be the case had the
company been unregulated.

Specific regulatory assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 9.

In the absence of rate regulation, distribution revenue would have been higher by $339,249
(2008 - $123,807), cost of power would have been lower by $1,244,625 (2008 - $4,209,110),
distribution operations and maintenance would have been higher by $29,756 (2008 - §19,371)
and interest income would have been higher by $73,940 (2008 - $271,720). The net effect, in
the absence of rate regulation, is a pre-tax increase in net income for 2009 of $1,628,058 (2008
- $4,585,266).

The Company administers several programs through the Ontario Power Authority {OPA)
conservation project. The revenues and expenses related to these programs are not subject to
the regulation of the OEB.

On February 25, 2009, Brant County Power Inc. (BCPI) filed a motion with the OEB to review
and vary the Company's 2008 Electricity Distribution Rates. BCPI is disputing the rates they
are being charged as well as the date that the Company can bill retroactively. This motion has
resulted in a written hearing that is in the final arguments stage. BCPI has refused to pay the
monthly invoices that the Company has issued. As of December 31, 2009, accounts receivable
for BCPI on this issue total $1,261,555 (2008 - $237,205). During 2009, the Company billed
BCPI electricity distribution service charges in the amount of $336,647 (2008 - $236,986). The
Company also billed transmission charges totaling $669,987 (2008 - $90,665).

On November 7, 2008 the Company filed an application for 2009 rates on the basis of the
OEB's second generation Incentive Regulation Mechanism (IRM) policy which incorporates an
OEB-approved formula that considers inflation and efficiency targets. On March 20, 2009, the
OEB released its decision. The revised rates were approved with an effective date of May 1,
2009.

On October 21, 2009 the Company filed an application for 2010 rates also on the basis of the
OEB's second generation IRM policy. This application has proposed the repayment of
$7,595,490 in regulatory assets and liabilities over a four year period. These rates would be
effective May 1, 2010. At this time, the OEB has not issued its decision on this application.
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Brantford Power Inc. fy 2%

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended December 31, 2009

6. Froperty, Plant and Equipment

2009 2008
Accunmulated Net Book  Net Book
Cost Amortization . Value . Value
3 3 s $

Land 181,961 - ‘181,961 181,961
Buildings 1,163,732 124,710 1,039,022, 1,062,296
Transformer station 4,469,541 556,385 3,913,156 4,024,895
Distribution stations 74,427 22,582 51,845 54,326
Distribution lines - overhead 25,773,737 7,436,732 18,337,005 - 18,124,699
Distribution lines - underground 27,781,094 6,587,742 21,193,352 - 19,627,578
Distribution transformers 16,194,089 4,334,280 11,859,809 11,614,562
Distribution meters 6,537,838 1,784,144 4,753,694 5,411,693
Load control units 547,972 502,305 45,667 100,464
Vehicles 2,681,297 1,811,237 - 870,060 832,698
Tools and other equipment 623,802 144,901 478,901 393,528
Capital contributions (3,389,425) (387,281) (3,002,144) (2,392,471)
Other utility plant 37,327 - 33T 95,528
Work in progress 638,414 - - 68,414 44,336

82,745,806 22,917,737 59,828,069 59,176,093

7. Intangible Assets

2009 2008
Accumulated * Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization - Value Value
Land rights and easements 5,968 - 5,968 5,968
Stranded meters 1,209,614 284,149 925465 69,267
Software 196,355 72,836 123,519 134,260

1,411,937 356,985 - 1,054,952 209,495
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Brantford Power Inc. Ry 2l
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2009

8. Related Party Transactions

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Brantford Energy Corporation and Brantford
Energy Corporation is wholly owned by The Corporation of the City of Brantford (the City).
Brantford Energy Corporation also owns Brantford Hydro Inc. and Brantford Generation Inc.

The Company has entered into a shared services agreement with the City, whereby the City will
provide administrative, customer care, maintenance and operational services for the Company.
The exchange amount for these services has been set out in the agreement. Total charges from
the City under this shared agreement were $8,678,167 (2008 - $8,594,206). As at December
31, 2009 the balance owing to the City for these services was $1,654,882 (2008 - $1,390,347).

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company provided electricity to the City in the
amount of $4,796,370 (2008 - $4,645,562). The Company also provided other services to the
City in the amount of $258,548 (2008 - $319,985).

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company paid property tax to the City in the
amount of $22,352 (2008 - $23,107)

The Company obtains management services from Brantford Energy Corporation, Total charges
for these services were $118,960 (2008 - $176,889). As at December 31, 2009 the balance
owing to Brantford Energy Corporation for these services was $26,880 (2008 - $77,044).

The Company charges pole rental fees to Brantford Hydro Inc. These rental fees allow fibre
optic cables to be attached to the Company's distribution assets. Total rental fees for this access
were $40,856 (2008 - $35,134).

The Company provided services to Brantford Generation Inc. on behalf of Hydro One Inc.
Total charges for these services were $461,876 (2008 - Nil)
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Notes to the Financial Staienents s
for the year ended December 31, 2009

9. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

Based on existing regulatery orders or the expectation of future regulatory orders, the Company
has recorded the following amounts, net of income tax and amortization where applicable,
which are expected to be recovered from or refunded to customers:

2009 2008
5 3

Regulatory assets ’
Retail Market Settlement : LA

Retail settlement variance account - Global Adjustment = 2,064,442 794,154

Retailer cost variance accounts T 302,714 267,776
Other SRR e

Smart meters 1,158,000 -

Other regulatory assets - 74,651 1,028
Net regulatory assets . 3,599,807 1,062,958
Regulatory liabilities
Retail Market Settlement SRR v

Retail settlement variance acccunts 9,200,367 6,661,387
Other '

Smart meters R e 281,633

Low valtage variance 33642 33,294

Regulatory future income tax liability 547,982 -
Regulatory liabilities refundable through approved rate i e T

riders oo 1,307,070 1,563,093
Net regulatory liabilities 11,089,061 8,539,407

The retail settlement variance accounts represent differences between charges billed to
customers using the prescribed prices as outlined in the OEB's Retail Seftlement Code and the
actual costs billed to Brantford Power Inc. by the IESO.

The retailer cost variance accounts represent differences between charges billed to retailers
using the prescribed prices as outlined in the OEB's Retail Settlement Code and the actual costs
paid by Brantford Power Inc. to operate and maintain the systems related to the retail market.

On April 12, 2006, the OEB approved the establishment of regulatory deferral accounts for
smart meter-related expenditures and approved a monthly rate adder charge of $0.28 per
metered customer for the Company. Effective May 1, 2009, the OEB increased the monthly
adder to $1.00 per metered customer. In its 2010 application to the OEB, the Company has
applied for a monthly rate adder charge of $2.07 per metered customer,
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Brantford Power Inc. vy A

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2009

9, Regulatory Assets and Liabilities - continued

The Company has recorded a regulatory asset consisting of the net balance of capital and
operating expenditures for smart meters, less recoveries received from the rate adder. These
expenditures and recoveries will continue to be reported as regulatory assets or liabilities until
the Company applies to the OEB to redistribute the amounts to capital or operations.

The Company has recorded a regulatory liability account that relates to the expected future
electricity distribution rate reduction for customers arising from timing differences in the
recognition of future tax assets.

10. Long-Term Debt
2009 2008
-8 $
Note payable, bearing interest at 6.25%, repayable to the S
City, interest only payable annually - due February, 2011 24,189,168 24,189,168
Royal Bank, non-revolving term facility with interest at S
prime repayable in quarterly instalments, due January, _
2010 5,056,036 5,365,495
Royal Bank, non-revolving term facility with interest at S
prime repayable in quarterly instaiments, due November, Sl
2011 S 907,251 1,007,237
Ontario Infrastructure Projects Corporation non-revolving = -
term facility with interest at 5.14% repayable in semi

annual instalments due December, 2032 - 2,322,570 2,374,040
Ontario Infrastructure Projects Corporation construction : T
advances with interest at 0.95% 3,842,948 -
: - 36,317,973 32,935,940
Less current portion 1 - 499,546 474 847

35,818,427 32,461,093

The City has an option to extend the maturity date of the promissory note for successive five
year periods. The City also has the option to convert the principal sum outstanding into
common shares of the Company at a conversion ratio of $ 100 per common share. Interest
payable to the City of $1,511,823 (2008 - $1,511,823) was outstanding as at December 31,
2009.

The Company entered into a swap agreement during 2006 with Royal Bank to hedge against
exposure to interest rate fluctuations. The agreement represents a notional principal amount of
$ 5,900,000, Under the terms of the agreement, the company has contracted to pay interest at a
fixed rate of 4.71% while receiving a variable rate equivalent to the one month Canadian Dollar
Offered Rate to be repriced quarterly.
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10. Long-Term Debt - continued

The Company entered into a second swap agreement during 2006 with Royal Bank to hedge
against exposure to interest rate fluctuations. The agreement represents a notional principal
amount of $ 1.200,000. Under the terms of the agreement, the company has contracted to pay
interest at a fixed rate of 4.97% while receiving a variable rate equivalent to the one month
Canadian Dollar Offered Rate to be repriced quarterly.

These credit facilities are secured by general security agreement over all assets of the Company
and an assignment of related fire insurance.

Estimated principal repayment requirements are as follows:

$
2010 499,546
2011 29,771,554
2012 360,374
2013 363,517
2014 366,823

11, Employee Future Benefits

The Company acquired various life insurance, health care related and dental coverage plan
liabilities for certain retired employees of the former Hydro-Electric Commission of the City of
Brantford. Travel, dental, vision and semi-private health care coverage is continued until the
retiree reaches 65 years of age. Life insurance and extended health care coverage is continued
until the retiree's death. The Company is also obligated to provide post retirement benefits to
an active employee,

The Company measures the accrued benefit obligation for accounting purposes as of December
31 of each year. The accrued benefit obligation as at December 31, 2009 and the expense for
the period ended December 31, 2009 are based on an actuarial valuation done as at January 1,
2008.

The obligation is unfunded since no assets have been segregated and restricted to provide the
post-retirement benefits.
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11, Employee Future Benefits - continued

Significant Assumptions

The key weighted-average assumptions used by the Company for the measurement of the
benefit obligation and benefit expense are summarized as follows:

2000 2008
8 $
To determine benefit obligation at end of year :
Discount rate 5.0% 6.0%
Assumed long-term rate of return on assets N/A N/A
To determine benefit expense (income) for the year L
Discount rate 6.0% 5.5%
Assumed long-term rate of return on assets N/A N/A
Rate of increase in future compensation - NA N/A
Health care cost trend rates at end of year o
Initial rate - 8.15% 9.0%
Ultimate rate _ 4.75% 4.75%
Year ultimate rate reached 2013 2013
Sensitivity Analysis Change in Change in
Obligation Expense
b $
Impact of 1% increase in assumed health care trend rate 98,000 10,000
Impact of 1% decrease in assumed health care trend rate (86,000) (9,000)
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11. Employee Future Benefits - continued

- 2009 2008
) $

Change in benefit obligation S
Benefit obligation at beginning of year © 1,528,597 926,533
Interest cost on benefit obligation 90,974 83,451
Benefits paid 24,739 (32,600)
Actuarial loss ) 118,615 551,213
Benefit obligation at end of year L 1,713,447 1,528,597
Change in fair value of assets
Fair value of assets at beginning of year LR e -
Employer contributions 24,739 32,600
Benefits paid L (24,139) (32,600
Fair value of assets at end of year el - -
Reconciliation of funded status to accrued benefit

liability L
Deficit of fair value of assets over benefit obligationatend = = 7~

of year S 1,T13,447 1,528,597
Unamortized actuarial loss S (939,082) (871,821)
Accrued benefit liability at end of year 774,365 656,776
Reconciliation of accrued benefit liability SR LT
Accrued benefit liability at beginning of year ST 656,776 550,616
Benefit expense recognized LT 142,328 138,760
Benefits paid o (24,739) (32,600)
Accrued benefit liability at end of year Sl 774,365 656,776
Annual benefit expense : e
Interest cost on benefit obligation S 90,974 83,451
Actuarial gain or loss S 51,354 55,309
Benefit expense recognized Lo 142,328 138,760
Cash payments : ST
Benefit premiums paid . 85,533 105,450
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12. Contingencies and Commitments

General Liability Insurance

The Company has obtained general liability and enhanced directors and officers insurance
coverage from the Municipal Electric Association Reciprocal Insurance Exchange (The Mearie
Group) expiring January 1, 2011. The Mearie Group is an insurance reciprocal whereby all
members through the unincorporated group share risks with each other. Members of the Mearic
Group are assessed a premium deposit at policy execution. Should the group experience losses
that are in excess of the accumulated premium deposits of its members combined with reserves
and supplementary insurance, members would be assessed a supplementary or retro assessment
on a pro-rata basis for the years in which the Company was a member.

As at December 31, 2009, the Company has not been made aware of any additional
assessments. Participation in The Mearie Group covers a three year underwriting period which
expires on January 1, 2013,

Class Action

This action has been brought under Class Proceedings Act, 1992, The plaintiff class seeks
$500 million in restitution for amounts paid to Toronto Hydro and to other Ontario municipal
electric utilities (LDC's) who received late payment penalties which constitute interest at an
effective rate in excess of 60% per year, contrary to section 347 of the Criminal Code.
Pleadings have closed in this action. The action has not yet been certified as a class action and
no discoveries have been held, as the parties were awaiting the outcome of a similar
proceedings brought against Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc. (formerly Consumers Gas).

On April 22, 2004, the Supreme Court of Canada released a decision in the Consumers Gas
case rejecting all of the defences which had been raised by Enbridge, although the Court did not
permit the Plaintiff class to recover damages for any period prior to the issuance of the
Statement of Claim in 1994 challenging the validity of late payment pena'ties. The Supreme
Court remitted the matter back to the Ontario Superior Court of Justice for determination of the
damages. At the end of 2006, a mediation process resulted in the settlement of the damages
payable by Enbridge and that settlement was approved by the Ontario Superior Court.

In 2007, Enbridge filed an application to the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) to recover the Court-
approved amount and related amounts from ratepayers, On February 4, 2008 the OER
approved recovery of the said amounts from ratepayers over a five year period.

After the release by the Supreme Court of Canada of its 2004 decision in the Consumers Gas
case, the plaintiffs in the LDC late payment penalties class action indicated their intention to
proceed with their litigation against the LDC's. The parties are in settlement discussions but no
settlement has been reached.
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12, Contingencies and Commitments - continued

At this time, it is not possible to quantify the effect, if any, on the financial statements of the
Company. Therefore, no provision has been made in these financial statements with respect to
any losses which may arise as a result of this action.

Smart Meter Initiative

The Province of Ontario has committed to have “Smart Meter” electricity meters installed in
800,000 homes and small businesses throughout Ontario by the end of 2010. Smart Meters
permit consumption to be recorded within specific time intervals and specific tariffs to be
levied within such intervals.

The Company has installed approximately 6,667 Smart Meters as of the end of 2009 and
anticipates having installed a total of 37,240 Smart Meters upon completion of its mass
deployment.

13. Share Capital

Authorized
Unlimited humber of common shares
- 2009 2008
8 $
Issued
1,001 common shares 22,437,503 22,437,505
14. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
2009 2008
TR P 3
Balance at beginning of year 2 (696,074) (63,879)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax - 35.3,596. (632,195)
Balance at end of year, net of tax s (342,478) (696,074}
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15. Pension Plan

16.

The Company participates in the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System (OMERS),
a multi-employer plan, on behalf of its employee. The plan is a contributory defined benefit
pension plan. Contributions are 6.3% for employee earnings below the ycar's maximum
pensionable earnings and 9.5% thereafter. The contribution rates are expected to change to
6.4% for employee eatnings below the year's maximum pensionable earnings and 9.7%
thereafter for 2010. During 2009, the Company expensed contributions totaling $13,304 (2008
- $13,106) made to OMERS in respect of the employer's required contributions to the plan.

Electricity Distribution Service Charges

The company is licensed by the OEB to distribute electricity. As a licensed distributor, the
Company is responsible for billing customers for electricity generated by third parties and the
related costs of providing electricity service, such as transmission services and other services
provided by third parties. The Company is required, pursuant to regulation, to remit such
amounts to these third parties, irrespective of whether the Company ultimately collects these
amounts from customers. The Company may file to recover uncollected debt retirement
charges from OEFC once each year. Otherwise, the Company is unable to recover uncollected
amounts formerly remitted to these third parties. The Company retains only its electricity
distribution service charge that is regulated by the OEB.

Electricity distribution service charges comprise:

2009 2008

Gross customer billings 94,755,101 96,055,230
Less pass through charges billed by the Company '

Electricity charges paid through to generators (57,566,593) (57,509,074)

Transmission and miscellaneous charges ©{9,884,731) (10,304,664)

Market service charges - (6,087,707) (6,335,103)

Debt retirement charges (6,409,274) (6,872,855)
Total electricity distribution service charges 14,806,796 15,033,534
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17. Statement of Cash Flows
2009 2008
8 $
Changes in non-cash working capital I
Accounts receivable (945,169) 704,215
Unbilled revenue (1,263,432) 81,783
Inventories 47,775 (53,375)
Prepaid expenses (16,749} (43,521)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 535,103 (177,864)
Accounts payable to the City of Brantford 264,535 (106,282)
Interest payable to the City of Brantford - (1,568,320)
Due to Brantford Energy Corporation ~(50,164) 8,412
Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 106,689 (1,336,714)
(1,321,412) (2,491,666)
18. Amortization
- 2009 2008
$ $
Amortization of capital assets 3,16_6_,455. 3,029,972
Amortization of capital assets charged to distribution :
operations and maintenance - 278,557 246,533
- 3,442,012 3,276,505
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19. Capital Disclosures
The Company's main objectives when managing capital are to:

=  ensure ongoing access to funding to maintain and improve the electricity
distribution system;

= ensure compliance with covenants related to its credit facilities; and

= align its capital structure with the debt to equity structure deemed by the OEB.

As at December 31, 2009, the Company's definition of capital includes shareholder's equity and
long-term debt. This definition remains unchanged from prior years. As at December 31,
2009, shareholder's equity amounts to $32,833,343 (2008 - $32,047,217) and long-term deht,
amounts to  $36,317,973 (2008 - $32,935,940). The Company's capital structure as at
December 31, 2009 is 53% debt and 47% equity (2008 - 51% debt and 49% equity). There
have been no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the year.

The Company's long-term debt agreements include both financial and non-financial covenants.
As at December 31, 2009 and as at December 31, 2008, the Company was in compliance with
all covenants.

20. Financial Instruments

Interest Rate Risk

Interest is paid on customer deposits at a market rate reset quarterly as directed by the Ontario
Energy Board.

Two term facility loans bear interest at floating rates and thus, the carrying values approximate
fair values. However, the Company has entered into two interest rate swap transactions,
derivative instruments designated as a cash flow hedges, the effect of which is to fix the interest
rate on the first §5,061,000 term facility loan at 4.71% and the second $909,000 term facility
loan at 4.97%. The potential replacement cost to Brantford Power Inc. of the interest rate
swaps, representing estimated fair value as presented on the balance sheet, was $492,360 (2008
- $996,127), which was in the favour of Royal Bank. Net unrealized gain in fair value of
$523,506 (2008 - loss of $850,425) is presented in cutrent year Other Comprehensive (Loss)
Income. The Company entered into these interest rate swap transactions to fix the interest rates
over the long term and intends to hold these to maturity at which time there should be no
replacement cost.
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20. Financial Instruments - continued

Credit Risk

The Company grants credit to its customers in the normal course of business and monitors their
financial condition and reviews the credit history of new customers. The Company is currently
holding customer deposits on hand in the amount of $2,578,825 (2008 - $2,421,696) which is
reflected on the Balance Sheet. Allowances of $569,000 (2008 - $480,000) are also maintained
for potential credit losses. The Company's accounts receivable do not reflect the concentrated
risk of default from exposure to large customers. At December 31, 2009, the outstanding
amounts receivable from the largest ten customers represented $1,599,241 or 22% of the total
outstanding accounts receivable. Management believes that it has adequately provided for any
exposure to normal customer and retailer credit risk.

Liguidity Risk
The Company's objective is to have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. The

Company monitors its cash balances and cashflows generated from operations to meet its
requirements.

Prudential Support

Brantford Power Inc. is required, through the Independent Electricity System Operator (IESO),
{o provide security to mitigate the company's risk of default based on its expected activity in the
electricity market. The IESO could draw on this guarantee if Company fails to make a payment
required by a default notice issued by the IESO. The maximum potential payment is the face
value of the bank letter of credit. As at December 31, 2009, the Company provided prudential
support in the form of a bank letter of credit of $9,375,721 (2008 - $9,375,721).

Revolving Term Facility

As at December 31, 2009, the Company has been authorized for a revolving term facility of
$7,000,000 of which NIL had been drawn upon. The facility bears interest at prime and is
secured by a general security agreement over all assets of the Company and assignment of
related fire insurance.

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments

a) Establishing fair value

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, special deposits,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, accounts payable to the City of Brantford, interest
payable to the City of Brantford, and due to Brantford Encrgy Corporation approximate
their fair values due to the immediate or short-term maturity of these financial instruments.
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20. Financial Instruments - continued

Fair values for other financial instruments, detailed below, have been estimated with
reference to quoted market prices for actual or similar instruments where available, except
for certain related party transactions.

Customer deposits fair value equals carrying value. Interest is paid on deposits on a
monthly basis at a market rate, reset quarterly, as directed by the Ontario Energy Board.

The fixed rate long-term debt facility funded by Ontario Infrastructure Projects Corporation
(OIPC) has an estimated fair value of $2,310,200 (carrying value - $2,322,570). The fair
value was determined using the present value of the cash flows using the quoted OIPC
market rate for the debt at December 31, 2009, of 5.18% per annum, (actual rate — 5.14%
per annum). The loan is classified as an Other Liability (OL) with no resulting adjustment
to carrying value.

The promissory note payable to the Corporation of the City of Brantford, classified as an
OL, is valued at face value. It is not practicable within constraints of timeliness or cost to
measure reliably the fair value of this financial liability that originated in a related party
transaction.

The fair value of derivative instruments is calculated using pricing models that incorporate
current market prices and the contractual prices of the underlying instruments, the time
value of money and yield curves.

b) Fair value hierarchy

Financial instruments recorded at fair value on the Balance Sheet are classified using a fair
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level | - valuation based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - valuation techniques based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (ie as prices) or indirectly (ie
derived from prices);

Level 3 - valuation techniques using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The fair value hierarchy requires the use of observable market inputs whenever such inputs
exist. A financial instrument is classified to the lowest level of the hierarchy for which a
significant input has been considered in measuring fair value.
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20. Financial Instruments - continued

The following table presents the financial instruments recorded at fair value in the Balance
Sheet, classified using the fair value hierarchy described above:

Total financial

assets and
liabilities at fair
Level 1 Level2 Level3 value
$ $ $ §
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7,113,473 - - 7,113,473
Accounts receivable 7,153,783 - - 7,153,783
Unbilled revenue 9,612,975 - - 9,612,975
Special deposits 2,578,825 - - 2,578,825
Total financial assets 26,459,056 - - 26,459,056
Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities 9,948,753 - - 9,948,753
Accounts payable to the City of
Brantford 1,654,882 - - 1,654,882
Interest payable to the City of
Brantford 1,511,823 - - 1,511,823
Customer deposits 2,578,825 - - 2,578,825
Long-term debt 36,305,603 - - 36,303,603
Total financial liabilities 51,999,886 - - 51,999,886

During the year, there has been no transfer of amounts between Level | and Level 2 and no
financial assets or liabilities have been identified as Level 3.
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21. Payments in Lieun of Corporate Income Taxes

The Company's income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2009 consists of the
following:

Temporary differences which give rise to future income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

2009 2008
$ $
Regulatory assets 2,868,201 2,249,490
Cumulative eligible capital 185,860 © 229,600
Allowance for doubtful accounts 176,390 . 158,400
Property, plant and equipment 414,362 120,130
Employee future benefits 195,170 174,800
Unrealized losses on derivative liabilities 113,020 282,930
Future income tax assets (liabilities) 3,953,003 3215350
Distributed as such:
Future payments in lieu of corporate income tax asset
Current 176,390 158,400
Non-current 3,776,613 3,056,950
3,953,003 3,215,350

The impact of differences between the Company's reported payments in licu of corporate
income taxes and the expense that would otherwise result from the application of statutory rates
is as follows:

2009 2008
B B $
Income tax expense at the combined basis federal and ER
provincial statutory tax rate s 1,050,977 1,149,935
Net change in regulatory assets 900,455 1,679,319
Capital cost allowance in excess of amortization o (121,333) (80,317)
Net change in tax reserves 91,885 (1,351)
Tax effect of gain on sale of fixed assets : 7,580 (1,524}
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for income _
tax purposes 858 8,551
1,930,422 2,754,613

22. Comparative Figures

Certain prior year figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.
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Management Report
December 31, 2010

The accompanying financial statements are the responsibility of management of Brantford Power
Inc. In management's opinion, these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. Management has selected accounting principles
and methods that are appropriate to the Company's circumstances. Financial statements are not
precise since they include certain amounts based on estimates and judgments. Management has
determined such amounts on a reasonable basis in order to ensure that the financial statements are
presented fairly, in all material respects. The notes to the financial statements and any other
supplementary information presented are consistent with that in the financial statements.

The Company maintains systems of internal accounting and administrative controls that are
designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial information is relevant, reliable and
accurate, that transactions are properly authorized and that the Company's assets are properly
accounted for and adequately safeguarded.

The financial statements have been examined by Deloitte & Touche LLP, the external auditors of
the Company. The responsibility of the external auditors is to express their opinion on whether the
financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles.

The board of directors, through the finance committee, is responsible for ensuring that management
fulfills its responsibility for financial reporting and internal control. The finance committee meets
periodically with management, as well with the external auditors to satisfy itself that each party is
properly discharging its responsibilities with respect to internal controls and financial reporting.
The finance committee also reviews the financial statements and annual report and recommends
their approval to the board of directors. Deloitte & Touche LLP has full and free access to the
finance committee, with and without the presence of management.

George Mychailenko Brian D'Amboise, CA
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
April 18,2011 April 18,2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors of
Brantford Power Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Brantford Power Inc., which comprise the
balance sheet as at December 31, 2010, and the statements of operations, retained earnings, comprehensive
income and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Brantford Power Inc. as at December 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Dze o é{mud\? LLf

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
April 18,2011
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Brantford Power Inc.
Balance Sheet

as at December 31, 2010
Assets 2010 2009
$ $
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11,180,750 7,113,473
Accounts receivable 8,483,553 7,153,783
Unbilled revenue 8,995,538 9,612,975
Inventories 819,450 868,303
Special deposits 1,056,193 609,227
Prepaid expenses 147,137 140,368
Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 584,850 851,475
Future payments in lieu of corporate income taxes - note 20 171,766 176,390
31,439,231 26,525,994
Property, plant and equipment - note 5 58,307,002 59,828,069
Other Assets
Regulatory assets - note 8 5,046,561 3,599,807
Long-term special deposits 1,452,327 1,969,598
Long-term prepaid expenses 112,793 130,754
Future payments in lieu of corporate income taxes - note 20 3,224,769 3,776,613
Intangible assets - note 6 4,547,613 1,054,952
14,384,063 10,531,724
104,130,296 96,885,787
See accompanying rotes Poge 4



Brantford Power Inc.
Balance Sheet

as at December 31, 2010
Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity 2010 2009
$ $
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 10,822,994 9,948,753
Accounts payable to the City of Brantford - note 7 1,697,640 1,654,882
Interest payable to the City of Brantford - note 9 1,511,823 1,511,823
Due to Brantford Energy Corporation - note 7 47,533 26,880
Current portion of customer deposits 1,056,193 609,227
Current portion of long-term debt - note 9 1,250,304 499,546
16,386,487 14,251,111
Long-term debt - note 9 40,280,376 35,818,427
Other Liabilities
Regulatory liabilities - note 8 11,009,791 11,089,061
Long-term customer deposits 1,452,327 1,969,598
Employee future benefits - note 10 893,739 774,365
Derivative liabilities - note 19 525,435 492,360
13,881,292 14,325,384
Contingencies and Commitments - note 11
Shareholder's Equity
Share capital - note 12 22,437,505 22,437,505
Retained Earnings 11,519,294 10,395,838
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss - note 13 (374,658) (342,478)
33,582,141 32,490,865
104,130,296 96,885,787

Signed on behalf of the Board:

Director

Director

See accompanying notes
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Brantford Power Inc.
Statement of Retained Earnings
for the year ended December 31, 2010

2010 2009
5 $
Retained Earnings, Beginning of Year 10,395,838 9,609,712
Change in accounting policy for the recoguition of future
income tax regulatory liabilities - (682,930)

10,395,838 8,926,782
Net Income 1,873,456 2,219,056
Dividends (750,000} (750,000)
Retained Earnings, End of Year 11,519,294 10,395,838
See accompanying notes Page 6



Brantford Power Inc.
Statement of Operations
for the year ended December 31, 2010

2010 2009
$ $
Revenue
Electricity distribution service charges - note 15 15,293,962 14,806,796
Ontario Power Authority conservation programs 1,130,495 2,128,577
Specific service charges 635,867 575,804
Interest income 129,666 128,823
Other income 285497 333,732
17,475,487 17,973,732
Expenses
Distribution operations and maintenance 3,338,647 3,415,860
Billing and collecting 2,023,191 2,011,243
General administration 2,187,128 2,261,022
Ontario Power Authority conservation programs 926,976 1,785,379
Interest on long-term debt 2,030,478 1,976,824
Other financing expenses 89,606 98,782
Capital tax 24236 151,200
Amortization - note 17 3,374,841 3,166,455
13,995,103 14,866,765
Income before payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 3,480,384 3,106,967
Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes
Current 1,120,928 1,930,422
Future 486,000 (1,042,511)
1,606,928 887,911
Net income 1,873,456 2,219,056

See accompanying notes
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Brantford Power Inc.
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended December 31, 2010

2010 2009
$ $
Net Income 1,873,456 2,219,056
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Unrealized (losses) gains on derivative instruments
designated as cash flow hedges - Note 19 (42,910) 523,506
Future recoveries (payments) in lieu of corporate income
taxes 10,730 (169,910)
(32,180) 353,596
Comprehensive Income 1,841,276 2,572,652
See accompanying notes Page 8



Brantford Power Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended December 31, 2010

2010 2009
S 3
Operating activities
Net income 1,873,456 2,219,056
Items not affecting cash
Amortization - note 17 3,641,081 3,442,012
Future payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 486,000 (1,042,511)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (51,067) 22,969
Other items not affecting cash 220,957 (374,248)
6,170,427 4,267,278
Changes in non-cash working capital components - note 16 534,028 (1,321,412)
6,704,455 2,945,866
Investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (5,847,684) (5,760,418)
Increase in regulatory assets (1,446,754) (2,536,849)
{Decrease) increase in regulatory liabilities (79,270) 2,549,654
Decrease (increase) in special deposits 70,305 (157,129)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 89,488 104,333
(7,213,915) (5,800,409)
Financing activities
Proceeds of issuance of long-term debt 5,700,000 3,851,000
Capital contributions received 196,588 745,256
Repayment of long-term debt (499,546) (474,847)
(Decrease) increase in customer deposits (70,305) 157,129
Dividends paid (750,000) (750,000)
4,576,737 3,528,538
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,067,277 673,995
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 7,113,473 6,439,478
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 11,180,750 7,113,473
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flows
Interest received 73,961 115,934
Interest paid 2,020,425 1,941,552
Payment for income taxes 1,632,950 3,176,710

See accompanying notes

Page 9



Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2010

1.

Incorporation

On March 1, 2000, Brantford Power Inc. (the Company) was incorporated under the Business
Corporations Act (Ontario) along with its affiliate companies, Brantford Hydro Inc. and
Brantford Energy Corporation. Another affiliated company, Brantford Generation Inc., was
incorporated in 2007. The incorporations were pursuant to the provisions of the Energy
Competition Act, 1998. The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Brantford Energy
Corporation. The Company provides electricity distribution services to residents of the City of
Brantford. The operations of the company are regulated by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB).

Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and policies as set forth in the Accounting
Procedures Manual issued by the OEB under the authority of the Ontario Energy Board Act,
1998. Significant accounting policies are summarized below:

Regulation

The Company is regulated by the OEB and requires OEB approval for any distribution service
rate adjustments. The following accounting policies applicable to rate regulated operations
differ from GAAP for companies operating in an unregulated environment:

Regulatory assets and liabilities

Regulatory assets primarily represent costs that have been deferred because they are
expected to be recovered in future rates. Similarly, regulatory liabilities can arise from
differences in amounts billed to customers under the regulated pricing mechanism and the
corresponding wholesale market cost of power incurred by the utility.

Regulatory assets and liabilities will be recognized for rate-setting and financial statement
purposes only to the extent allowed by the regulator. The Company continually assesses
the likelihood of recovery of each of its regulatory assets and continues to believe that it is
probable that the OEB will factor its regulatory assets and liabilities into the setting of
future rates, If, at some future date, the Company judges that it is no longer probable that
the OEB will include a regulatory asset or liability in future rates, the appropriate carrying
amount will be reflected in the results of operations in the period that the assessment is
made. Asset and liability balances and current vear activities are detailed in Note 8.
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2010

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Contributions in aid of construction

Contributions in aid of construction consist of third party contributions towards the cost of
constructing company assets. Capital contributions for the year of $196,588 (2009 -
$745,256) have been recorded as an offset to capital assets. Amortization of contributed
capital is recorded at an equivalent rate to that used for amortization of the related assets.

Allowance for use of funds during construction

The company capitalizes an allowance for use of funds during construction representing the
cost of funds during the construction period. The rate used is prescribed by the OEB and
updated on a quarterly basis. The total allowance for use of funds during construction
capitalized for the year amounted to $63,402 (2009 - $62,360).

Payment in lieu of income taxes

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Company is required to make payments in lieu of corporate
taxes (PILS) to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC), for the period beginning
on October 1, 2001. These payments are recorded in accordance with the rules for computing
income and taxable capital and other relevant amounts contained in the Jncome Tax Act
(Canada) and the Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario) and modified by the Electricity Act, 1998, and
related regulations.

The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for payments in lieu of
corporate income taxes. Accordingly, future tax assets and liabilities are recognized for future
tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax rates. Future tax assets and liabilities
are measured using enacted or substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the year in which those témporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
In additjon, the effect of future tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in
income in the year that includes the enactment or substantive enactment date.

Page 11



Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2010

2, Accounting Policies - continued

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year. During the years
presented, management has made a number of estimates and valuation assumptions including
allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, unbilled revenue, useful lives, certain accruals,
valuation of financial instruments including derivatives and future income tax liabilities.
Estimates are based on historical experience, current trends and various other assumptions that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from
estimates, including changes as a result of future decisions made by the OEB or the Minister of
Energy.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term investments with maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition.

Inventories

Inventories consist of repair parts, supplies and materials and are valued at the lower of cost or
net realizable value determined using a weighted average method.

Unbilled revenue

Unbilled revenue is an estimate of customers' consumption of power from the last meter
reading during the year to the balance sheet date.
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2010

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and removed from the accounts when disposed
or retired. Costs of assets which are pooled are removed from the accounts at the end of their
estimated average service lives. Gains or losses at retirement or disposition of such assets are
credited or charged to other income. Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful service life as follows.

Buildings 50 years
Transformer station 40 years
Distribution stations ‘ 30 years
Distribution lines - overhead 25 years
Distribution lines - underground 25 years
Distribution transformers 25 years
Distribution meters 25 years
Load control units 10 years
Vehicles 5-8 years
Tools and other equipment 5-10 years
Capital contribution 25 years

Other electric plant and wotk in progress are amortized when put in service.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at cost and amortized over their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. Stranded meters represents distribution meters that have been replaced with
smart meters and reallocated from property, plant and equipment. The OEB has allowed these
retired meters to remain in rate base for rate making purposes. Amortization is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful service life as follows.

Stranded meters 25 years

Software S years
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2010

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Long-term prepaid expenses and special deposits

Long-term prepaid expenses consist of service fees paid providing the Company with the right
to use non-owned specified tangible assets for future periods. These charges are amortized on a
straight-line basis over 10 years representing the expected benefit period.

Amounts are recorded as special deposits when cash is collected related to customer deposits
and are expected to be held for a period exceeding one yeat.

Revenue recognition

Distribution revenue is recorded as revenue in the period to which it relates. Distribution
revenue includes an estimated accrual for the variable component of the distribution rate based
on the electricity delivered but not yet billed to customers from the last meter reading date to
the year end.

Other revenue is recognized as services are rendered or contract milestones are achieved.

Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company reviews the valuation long-term assets when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the assets’ carrying value exceeds the total undiscounted cash flows expected from
their use and eventual disposition. There was no impact on the financial statements as a result
of asset impairments for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Customer deposits

Customer deposits are cash collections from customers and retailers to guarantee the payment
of electricity bills as prescribed by the OEB's Retail Settlement Code, Deposits expected to be
refunded to customers within the next fiscal period are classified as a current liability.

Employee future benefits

The Company provides post-retirement medical and life insurance benefits to eligible
employees. The cost of post-retirement medical and life insurance benefits is expensed using
the projected benefit cost method prorated on services.

The Company has adopted the corridor method of accounting for the actuarially determined
gains and losses. Cumulative gains and losses in excess of 10% of the beginning accrued
benefit obligation are amortized into expense on a staight-line basis over the expected
remaining lifetime of the inactive members receiving benefits under the plan (15 vears)
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2010

2, Accounting Policies - continued

Asset retirement obligations

The Company recognizes the liability for an asset retirement that results from acquisition,
construction, development or normal operations. The liability for an asset retirement is initially
recorded at its fair value in the year in which it is incurred and when a reasonable estimate of
fair value can be made. The corresponding cost is capitalized as part of the related asset and is
amortized over the asset's useful life. In subsequent years, the liability is adjusted for changes
resulting from the passage of time and revisions to either the timing or the amount of the
original estimate of the undiscounted cash flows. Any adjustment to the liability of its fair
value as a result of the passage of time is charged to earnings.

Comprehensive Income

CICA Handbook Section 1530 requires the presentation of comprehensive income and its
components in a financial statement. Comprehensive income is composed of the Company’s net
income and other comprehensive income (OCI), which includes unrealized gains and losses on
changes in the fair value of the effective portion of cash flow hedging instruments. The
Company discloses comprehensive income in the financial statement “Statement of
Comprehensive Income”. The cumulative changes in OCI are included in Accumulated other
comprehensive income net of tax (AOCI), which is presented as a category of Shareholder's
equity on the Company’s Balance Sheet.

Financial Instruments

The Corporation designates its financial instruments in one of the following five categories: (i)
held for trading (HFT); (ii) available for sale (AFS); (iii) held to maturity (HTM); (iv) loans and
receivables (LR); or (v) other liabilities (OL). All financial instruments are initially measured at
fair value. Financial instruments classified as held for trading or available for sale are
subsequently measured at fair value, with any change in fair value recognized in earnings and
other comprehensive income, respectively. All other financial instruments are subsequently
measured at amortized cost.

The Company has elected to add transaction costs related to financial instruments classified as
other than HFT to the carrying amount of the financial instrument.

The Company has elected to use settlement-date accounting for regular-way purchases and sales
of financial assets.
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2010

3. Future Changes in Accounting Policies

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

In February 2008, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) confirmed that publicly
accountable enterprises will be required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian GAAP effective
January 1, 2011, Subsequently, in September 2010, the AcSB issued an optional one year
deferral in adoption of IFRS for rate-regulated entities. The Company qualifies for this deferral
and has elected to defer adoption until January 1, 2012. The adoption date of January 1, 2012
will require the restatement, for comparative purposes, of amounts reported by the Company of
its year ended December 31, 2011, and of the opening balance sheet as at January 1, 2011.

The Company is continuing to assess the financial reporting impacts of the adoption of IFRS on
its financial statements. The Company does anticipate significant changes to those accounting
policies which are unique to rate regulated entities under Canadian GAAP. In particular, the
adoption of IFRS is expected to result in significant changes to the accounting of regulatory
assets and liabilities and to the capitalization and other accounting policies applicable to self
constructed property, plant and equipment. The Company also anticipates a significant increase
in disclosure resulting from the adoption of IFRS and is continuing to assess the level of
disclosure required. At this time, the impact on the Company's future financial position and
results of operations is not reasonably determinable or estimable.

4. Rate Setting

The rates of the Company's electricity distribution business are subject to regulation by the
OEB.

The Company purchases electricity from the Independent Electricity System Operator (the
IESO) at spot market or prescribed rates and charges its customers unbundled rates. The
unbundled rates include the actual cost or prescribed cost of the electricity, transmission,
wholesale market service charges and an approved rate for electricity distribution. The cost of
electricity transmission and connection charges and debt retirement charges are collected by
Brantford Power Inc. and remitted to the JESO and the Ontario Electricity Financial
Corporation (the OEFC) respectively. The Company retains the distribution charges reflected
on the customer billings. The distribution charges also incorporates, where applicable, OEB
approved rate adders or riders that are necessary to dispose of regulatory assets and liabilities.
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2010

4. Rate Setting -~ continued

The OEB has the general power to include or exclude costs, revenues, losses or gains in the
distribution rates of a specific period, resulting in a change in the timing of accounting
recognition from that which would have applied in an unregulated company. Such change in
timing gives rise to the recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities. The Company's
regulatory assets represent certain amounts receivable from customers in the future and costs
that have been deferred for accounting purposes because it is probable that they will be
recovered in future rates. In addition, the Company has recorded regulatory liabilities which
represent amounts of expenses incurred in different periods than would be the case had the
company been unregulated.

Specific regulatory assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 8.

In the absence of rate regulation, distribution revenue would have been lower by $1,707,866
(2009 - higher by $71,177), cost of power would have been lower by $3,753,601 (2009 -
$1,205,749), other income would have been lower by $16,144 (2009 - $32,301), distribution
operations and maintenance would have been lower by $46,971 (2009 higher by - $29,756),
general administration would have been higher by $68,032 (2009 - $73,097), amortization
would have been higher by $373,781 (2009 - $NIL), and interest income would have been
higher by $43,600 (2009 - $73,940). The net effect, in the absence of rate regulation, is a pre-
tax increase in net income for 2010 of $1,678,349 (2009 - $1,215,712).

The Company administers several programs through the Ontario Power Authority (OPA)
conservation project. The revenues and expenses related to these programs are not subject to
the regulation of the OEB.

On October 21, 2009 the Company filed an application for 2010 rates on the basis of the OEB's
third generation Incentive Regulation Mechanism (IRM) policy which incorporates an OEB-
approved formula that considers inflation and efficiency targets. On April 12, 2010, the OEB
released its decision. This decision included the repayment of $7,650,132 in regulatory
liabilities over a two year period. The revised rates were approved with an effective date of
May 1, 2010.

On October 29, 2010 the Company filed an application for 2011 rates also on the basis of the
OEB's third generation IRM policy. This application has proposed the repayment of
$1,192,282 in regulatory liabilities. These rates would be effective May 1, 2011. On March 28,
2011, the OEB release its decision approving the application.
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2010

S. Property, Plant and Equipment

2010 2009
Accumulated NetBook  NetBook
Cost Amortization Value Value
$ 3 $ $
Land 181,961 - 181,961 181,961
Buildings 1,163,732 147,984 1,015,748 - 1,039,022
Transformer station 4,469,541 668,124 3,801,417 3,913,156
Distribution stations 74,427 25,063 49,364 51,845
Distribution lines - overhead 27,131,163 8,506,906 18,624,257 18,337,005
Distribution lines - underground 29,972,562 7,747,169  22,225393 21,193,352
Distribution transformers 16,819,586 4,988,877 11,830,709 11,859,809
Distribution meters 2,528,139 543,299 1,984,840 4,753,694
Load contro] units 547,972 547,972 - 45,667
Vehicles 2,723,344 1,870,692 852,652 870,060
Tools and other equipment 847,106 207,065 640,041 478,901
Capital contributions (3,586,013) (530,710)  (3,055,303) (3,002,144)
Other utility plant 51,816 - 51,816 37,327
Work in progress 104,107 - 104,107 68,414

83,020,443 24722441 58,307,002 59,828,069

6. Intangible Assets

2010 2009
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value
$ $ $ $
Land rights and easements 5,968 - 5,968 5,968
Stranded meters 6,331,836 1,874,463 4,457,373 925,465
Software 196,386 112,114 84,272 123,519

6,534,190 1,986.577 4,547,613 1,054,952
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2010

7. Related Party Transactions

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Brantford Energy Corporation and Brantford
Energy Corporation is wholly owned by The Corporation of the City of Brantford (the City).
Brantford Energy Corporation also owns Brantford Hydro Inc. and Brantford Generation Inc.

The Company obtains certain administrative and management services from the City, Brantford
Energy Corporation. The Company also provides services to the City, Brantford Generation
Inc. and Brantford Hydro Inc. These services were made in the normal course of business and
have been recorded at the exchange amounts.

The Company has entered into a shared services agreement with the City, whereby the City will
provide administrative, customer care, maintenance and operational services for the Company.
The exchange amount for these services has been set out in the agreement. Total charges from
the City under this shared agreement were $8,696,419 (2009 - $8,678,167). As at December
31, 2010 the balance owing to the City for these services was $1,697,640 (2009 - $1,654,882).

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company provided electricity to the City in the
amount of $5,113,692 (2009 - $4,796,370). The Company also provided other services to the
City in the amount of $273,143 (2009 - $258,548).

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company paid property tax to the City in the
amount of $18,887 (2009 - $22,352)

The Company obtains management services from Brantford Energy Corporation. Total charges
for these services were $124,125 (2009 - $118,960). As at December 31, 2010 the balance
owing to Brantford Energy Corporation for these services was $47,533 (2009 - $26,880).

The Company charges pole rental fees to Brantford Hydro Inc. These rental fees allow fibre
optic cables to be attached to the Company's distribution assets. Total rental fees for this access
were $41,102 (2009 - $40,856).

The Company provided services to Brantford Generation Inc. related to its facilities
interconnection to Hydro One Networks Inc.'s transformer station. During 2009, the Company
paid the estimated costs for such services of $461,876. As the actual costs of such services
were below the cost estimate, the Company received a refund of $159,475 during 2010.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company provided electricity to Brantford
Generation Inc, in the amount of $48,091 (2009 - $Nil). A long term customer deposit of
$7,665 has been paid to the Company from Brantford Generation Inc.
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2010

8. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

Based on existing regulatory orders or the expectation of future regulatory orders, the Company
has recorded the following amounts, net of income tax and amortization where applicable,
which are expected to be recovered from or refunded to customers:

2010 2009
$ $

Regulatory assets
Retail Market Settlement

Retail settlement variance account - Global Adjustment 527,990 2,064,442

Retailer cost variance accounts 320,955 302,714
Other

Smart meters 3,520,157 1,158,000

Distribution revenue rate change 388,432 -

Special purpose charge 136,836 -

Other regulatory assets 152,191 74,651
Net regulatory assets 5,046,561 3,599,807
Regulatory liabilities
Retail Market Settlement

Retail settlement variance accounts 5,117,572 9,200,367
Other

Low voltage variance - 33,642

Regulatory future income tax liability 466,778 547,982
Regulatory liabilities refundable through approved rate

riders 5,425,441 1,307,070
Net regulatory liabilities 11,009,791 11,089,061

The retail settlement variance accounts represent differences between charges billed to
customers using the prescribed prices as outlined in the OEB's Retail Settlement Code and the
actual costs billed to Brantford Power Inc. by the IESO.

The retailer cost variance accounts represent differences between charges billed to retailers
using the prescribed prices as outlined in the OEB's Retail Settlement Code and the actual costs
paid by Brantford Power Inc. to operate and maintzain the systems related to the retail market.
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2010

8. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities - continued

On April 12, 2006, the OEB approved the establishment of regulatory deferral accounts for
smart meter-related expenditures and approved a monthly rate adder charge of $0.28 per
metered customer for the Company. Effective May 1, 2009, the OEB increased the monthly
adder to $1.00 per metered customer. Effective May 1, 2010, the OEB increased the monthly
adder to $2.07 per metered customer. In its 2011 application to the OEB, the Company has
applied for a monthly rate adder charge to remain at $2.07 per metered customer.

The Company has recorded a regulatory asset consisting of the net balance of capital and
operating expenditures for smart meters, less recoveries received from the rate adder. These
expenditures and recoveries will continue to be reported as regulatory assets or liabilities until
the Company applies to the OEB to redistribute the amounts to capital or operations.

The Company has recorded a regulatory liability account that relates to the expected future
electricity distribution rate reduction for customers arising from timing differences in the
recognition of future tax assets.

9. Long-Term Debt
2010 2009
$

Note payable, bearing interest at 6.25%, repayable to the

City, interest only payable annually - due February,

2011, subsequently renewed and matures February, 2016 24,189,168 24,189,168
Royal Bank, non-revolving term facility with interest at

prime repayable in quarterly instalments, due January,

2011, subsequently renewed and matures January, 2013 4,715,635 5,056,036
Royal Bank, non-revolving term facility with interest at

prime repayable in quarterly instalments, due November,

2011 798,292 907,251
Ontario Infrastructure Projects Corporation non-revolving

term facility with interest at 5.14% repayable in semi

annual instalments due December, 2032 2,268,400 2,322,570
Ontario Infrastructure Projects Corporation non-revolving

term facility with interest at 4.95% repayable in semi

annual instalments due December, 2050 4,808,821 -
Ontario Infrastructure Projects Corporation construction
advances with interest at 1.54% (2009 - 0.95%) 4,750,364 3,842,948
41,530,680 36,317,973
Less current portion 1,250,304 499,546

40,280,376 35,818,427
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2010

9. Long-Term Debt - continued

The City has an option to extend the maturity date of the promissory note for successive five
year periods. - The City also has the option to convert the principal sum outstanding into
common shares of the Company at a conversion ratio of $ 100 per common share. Interest
payable to the City of $1,511,823 (2009 - $1,511,823) was outstanding as at December 31,
2010. On February 1, 2011, the City extended the maturity date of the promissory note for a
five year period with interest only payable annually at 5.87%.

The Company entered into a swap agreement during 2006 with Royal Bank to hedge against
exposure to interest rate fluctuations. The agreement represents a notional principal amount of
$ 5,900,000. Under the terms of the agreement, the company has contracted to pay interest at a
fixed rate of 4.71% while receiving a variable rate equivalent to the one month Canadian Dollar
Offered Rate to be repriced quarterly. On January 26, 2011, the Company renewed this
agreement for a two year period.

The Company entered into a second swap agreement during 2006 with Royal Bank to hedge
against exposure to interest rate fluctuations. The agreement represents a notional principal
amount of $ 1,200,000, Under the terms of the agreement, the company has contracted to pay
interest at a fixed rate of 4.97% while receiving a variable rate equivalent to the one month
Canadian Dollar Offered Rate to be repriced quarterly.

These credit facilities are secured by general security agreement over all assets of the Company
and an assignment of related fire insurance.

Estimated principal repayment requirements are as follows:

$
2011 1,250,304
2012 479,694
2013 4,101,214
2014 - 112,710
2015 118,489

to
to
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2010

10. Employee Future Benefits

The Company acquired various life insurance, health care related and dental coverage plan
liabilities for certain retired employees of the former Hydro-Electric Commission of the City of
Brantford. Travel, dental, vision and semi-private health care coverage is continued until the
retiree reaches 65 years of age. Life insurance and extended health care coverage is continued
until the retirce's death, The Company is also obligated to provide post retirement benefits to
an active employee.

The Company measures the accrued benefit obligation for accounting purposes as of December
31 of each year. The accrued benefit obligation as at December 31, 2010 and the expense for
the period ended December 31, 2010 are based on an actuarial valuation done as at January 1,
2008.

The obligation is unfunded since no assets have been segregated and restricted to provide the
post-retirement benefits.
Significant Assumptions

The key weighted-average assumptions used by the Company for the measurement of the
benefit obligation and benefit expense are summarized as follows:

2010 2009
s $
To determine benefit obligation at end of year
Discount rate 4.5% 5.0%
Assumed long-term rate of return on assets N/A N/A
To determine benefit expense (income) for the year
Discount rate 5.0% 6.0%
Assumed long-term rate of return on assets N/A N/A
Rate of increase in future compensation N/A N/A
Health care cost trend rates at end of year
Initial rate 7.30% 8.15%
Ultimate rate 4.75% 4.75%
Year ultimate rate reached 2013 2013
Sensitivity Analysis Change in Change in
Obligation Expense
$ $
Impact of 1% increase in assumed health care trend rate 108,000 12,000
Impact of 1% decrease in assumed health care trend rate (95,000) (10,000)
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2010

10. Employee Future Benefits - continued

2010 2009
$ $

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year 1,713,447 1,528,597
Interest cost on benefit obligation 85,054 90,974
Benefits paid (24,737) (24,739)
Actuarial loss 36,680 118,615
Benefit obligation at end of year 1,810,444 1,713,447
Change in fair value of assets
Fair value of assets at beginning of year - -
Employer contributions 24,737 24,739
Benefits paid (24,737) (24,739)
Fair value of assets at end of year - -
Reconciliation of funded status to accrued benefit

Yiability
Deficit of fair value of assets over benefit obligation at end

of year 1,810,444 1,713,447
Unamortized actuarial loss (916,705) (939,082)
Accrued benefit liability at end of year 893,739 774,365
Reconciliation of accrued benefit liability
Accrued benefit liability at beginning of year 774,365 656,776
Benefit expense recognized 144,111 142,328
Benefits paid (24,737) (24,739
Accrued benefit liability at end of year 893,739 774,365
Annual benefit expense
Interest cost on benefit obligation 85,054 90,974
Actuarial gain or loss 59,087 51,354
Benefit expense recognized 144,111 142,328
Cash payments
Benefit premiums paid 86,464 85,533
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11. Contingencies and Commitments

General Liability Insurance

The Company has obtained general liability and enhanced directors and officers insurance
coverage from the Municipal Electric Association Reciprocal Insurance Exchange (The Mearie
Group) expiring January 1, 2012. The Mearie Group is an insurance reciprocal whereby all
members through the unincorporated group share risks with each other. Members of the Mearie
Group are assessed a premium deposit at policy execution. Should the group experience losses
that are in excess of the accumulated premium deposits of its members combined with reserves
and supplementary insurance, members would be assessed a supplementary or retro assessment
on a pro-rata basis for the years in which the Company was a member.

As at December 31, 2010, the Company has not been made aware of any additional
assessments. Participation in The Mearie Group covers a three year underwriting period which
expires on January 1, 2013.

Class Action

This action had been brought under Class Proceedings Act, 1992. The plaintiff class sought
restitution for amounts paid to Toronto Hydro and to other Ontario municipal electric utilities
(LDC's) who received late payment penalties which constitute interest at an effective rate in
excess of 60% per year, contrary to section 347 of the Criminal Code.

On July 22, 2010, the Ontario Superior Court of Justice approved a settlement of the Class
Action, the principal terms of which are the following:

D LDC's collectively pay $17 million in damages;
. Payment is not due until June 30, 2011; and

Smart Meter Initiative

The OEB has mandated that the Company is to bill Time of Use Prices using "Smart Meter"
electricity meters and the Provincial Meter Data Management/Repository effective July 2011.
The Company has requested an extension of the effective date to December 2011. At this time,
the OEB has not issued its decision on this proceeding.
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11. Contingencies and Commitments - continued

12.

13,

14.

The Company has installed approximately 35,255 (2009 - 6,667) Smart Meters as of the end of
2010 and anticipates having installed a total of 37,240 Smart Meters upon completion of its
mass deployment.

OEB PILs Proceeding

The OEB is conducting a review of the PILs variances accumulated in regulatory variance
accounts for the period from October 1, 2001 to April 30, 2006 for all LDCs. The current
proceeding is expected to provide direction regarding the interpretation of the rules issued by
the OEB. It is not possible at this time to determine what impacts the outcome of this
proceeding will have on the financial position of the Company.

Share Capital
Authotized
Unlimited number of common shares
2010 2009
3 $
Issued
1,001 common shares 22,437,505 22,437,505
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
2010 2009
$ $
Balance at beginning of year (342,478) (696,074)
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax {32,180) 353,596
Balance at end of year, net of tax (374,658) (342,478)

Pension Plan

The Company participates in the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System (OMERS),
a multi-employer plan, on behalf of its employee. The plan is a contributory defined benefit
pension plan. Contributions are 6.4% for employee earnings below the year's maximum
pensionable earnings and 9.7% thereafier. The contribution rates are expected to change to
7.4% for employee earnings below the year's maximum pensionable earnings and 10.7%
thereafter for 2010. During 2010, the Company expensed contributions totaling $11,554 (2009
- $13,504) made to OMERS in respect of the employer's required contributions to the plan.
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15.

16.

Electricity Distribution Service Charges

The company is licensed by the OEB to distribute electricity. As a licensed distributor, the
Company is responsible for billing customers for electricity generated by third parties and the
related costs of providing electricity service, such as transmission services and other services
provided by third parties. The Company -is required, pursuant to regulation, to remit such
amounts to these third parties, irrespective of whether the Company ultimately collects these
amounts from customers. The Company may file to recover uncollected debt retirement
charges from OEFC once each year. Otherwise, the Company is unable to recover uncollected
amounts formerly remitted to these third parties. The Company retains only its electricity
distribution service charge that is regulated by the OEB.

Electricity distribution service charges comprise:

2010 2009
$ $
Gross customer billings 102,691,543 94,755,101
Less pass through charges billed by the Company
Electricity charges paid through to generators (62,528,186) (57,566,593)
Transmission and miscellaneous charges (12,192,434 (9,884,731)
Market service charges (6,234,467) (6,087,707)
Debt retirement charges (6,442,494) (6,409,274)
Total electricity distribution service charges 15,293,962 14,806,796
Statement of Cash Flows
2010 2009
$ $
Changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable (1,329,770) (945,169)
Unbilled revenue 617,437 (1,263,432)
Inventories 48,853 47,775
Prepaid expenses (6,769) (16,749)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 874,241 535,103
Accounts payable to the City of Brantford 42,758 264,535
Due to Brantford Energy Corporation 20,653 (50,164)
Pavments in lieu of corporate income taxes 266,625 106,689

534,028 (1,321,412)
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17. Amortization

2010 2009
$ $
Amortization of capital assets ' 3,374,841 3,166,455
Amortization of capital assets charged to distribution
operations and maintenance 266,240 275,551
3,641,081 3,442,012
18. Capital Disclosures
The Company’s main objectives when managing capital are to:
o ensure ongoing access to funding fo maintain and improve the electricity
distribution system;
. ensure compliance with covenants related to its credit facilities; and
o align its capital structure with the debt to equity structure deemed by the OEB.

As at December 31, 2010, the Company's definition of capital includes shareholder's equity and
long-term debt. This definition remains unchanged from prior years. As at December 31,
2010, shareholder's equity amounts to $33,582,141 (2009 - $32,490,865) and long-term debt,
amounts to $41,530,680 (2009 - $36,317,973). The Company's capital structure as at
December 31, 2010 is 55% debt and 45% equity (2009 - 53% debt and 47% equity). There
have been no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the year.

The Company's long-term debt agreements include both financial and non-financial covenants.
As at December 31, 2010 and as at December 31, 2009, the Company was in compliance with
all covenants.
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19. Financial Instruments

All financial instruments are initially fecorded on the balance sheet at fair value except for
certain related party transactions. They are subsequently valued either at fair value or amortized
cost depending on the classification selected by the Company for the financial instrument. All
financial instruments are classified into one of the five categories: held-for-trading, loans and
receivables, other liabilities, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assets

Held-for-trading (HFT) financial instruments are financial assets and financial liabilities
typically acquired with the objective of resale or short-term buyback. The carrying amount is
recorded at fair value determined using market prices. Interest earned and gains and losses
incurred are recognized in net income. Cash and cash equivalents and special deposits are
designated as financial assets held-for-trading and are measured at fair value with changes
being recorded in net income at each period end. Derivative liabilities are designated as
financial liabilities held-for-trading and are measured at fair value with changes being recorded
in other comprehensive income at each period end.

Loans and receivables (LR) are non-derivative financial assets resulting from the delivery of
cash or other assets by a lender to a borrower in return for a promise to repay on a specified
date, or on demand, usually with interest. Loans and receivables are measured at amortized
cost. Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue are classified as loans and receivables and are
measured at fair value at inception, which due to their short-term nature, approximates
amortized cost.

Other liabilities (OL) are promises to repay on specified dates or on demand usually with
interest. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and accounts payable to the City of Brantford,
interest payable to the City of Brantford and due to affiliates are classified as other liabilities
and are measured at fair value at inception, which due to their short-term nature, approximates
amortized cost. Long-term debt and customer deposits are also classified as other liabilities.
After their initial fair value measurement, they are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method.

Held-to-maturity (HTM) financial assets have fixed or determinable payments and maturity,
and management’s intention and ability are to hold to maturity. These financial assets are
measured at amortized cost. The Company does not hold any financial assets under this
classification.

Available-for-sale (AFS) instruments are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or that are not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments or held-for-trading financial assets. Available-for-sale instruments are measured at
fair value with unrealized gains and losses recognized in OCI. The Company does not hold any
financial assets under this classification.
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19. Financial Instruments - continued

Interest Rate Risk

Interest is paid on customer deposits at a market rate reset quarterly as directed by the Ontario
Energy Board.

Two term facility loans bear interest at floating rates and thus, the carrying values approximate
fair values. However, the Company has entered into two interest rate swap transactions,
derivative instruments designated as a cash flow hedges, the effect of which is to fix the interest
rate on the first $4,724,000 term facility loan at 4.71% and the second $801,000 term facility
loan at 4.97%. The potential replacement cost to Brantford Power Inc. of the interest rate
swaps, representing estimated fair value as presented on the balance sheet, was $525,435 (2009
- $492,360), which was in the favour of Royal Bank. Net unrealized loss in fair value of
$42,910 (2009 - gain of $523,506) is presented in current year Other Comprehensive (Loss)
Income. The Company entered into these interest rate swap transactions to {ix the interest rates
over the long term and intends to hold these to maturity at which time there should be no
replacement cost. ’

Credit Risk

The Company grants credit to its customers in the normal course of business and monitors their
financial condition and reviews the credit history of new customers. The Company is currently
holding customer deposits on hand in the amount of $2,508,520 (2009 - $2,578,825) which is
reflected on the Balance Sheet. Allowances of $608,000 (2009 - $569,000) are also maintained
for potential credit losses. The Company's accounts receivable do not reflect the concentrated
risk of default from exposure to large customers. At December 31, 2010, the outstanding
amounts receivable from the largest ten customers represented $2,426,830 or 29% (2009 -
$1,599,241 or 22%) of the total outstanding accounts receivable. Management believes that it
has adequately provided for any exposure to normal customer and retailer credit risk.

Liquidity Risk
The Company's objective is to have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. The

Company monitors its cash balances and cashflows generated from operations to meet its
requirements.
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19. Financial Instruments - continued

Prudential Support

Brantford Power Inc. is required, through the Independent Electricity System Operator (IESO),
to provide security to mitigate the company's risk of default based on its expected activity in the
electricity market. The IESO could draw on this guarantee if Company fails to make a payment
required by a default notice issued by the IESO. The maximum potential payment is the face
value of the bank letter of credit. As at December 31, 2010, the Company provided prudential
support in the form of a bank letter of credit of $9,375,721 (2009 - $9,375,721).

Revolving Term Facility

As at December 31, 2010, the Company has been authorized for a revolving term facility of
$7,000,000 of which NIL had been drawn upon. The facility bears interest at prime and is
secured by a general security agreement over all assets of the Company and assignment of
related fire insurance.

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments
a) Establishing fair value

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, special deposits,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, accounts payable to the City of Brantford, interest
payable to the City of Brantford, and due to Brantford Energy Corporation approximate
theit fair values due to the immediate or short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

Fair values for other financial instruments, detailed below, have been estimated with
reference to quoted market prices for actual or similar instruments where available, except
for certain related party transactions.

Customer deposits fair value equals carrying value. Interest is paid on deposits on a
monthly basis at 2 market rate, reset quarterly, as ditected by the Ontario Energy Board.

The fixed rate long-term debt facility, maturing December 2032, funded by Ontario
Infrastructure Projects Corporation (OIPC) has an estimated fair value of $2,352,500
(carrying value - $2,268,400). The fair value was determined using the present value of the
cash flows using the quoted OIPC market rate for the debt at December 31, 2010, of 4.72%
per annum, (actual rate — 5.14% per annum). The loan is classified as an Other Liability
(OL) with no resulting adjustment to carrying value.
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19. Financial Instruments - continued

The fixed rate long-term debt facility, maturing December 2050, funded by Ontario
Infrastructure Projects Corporation (OIPC) has an estimated fair value of $4,819,900
(carrying value - $4,808,821). The fair value was determined using the present value of the
cash flows using the quoted OIPC market rate for the debt at December 31, 2010, of 4.92%
per annum, (actual rate — 4.95% per annum). The loan is classified as an Other Liability
(OL) with no resulting adjustment to carrying value.

The promissory note payable to the Corporation of the City of Brantford, classified as an
OL, is valued at face value. It is not practicable within constraints of timeliness or cost to

measure reliably the fair value of this financial liability that originated in a related party
fransaction.

Construction advances funded by the OIPC, classified as OL, are valued at face value.
Upon completion of construction the term of the loan will be 15 years.

The fair value of derivative instruments is calculated using pricing models that incorporate
current market prices and the contractual prices of the underlying instruments, the time
value of money and yield curves.

b) Fair value hierarchy

Financial instruments recorded at fair value on the Balance Sheet are classified using a fair
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 - valuation based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - valuation techniques based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (ie as prices) or indirsctly (ie
derived from prices);

Level 3 - valuation techniques using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The fair value hierarchy requires the use of observable market inputs whenever such inputs
exist. A financial instrument is classified to the Jowest level of the hierarchy for which a
significant input has been considered in measuring fair value,



Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
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19. Financial Instruments - continued

The following table presents the financial instruments recorded at fair value in the Balance

Sheet, classified using the fair value hierarchy described above:

Total financial
assets and
liabilities at fair

Level | Level2 Level3 value
$ $ $ $

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 11,180,750 - - 11,180,750

Special deposits 2,508,520 - - 2,508,520
Total financial assets 13,689,270 - - 13,689,270
Financial liabilities

Customer deposits 2,508,520 - - 2,508,520
Total financial liabilities 2,508,520 - - 2,508,520

During the year, there has been no transfer of amounts between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
financial assets or liabilities have been identified as Level 3.
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20. Payments in Lieu of Corporate Income Taxes

The Company's income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2010 consists of the

following;

Temporary differences which give rise to future income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

2010 2009
$ $
Regulatory assets and liabilities 1,658,807 2,868,201
Cumulative eligible capital 170,190 185,860
Allowance for doubtful accounts 171,760 176,390
Property, plant and equipment 1,047,872 414,362
Employee future benefits 224,150 195,170
Unrealized losses on derivative liabilities 123,750 113,020
Future income tax assets {liabilities) 3,396,529 3,953,003
Distributed as such:
Future payments in lieu of corporate income tax asset
Current 171,760 176,390
Non-current 3,224,769 3,776,613
3,396,529 3,953,003

The impact of differences between the Company's reported payments in lieu of corporate
income taxes and the expense that would otherwise result from the application of statutory rates

is as follows:

2010 2009
S $
Income tax expense at the combined basis federal and
provincial statutory tax rate - 1,192,799 984,707
Net change in regulatory assets 33,135 997,117
Capital cost allowance in excess of amortization (161,533) (127,950)
Net change in tax reserves 71,604 67,924
Tax effect of (gain) loss on sale of fixed assets (15,831) 7,580
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for income
taX purposes 754 1,044
1,120,928 1,930,422
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20. Payments in Lieu of Corporate Income Taxes - continued

The provision for PILs differs from the amount that would be recorded using the Canadian
federal and Ontario statutory income tax rates. Reconciliation between the statutory and

effective tax rates is set out below:

. 2010 2009
Rate reconciliation : $ $
Income before PILs 3,480,384 3,106,967
Consolidated Statutory Canadian federal and provincial

income tax rate 31.0 % 33.0%
Expected provision for PILs 1,078,919 1,025,299
Temporary differences 108,184 (233,339)
Net change in future tax rates 354,324 279,004
Permanent adjustments and other 65,501 (183,053)
Provision for PILs 1,606,928 887,911
Effective tax rate 46.2 % 28.6 %
Components of provision for PILs
Current tax provision 1,120,928 1,930,422
Future income tax provision 486,000 (1,042,511)

1,606,928 887,911

21. Comparative Figures

Certain prior year figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.
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April 6, 2011

The Chair and Members of the Finance Committee
Brantford Energy Corporation

Dear Members:

Report on audited annual financial statements

We have performed audits of the consolidated financial statements of Brantford Energy Corporation, the
non-consolidated financial statements of Brantford Energy Corporation, and of the financial statements of
its subsidiaries Brantford Power Inc., Brantford Hydro Inc., and Brantford Generation Inc. (“BEC” or
“the Company™) for the year ended December 31, 2010, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards (“GAAS”) and expect to issue our audit reports thereon dated April 21, 2011.

This report summarizes our findings during the audit. Our audit has been conducted in accordance with
the audit plan that was presented to the Finance Committee members at the meeting on December 2,
2010.

Subject to clearing certain outstanding matters identified in this report, we expect to be in a position to
sign our unqualified audit opinion on the financial statements, following review by the Finance
Committee and approval by the Board of Directors.

Use of our report

This report is intended solety for the information and use of the Finance Committee, management and
others within BEC and is not interded to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified
parties. Accordingly, we disclaim any responsibility to any other party who may rely oniit.

We would like to express our appreciation for the cooperation we received from the officers and
employees of BEC with whom we worked to discharge our responsibilities.

We look forward to discussing this report summarizing the cutcome of our audit with you and answering
any questions you may have.

Yours very truly,

Dolodthe ¢ Tewdhs L

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Membe; of Deloitte Touche Tohmats:
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Audit scope and findings

We have prepared the following comments to assist you in fulfilling
your oversight responsibilities of the financial reporting and disclosure
process for which management of BEC is responsible.

This report summarizes the main findings arising from our audit.

Audit findings
Audit results

Our audits of the financial statements are designed to obtain reasonable,
rather than absolute, assurance as to whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement.

There were no significant departures fromthe audit planning and risk
assessment described in the audit plan, which we presented on December
2,2010.

Status of our audit

We expect to be in a position to render our audit opinions dated April 21,
2011 on the financial statements of BEC following approval of the financial
statements by the Board of Directors and the completion of the following
outstanding procedures:

+ Receipt of signed management's representations letters

e Receipt of legal inquiry letter

« Completion of the final Partner and Engagement Quality Control reviews
+ Review of any subsequent events

Audit risks

in accordance with our audit plan, our procedures focused on the following
areas that we identified as significant areas of audit risk in the current year:

o Property, plant and equipment

o Unbilled revenuelrevenue recognition

¢ Regulatory assets

+ Consolidation process

¢ Financial instruments

« Related party transactions

o Payments in lieu of taxes (PILs)

«. Financial statement disciosures

There were no significant changes in the risks identified in our audit plan.

We have summarized the results of our audit procedures for each of these
risk areas on pages 5 and 6 of this report.
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Audit findings

Fraud and illegal acts

Based on the procedures we performed as recommended by CAS 240, The
Auditor's Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial
Statements, we are not aware of any illegal acts or fraudulent events with
respect to BEC during the year.

Significant events

As part of our audit process, we identify items that we believe are significant
in nature and should be brought to your attention. Management has
identified the significant events that could have an impact on the financial
statements and these items were subjected to our audit procedures. There
were no other significant events identified during the audit engagement that
are required to be bought to the attention of the finance committee.

Significant accounting
policies

The Company's significant accounting policies are set forth in Note 2 to the
December 31, 2010 financial statements.

We believe management’s selection of accounting policies to be appropriate
under Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (‘GAAP") and the
policies set forth in the accounting precedures manual issued by the Ontario
Energy Board. Our views on the significant quantitative and qualitative
aspects of these accounting policies are presented on page 7 of this report.

Manageinent judgment
and accounting
estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements
prepared by management and are based on management's current
judgments. These judgments are normally based on knowledge and
experience about past and current events, assumptions about future events
and interpretations of the financial reporting standards.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, management advised us that
there were no significant changes in accounting estimates or in judgments
relating to such estimates.

Our views on the significant quantitative and qualitative aspects of the
judgments and estimates made by BEC's management are presented on
page 7 of this report.

Audit adjustments and
uncorrected
misstatements

In accordance with CAS 450, we request that misstatements be corrected.
We have aggregated all uncorrected misstatements greater than the
respective thresholds:

Braniford Energy Corporation Consolidated $ 110,400
Brantford Energy Corporation Non-consolidated $ 85,000
Brantford Power Inc. $ 3,500
Brantford Hydro Inc. $ 1,900
Brantford Geieration Inc. $ 20,000

All proposed uncorrected audit adjustments were reviewed with
management and were determined by management to be immaterial,
‘ndividually and in the aggregate, to the financia! statements taken as a
whole. These misstalements are detailed in the appendices attached to the
management's representation letter in Appendix D.

Adjusted and
onadjusted disciosura
deficiencies

There were no disclosure ftems passed by us during the current engagement
and partaining to the latest period presenied, as all disciosure items detecied
in our audit have been corrected by management.
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Audit findings

independence We have developed appropriate safeguards and procedures to eliminate
threats to our independence or to reduce them to an acceptable level.

As required under GAAS, we have reported all relationships and other
relevant matters that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and confirmed our independence to the
Finance Committee for the year ended Decermber 31, 2010 in Appendix B.

Management’s A draft version of the management's representations letter o be signed by
Representations letter  management is included in Appendix C.

Management No significant items arose during the course of our audit that would require a
recommendations recommendation point.

Conclusion We intend to issue unmodified audit reports on the financial statements of

BEC for the year ended December 31, 2010 once the outstanding items
referred to above are satisfactorily completed and the financial statements
are approved by the Board of Directors.

A draft version of our Auditor's report is included in Appendix A.

Use of the work of experts
As planned, Deloitte and outside experts assisted in the audits to the extent we considered necessary:

Tax experts Helped assess the adequacy of the tax provision, regulatory tax accounts and
other related balance sheet accounts

Actuarial experts o Helped asséss'the adequacy of the deﬁnéd Eenefit obligation

Disagreements with management

In the course of our audits, we did not encounter any disagreements with management about matters that
individually or in the aggregate could be significant to the financial statements.

Consultation with other accountants

Management has informed us that BEC has not consuited with other accountants about auditing or
accounting matters.

Related party transactions
Related party transactions are disclosed in the respective financial statements.

We have not identified any related party transactions that are not in the normal course of operations and
that involve significant judgments by management concerning measurement or disclosure.

Legal and regulatory compliance

Management is responsiole for ensuring that BEC's operations are conducted in accordance with laws
and regulations. The responsibility for preventing and detecting non-compliance rests with management.

The auditor is not and cannot be held responsible for preventing non-compliance with laws and
regutations.

Our procedures did not identify any areas of material non-compliance with laws and regulations by BEC.
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Post-balance sheet events

Management is responsible for assessing subsequent events up o the date of the release of the financial
statements.

At the date of finalizing this report, we are not aware of any significant post-balance sheet events.
Management cooperation
We received complete cooperation from corporate officers, management and staff and had access to all

corporate documents and information necessary to carry out our audit,

Significant transactions inconsistent with business
We have not identified any significant transactions inconsistent with the ordinary course of business.
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Audit risks

Our audit plan identified certain areas, which we refer to as si gnificant
audit risks. There have been no changes to these risks nor have any

additional risks been identified since our previous communication. The
results of our audit work on these risks are set out below:

Significant risks

Areas of risk

Property, plant and equipment
Ensure the appropriateness of

the capitalization of costs related
to property, plant and equipment.

Qur audit response

We examined the nature of costs
capitalized to ensure that they
are appropriate and corroborate
the status of projects with
operational personnel.

Qur conclusion

The results of our audit
procedures were satisfactory.

Property, plant and equipment
Ensure the appropriateness of
the value of the generating plant.

We reviewed the recoverability of
the capital cost of the generating
plant.

The results of our audit
procedures were satisfactory.

Unbilled revenue/ revenue
recognition

Ensure appropriate treatment
under Canadian GAAP and that
estimates and judgments used
are reasonable and consistent.

We examined the December 31,

-{ 2010 unbilled revenue estimate

prepared by management to
ensure it was appropriate under
GAAP. The accounting treatment
for each major billing component
was tested for reasonableness.

The results of our audit
procedures were satisfactory.

Regulatory assets

Ensure management has
properly recorded regulatory
assets.

We examined the components of
the regulatory assets and
ensured that the accounting
treatment was appropriate under
Canadian GAAP and that the
balances are recoverable.

The results of our audit
procedures were satisfactory.

Consolidation process
Intercompany transactions are
properly identified and eliminated
for reporting purposes. Address
risks inherent in manual
processes.

We examined on a sample basis
the validity, completeness and
accuracy of the: consolidation
entries and significant inter-
company transactions. We
verified the mechanical accuracy
of the consolidation schedules.

The results of our audit
procedures were satisfactory.

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities.
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Areas of tisk

Financial instruments
Valuation of the interest rate
swaps are recorded in
accordance with Canadian
GAAP.

Our audit response *

We reviewed the mark-to-market
adjustments for appropriateness
in accordance with Canadian
GAAP and confirmed the values
with the financial institution,

Our conclusion

The results of our audit
procedures were satisfactory.

Related party transactions
Racorded in accordance with

CICA Handbook Section 3840.

We reviewed the Service Level
Agreement with the City and
assessed management's
allocation of expenses.

The results of our audit
procedures were satisfactory.

Payments in lieu of taxes
(PILs)
Recorded in accordance with

CICA Handbook Section 3465.

Income tax specialists examined
the accounting and disclosures
for current, deferred, and capital
taxes in accordance with CICA
Handbook Section 3465.

The results of our audit
procedures were satisfactory.

Financial statement
disclosures

Financial statements are
prepared and presented in
accordance with Canadian
GAAP. This includes the
appropriate adoption of new
CICA Handbook Standards.

We have reviewed and evaluated
significant accounting policies
and practices, determined their
qualitative and quantitative
impact, and reviewed these with
management where necessary.
There were no new standards
adopted in the current year.

The results of our audit
procedures were satisfactory.

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiiiated enliies.
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Appendix A —
Draft version of our consolidated
‘Auditor’s Report

"
Deloitte
® 1005 Skyview Drive
Suite 202

Burlington ON L7P §B1
Canada

Independent Auditor’s Report Tel: 905-315-6770
Fax: 905-315-6700
www.deloitte.ca

To the Board of Directors of
Brantford Energy Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Brantford Energy Corporation,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2010, and the consolidated statements
of retained earnings, operations, comprehensive income and of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controt
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, bu not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the esfectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriatensss of accounting poticies used 2nd the rezsonableress of accounting estimates made by
managemert, as weil as evaluating the overal! presentation of the consolidated financial siatements.

tember of Daloiite Touche Tchmetsy
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Significant accounting policies

Significant accounting policies are those that are most important to the
portrayal of BEC’s financial condition and the results of operations.

In the course of our audit of the financial statements, we considered the qualitative aspects of the
financial reporting process, including items that have a significant impact on the relevance, reliability,
comparability and understandability of the information included in the financial statements.

Changes in accounting policies

During the year ended December 31, 2010, there were no significant changes in previously adopted
accounting policies or their application.

Significant accounting policies

In our judgment, the significant accounting practices, selected and applied by management are, in all
material respects, acceptable under GAAP and are appropriate to the particular circumstances of BEC.

Management judgment and accounting estimates

In our judgment, the significant accounting estimates made by management are in all material respects,
free of possible management bias and of material misstatement. The disclosures in the financial
statements around estimation uncertainty are in accordance with GAAP and are appropriate to the
particular circumstances of BEC.

@ Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities. Brantford Erergy Corporation 2010 Year-end communication 7



.2

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Brantford Energy Corporation as at December 31, 2010, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

. L
D 0 'ﬁtﬂ ¢ ’f:yu,()\ﬁ? L
Chartered Accountants

Licensed Public Accountants
April 21,2011
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Appendix B — Independence letter

|3
D e I OItte Deloitte & Touche LLP
& 1005 Skyview Drive

Suite 202

Buriington ON L7P 5B1
Canada

April 6,2011 Tel: 905-315-8770
Fax: 905-315-6700
www.deloitte.ca

The Finance Committee

Brantford Energy Corporation

84 Market St

Brantford ON N3T S5SN8
Dear Board of Directors Members and Finance Committee Members:

We have been engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Brantford Energy Corporation,
the non-consolidated financial statements of Brantford Energy Corporation, and of the financial
statements of its subsidiaries Brantford Power Inc., Brantford Hydro Inc., and Brantford Generation Inc.
(the “Companies”) for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) require that we communicate in writing with
you regarding our compliance with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence as well as all
relationships and other matters between the Companies, our Firm and network firms that, in our
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. We are also required to
communicate the related safeguards that have been applied to eliminate identified threats to independence
or reduce them to an acceptable level.

In determining which relationships to report, these standards require us to consider relevant rules and
related interpretations prescribed by the appropriate provincial institute / ordre and applicable legislation,
covering such matters as:

(2) holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in a client;

(b) holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert
significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client;

(¢) personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired partners,
either directly or indirectly, with a client;

(d) economic dependence on a client; and

(e) provision of services in addition to the audit engagement.

We confirm to you that the engagement team and others in the firm as appropriate, the firm and, when
applicable, network firms have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

We have prepared the following comments to facijitate our discussion with you regarding independence
matters arising since March 26, 2010, the cate of our last letter.

Member of Deloitiz Toushe Tohmaisu
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Brantford Energy Corporation
April 6, 2011
Page 2

We are not aware of any relationships between the Companies and our Firm, including any network firms
that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on independence, that have
occurred from March 26, 2010 to April 6, 2011.

GAAS requires that we confirm our independence to those charged with governance in the context of the
Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario. Accordingly, we
hereby confirm that we are independent with respect to the Company within the meaning of the Rules of
Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario as of April 6, 2011.

This report is intended solely for the use of the Finance Committee, the board of directors, management,
and others within the Companies and should not be used for any other purposes.

We look forward to discussing with you the matters addressed in this letter at our upcoming meeting on
April 12,2011,

Yours very truly,
, Lf
Nofoctte § Towchs &
Chartered Accountants

Licensed Public Accountants
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Appendix C - Draft management’s
representations letter

April 21,2011

Deloitte & Touche LLP
1005 Skyview Dr
Burlington ON L7P SB1

Dear Sirs:
Subject: Consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2010

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit by Deloitte & Touche LLP (“Deloitte”
or *you”) of the consolidated financial statements of Brantford Energy Corporation and ifs subsidiaries
(“BEC” or “the Company™) for the year ended December 31, 2010 (the “Financial Statements”) for the
purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the Financial Statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position, resuits of operations, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
Part V Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. An item is
considered material, regardless of its monetary value, if it is probable that its omission from or
misstatement in the Financial Statements would influence the decision of a reasonable person relying on
the Financial Statements.

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities as set out in the terms of the engagement Jetter between the
Company and Deloitte dated November 12, 2010 for the preparation of the Financial Statements in
accordance with GAAP. In particular, the Financial Statements are fairly presented, in all material
respects, and present the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2010 and the results
of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with GAAP.

2. In preparing the Financial Statements in accordance with GAAP, management makes judgments and
assumptions about the future and uses estimates. The completeness and adequacy of the disclosures
related 10 estimates are in accordance with GAAP. The Company has appropriately disclosed in the
Firancial Statements the nature of measurement uncerainties that are material, including all
estimates where it is reasonably possible that the estimate will change in the near term and the effect
of the change could be material to the Financial Statements.

© Deloitte & Touche LLP ard affiliated entities. Brantford Energy Corporation 2010 Year-end communication 12



Deloitte & Touche LLP
April 21, 2011
Page 2

Significant assumptions used in making estimates are reasonable and appropriately reflect
management's intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf of the entity. The
measutement methods, including the related assumptions and models, used in determining the
estimates were appropriate, reasonable and consistently applied in accordance with GAAP and
appropriately reflect management's intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf
of the entity.

There are no changes in management’s method of determining significant estimates in the current
year.

3. With regard to the fair value measurements.and disclosures of certain assets, liabilities, and specific
components of equity, we believe that:

a. The measurement methods, including the related assumptions and models, used in determining
fair value were appropriate, reasonable and consistently applied in accordance with GAAP.

b. The completeness and adequacy of the disclosures related to fair values are in accordance with
GAAP.

¢. No events have occurred subsequent to December 31, 2010 that require adjustment to the fair
value measurements and disclosures included in the Financial Statements.

d. They appropriately reflect management's intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action
on behalf of the Company when relevant to the use of fair value measurements or disclosures.

4. All related party relationships and transactions (including associated amounts receivable and payable)
have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the Financial Statements in accordance with
the requirements of GAAP.

5. We have completed our review of events after December 31, 2010 and up to the date when the
Financial Statements were authorized for issue, April 21, 2011. All events subsequent to the date of
the Financial Statements and for which GAAP requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted
or disclosed. Accounting estimates and disclosures included in the financial statements that are
impacted by subsequent events have been appropriately adjusted.

6. The Financial Statements are free of material errors and omissions.

We believe that the effects of any uncorrected Financial Statement misstatements pertaining to the
latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the Financial
Statements taken as a whole. A list of the uncorrected misstatements aggregated by you is attached in
Appendix D.

7. Management has completed its assessment of the ability of the Company to continue as a going
concern and in making its assessment did not identify any material uncertainties related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem,
which would require disclosure in the Financial Statements. In assessing whether the going concemn
assumption is appropriate, management took into account al} available information about the future,
which is at least, but is not limited to, twelve months from the balance sheet date, their plans for
future action and the feasibility of these plans.
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
April 21, 2011
Page 3

8. We have disclosed to you all known, actual or possible litigation and claims, whether or not they
have been discussed with our lawyers, whose effects should be considered when preparing the
Financial Statements. As appropriate, these items have been disclosed and accounted for in the
Financial Statements in accordance with GAAP.

Information provided
9. We have provided you with:

2. Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the
Financial Statements, such as records, documentation and other matters;
Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and,

¢. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.

10. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

11. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the Financial Statements may
be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

12. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of
and that affects the entity and involves:

a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
¢. Others where the frand could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

13. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected frand, -
affecting the entity’s Financial Statements and al! knowledge of concerns or allegations of potential
ervors in the selection of accounting policies or the recording of transactions affecting the Company
that have been communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others,
whether written or oral.

14, We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with
laws and regulations including the Corruption of Foreign Public Officials Act or similar Acts whose
effects should be considered when preparing the Financial Statements.

We have disclosed to you management's current assessment of Brantford Power Inc.’s Affiliate
Relationship Code compliance risk related to certain terms of the Service Level Agreement between
the City of Brantford and Brantford Power Inc and the fact that the Company is currently performing
additional due diligence in this regard in order to establish what organizational changes may be
necessary to reduce any existing compliance risk. Based on this assessment, management is unaware
of any additional adjustment or disclosures required to the financial statements relating to this risk.
Management acknowledges that Deloitte wes not engaged to confirm regulatory compliance and as
such, the audit opinion attests the fair presentation of the financial statements and is not intended to
confirm compliance with regulatory matiers.
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
April 21, 2011
Page 4

15. We have disclosed to you all communications from:

a. taxation authorities concerning assessments or reassessments that could have a material effect on
the Financial Statements; and

b. regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with or potential deficiencies in, financial
reporting requirements. We are unaware of any known or probable instances of non-compliance
with the requirements of regulatory or governmental authorities, including their financial
reporting requirements.

16. We have disclosed to you any change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the current year that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting,

17. We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware, including guarantees, non-monetary
transactions, transactions for no consideration and participation in a defined benefit plan that shares
risks between group entities.

Independence matters

For purposes of paragraph 18, “Deloitte” shall mean Deloitte & Touche LLP and Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu Limited, its member firms and the affiliates of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu Limited and its member firms.

18. Prior to the Company having any substantive employment conversations with a former or current
Delojtte engagement team member the Company has held discussions with Deloitte and obtained
approval from the Finance Committee.

Selection of accounting policies and recording of transactions

19.  The Company’s accounting policies and their method of application have been applied on a basis
consistent with that of the audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2009.

Compliance with contractual agreements .

20.  We have disclosed to you, and the Company has complied with all aspects of contractual
agreements that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements in the event of non-
compliance, including all covenants, conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

Title to assets

21, The Company has satisfactory title to and contro} over all assets, and there are no liens or
encumbrances on such assets. We have disclosed to you and in the Financial Statements all assets
that have been pledged as collateral.
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
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Liabilities and contingencies

22. We have disclosed to you all liabilities, provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets,
including those associated with guarantees, whether written or oral, and they are appropriately
reflected in the Financial Statements.

Loans and receivables

23. The Company is responsible for determining and maintaining the adequacy of the allowance for
doubtful notes, loans, and accounts receivable, as well as estimates used to determine such amounts.
Management believes the allowance is adequate to absorb currently estimated bad debis in the
account balance.

Inventories

24, Provision has been made to reduce inventories to estimated net realizable value when that amount is
lower than cost. All reversals of write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realizable
value, have been recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized as an expense in
the period in which the reversal occurred. All inventories are the property of the Company and do not
include any items consigned to it, any items billed to customers, or any items for which the liability
has not been recorded.

Investments

25. With regard to the Company’s investments, we have disclosed to you any events that have occurred
and facts that have been discovered with respect to such investment that would indicate any other
than temporary impairment of the investment’s value.

Environmental liabilities/contingencies

26. We have considered the effect of environmental matters on the Company and have disclosed to you
all liabilities, provisions or contingencies arising from environmental matters. All liabilities,
provisions, contingencies and commitments arising from environmental matters, and the effect of
environmental matters on the carrying values of the relevant assets are recognized, measured and
disclosed, as appropriate, in the Financial Statements.

Employee future benefits

27. Employee future benefit costs, assets, and obligations have been properly recorded and adequately
disclosed in the Financial Statements including those arising under defined benefit and defined
contribution plans. We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure defined
benefit plan assets, liabilities and costs for financial accounting purposes are appropriate in the
circumstances.

28. We have no intention of terminating any of our pension plans or withdrawing from the multi-
employer plan, or taking any other action that could result in an effective termination or reportable
event for any of the plans. We are not aware of any occurrences that could result in the termination of
any of our pension or multi-employer plens to which we contribute.

29, We do not plan to make frequent emendments to our pension or other posiretirement benefit plans.

@ Deloitle & Touche LLP and affilialed entities. Branticrd Energy Corporation 2010 Year-eng communicalion 16



Deloitte & Touche LLP
April 21, 2011

Page 6

Long-lived assets
30. With respect to the Company’s long-lived assets, we have recognized and recorded the fair value of
all legal obligations associated with the retirement of those related assets.

Revenues

31. We have fully disclosed to you all sales terms, including all rights of return or price adjustments and
all warranty provisions.

12. All documentation related to sales transactions is contained in files which are used for accounting
purposes. We also confirm that:

a.

We are not aware of any “side agreements” with any companies that are inconsistent with the
applicable sales agreement, the customer’s purchase order, sales invoice, or any other
documentation contained in the files which are used for accounting purposes. For the purposes of
this letter, a “side agreement” is any agreement, understanding, promise, or commitment whether
written (e.g., in the form of a letter or formal agreement or in the form of any exchange of
physical or electronic communications) or oral by or on behalf of the Company (or any
subsidiary, director, employee, or agent of the Company) with a customer from whom revenue
has been recognized that is not contained in the written purchase order from the customer or sales
order confirmation and sales invoice of the Company delivered to or generated by the Company’s
Accounting and Finance Department. The definition of a side agreement is not limited by any
particular subject matter. For purposes of example only, any agreement not contained in the
written purchase order from the customer or sales order and sales invoice of the Company that
relates to return rights, acceptance rights, future pricing, payment terms, free consulting, free
maintenance, or exchange rights would be a side agreement.

We are not aware of any commitments or concessjons to a customer regarding pricing or
payment terms outside of the terms documented in the files which are used for accounting
purposes.

Various matters
33. The following have been properly recorded and, when appropriate, adequately disclosed and
presented in the Financial Statements:

economic dependence on another party;

Josses arising from sale and purchase commitments;

agreements to buy back assets previously sold;

provisions for future removal and site restoration costs;

financial instruments with significant individual or group concentration of credit risk, and related
maximum credit risk exposure;

sales with recourse provisions;

sales incentives, including cash consideration provided to customers and vendor rebates;
arrangements with financial institutions involving compensating balances or other arrangements
involving restriction on cash balances and line-of-credit or similar arrangements;
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i. allimpaired loans receivable;
j. loans that have been restructured to provide a reduction or deferral of interest or principal
payments because of borrower financial difficulties.

Financial instruments, including derivatives

34. The following have been properly recorded and, when appropriate, adequately disclosed and
presented in the Financial Statements:

a. the fair value of financial instruments;

b. the other than temporary impairment of financial assets classified as available-for-sale;

c. thereversal of any previously recorded other than temporary impairment Josses on financial
assets classified as available-for-sale; and,

d. provisions for loans receivable and held-to-maturity assets.

35, The Company has properly classified all financial instruments in accordance with CICA Handbook
Part V Section 3855, Financial Instruments—Recognition and Measurement (“Section 3855).
Specifically, all financial assets are classified as either “loans and receivables”, “held-for-trading”,
“held-to-maturity” or “available-for-sale”. In addition, there have been no reclassifications of
instruments into or out of the held-for-trading classification after the adoption of Section 3855 or, if
later, after the instrument was first recognized.

36. The Company has properly identified all financial and non-financial contracts that meet the definition
of a derivative in Section 3855. The Company has also properly identified all embedded derivatives
included in other non-derivative contracts and determined whether these embedded derivatives need
to be separately accounted for as described in Section 3855. Where a contract or group of contracts is
considered fo be held for the purpose of receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with
the entity's expected purchase, sale or usage requirements, the Company has documented the basis
for reaching this conclusion.

Variable interest entities

37. We have reviewed all financial interests and contractual arrangements to identify variable interests
we hold in VIEs as defined in Accounting Guideline 15, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities
(revised April 2007) (“AcG-15”).

38. We have considered both implicit and explicit variable interests in (a) determining whether a
potential VIE should be considered a VIE, (b) calculating the VIE's expected losses and residual
returns (based on the best inforimation available and including all reasonably possible outcomes), and
(c) determining which party, if any, is the VIE’s primary beneficiary.

39. We have identified all information about events and changes in circumstances that could potentially
cause a reconsideration about whether an entity is a VIE or whether the Company is the primary
beneficiary or has a significant variable interest in a VIE.
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40. We have provided you with all relevant information in support of our conclusions.

Yours very truly,

Brantford Energy Corporation

Ted Salisbury
Chief Executive Officer

Brian D’Amboise, CA
Chief Financial Officer

Glenda Maldonado, CMA
Senior Financial Analyst - Utilities
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Appendix D — Summary of
adjustments and uncorrected financial
statement misstatements

Audit adjustments

Correcting Entries

Opening
Retained Income
Asset Liabilities Earnings Statement
{In 000's) Dr(Cr) Dr(Cr) Dr(Cr) Dr(Cr)
Reclassification of debt - $683k due in November
2011 that was not classified as current (BEC
Consolidated and BPl) 3 - - -
Reduce current income tax provision (BPf) 90,000 - - {90,000)
Adjust future income taxes (BP1) (624,243) 437,614 - 186,629
Adjust future income taxes (BG() 64,300 - - (64,300)
Adjust future income taxes (BH1) 5,085 (5611) - 526
Impact of misstatements identified during the 2010 audit (464,858) 432,003 - 32.855
Tax effect on above items - 2 2 E
Iimpact of misstatements identified during the 2010
audit, net of tax (464,858) 432,003 - 32.855

Unadjusted differences
None ‘
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Appendix E — Communication
requirements

In our audit plan presented, we committed to communicate certain items to the Finance Committee as
specified events occur. These items are summarized below.

Required communicatjo

Our responsibilities under GAAS.

Comments

Engagement letter dated
November 12, 2010

Our audit strategy and scope, including approach to auditing
financial information of components of the group audit and our
planned involvement in work performed by component auditors.

Audit pfan presented on
December 2, 2010 was not
changed

Management judgment and accounting estimates.

Management judgment and
accounting estimates on page 7

4. Financial statement adjustmer;ts. Audit adjustments and
uncorrected misstatements -
Appendix D
5. Uncorrected misstatements. Audit adjustments and
uncorrected misstatements -
Appendix D
6. Significant accounting policies. Significant accounting policies on
page 7
7. Alternative treatments for accounting policies and practices that | Significant accounting policies on
have been discussed with management during the current audit | page 7
period.
8. Our views about significant qualitative aspects of BEC's Significant accounting policies on
accounting practices, including accounting policies, accounting page 7
estimates and financial statement disclosures. Management judgment and
accounting estimates on page 7
9. Disagreements with management. None
10. Our views about significant matters that were the subject of None
consultation with other accountants.
11. Major issues discussed with management prior to our retention. | None
12. Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit. None
13. All deficiencies in Internal Control over Financial Repoding None

(“ICFR" that existed as of the date of management's
assessment and were concluded to be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in ICFR.
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Required communication

Comments

14. Material written communicaticns between management and us. | Engagement letter dated
November 12, 2010
18. Ali relationships between BEC and us that, in our professional Independence letter ~ Appendix B
judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on independence.
16. A statement that, in our judgment, the engagement team and Independence letter - Appendix B
others in the firm as appropriate, the firm and, when applicable,
network firns have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence.
17. Wlegal or possibly illegal acts. None noted
18. Fraud or possible fraud identified through the audit process. None noted
19. Significant transactions inconsistent with ordinary business, None noted
including related party transactions.
20. Non-compliance with laws and regulations that come to the None noted
auditor's attention.
21. Limitations placed on our scope. None noted
22. Written representations the auditor is requesting. Draft management's
representations letter ~
Appendix C
23. A discussion of BEC's annual audited financial statements with | To be discussed at our meeting

the Finance Committee.

on April 12, 2011
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Brantford Power Inc. p Your delivary company

Management Report
December 31, 2011

The accompanying financial statements are the responsibility of management of Brantford Power
Inc. (the Compeny). In management's opinion, these financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Canadian gencrally accepted accounting principles. Management has selected
accounting principles and methods that are appropriate to the Company's circumstances. Financial
statements are not precise since they include certain amounts based on estimates and judgments.
Management has determined such amounts on a reasonable basis in order to ensure that the financial
statements are presented fairly, in all material respects. The notes to the financial statements and
any other supplementary information presented are consistent with that in the financial statements.

The Company maintains systems of internal accounting and administrative controls that are
designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial information is relevant, reliable and
accurate, that transactions are properly authorized and that the Company's assets are properly
accounted for and adequately safeguarded.

The financial statements have been examined by Deloitte & Touche LLP, the external auditors of
the Company. The responsibility of the external auditors is to express their opinion on whether the
financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles.

The board of directors, through the finance committee, is responsible for ensuring that management
fulfills its responsibility for financial reporting and internal control. The finance committee meets
periodically with management, as well with the external auditors to satisfy itself that each party is
properly discharging its responsibilities with respect to internal controls and financial reporting,
The finance committee also reviews the financial statements and annual report and recommends
their approval to the board of directors. Deloitte & Touche LLP has full and free access to the
finance committee, with and without the presence of management.

B

Brian D'Amboise, CA
Chief Financial Officer
March 29, 2012 March 29, 2012
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B Deloitte & Touche LLP
OI L 1005 Skyview Drive
Suite 200
Burlington ON L7P 5B1

Canada

Tel: 905-315-6770
Fax: 905-315-6700
www.dekitte.ca

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors of
Brantford Power Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Brantford Power Inc. which comprise the
balance sheet as at December 31, 2011 and the statements of operations, retained earnings,
comprehensive income and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Membre de / Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Lirited



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Brantford Power Inc. as at December 31, 201 1and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

[ 4 ‘;,,r’ cho L«Lf

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
March 29, 2012



Brantford Power Inc.
Balance Sheet

as at December 31, 2011
Assets 2011 2010
$ $
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9,200,282 11,180,750
Accounts receivable 7,373,814 8,483,553
Unbilled revenue 8,636,720 8,995,538
Inventories 718,936 819,450
Special deposits 1,155,522 1,056,193
Prepaid expenses 107,758 147,137
Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 1,262,583 584,850
Future payments in licu of corporate income taxes - note 21 178,500 171,760
28,634,115 31,439,231
Property, plant and equipment - note § 59,873,172 58,307,002
Other Assets
Regulatory assets - note 8 4,147,328 5,046,561
Long-term special deposits 918,090 1,452,327
Long-term prepaid expenses 107,859 112,793
Future payments in lieu of corporate income taxes - note 21 2,279,696 3,224,769
Intangible assets - note 6 3,479,311 4,547,613
10,932,284 14,384,063
99,439,571 104,130,296
See accompanying notes Page 4



Brantford Power Inc.

Balance Sheet
as at December 31, 2011

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity 2011 2010
3 $
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 9,357,633 10,822,994
Accounts payable to the City of Brantford - note 7 1,489,970 1,697,640
Interest payable to the City of Brantford - note 9 1,427,564 1,511,823
Due to affiliates - note 7 274,137 47,533
Current portion of customer deposits 1,155,522 1,056,193
Current portion of long-term debt - note 9 598,986 1,250,304
' 14,303,812 16,386,487
Long-term debt - note 9 40,919,451 40,280,376
Other Liabilities
Regulatory liabilities - note 8 7,329,824 11,009,791
Long-term customer deposits 918,090 1,452,327
Employee future benefits - note 10 976,579 893,739
Derivative liabilities - note 20 713,683 525,435
9,938,176 13,881,292
Contingencies and Commitments - note 11
Shareholder's Equity
Share capital - note 13 22,437,505 22,437,505
Retained Earnings 12,358,906 11,519,294
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss - note 14 (518,279) (374,658)
34,278,132 33,582,141
99,439,571 104,130,296

Signed on behalf of the Board:

Director

Director

See accompanying notes
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Brantford Power Inc.
Statement of Retained Earnings
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2011 010
$ $
Retained Earnings, Beginning of Year 11,519,294 10,395,838
Net Income 2,289,612 1,873,456
Dividends (1,450,000) (750,000)
Retained Earnings, End of Year : 12,358,906 11,519,294
See accompanying notes Page 6



Brantford Power Inc.
Statement of Operations
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2011 2010
$ $

Revenue
Electricity distribution service charges - note 16 15,158,434 15,293,962
Ontario Power Authority conservation programs 723,014 1,130,495
Specific service charges 469,500 635,867
Interest income 278,195 129,666
Other income - 332,439 285,497
16,961,582 17,475,487

Expenses
Distribution operations and maintenance 2,954,060 3,338,647
Billing and collecting 1,921,628 2,023,191
General administration 2,095,391 2,187,128
Ontario Power Authority conservation programs 735,093 926,976
Interest on long-term debt 2,159,034 2,030,478
Other financing expenses 195,748 89,606
Capital tax (1,318) 24,236
Amortization - note 18 3,842,300 3,374,841
13,901,936 13,995,103
Income before payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 3,059,646 3,480,384

Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes

Current - note 21 (258,596) 1,120,928
Future - note 21 1,028,630 486,000
770,034 1,606,928
Net income 2,289,612 1,873,456

See accompanying notes
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Brantford Power Inc.
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2011 2010
$ $
Net Income 2,289,612 1,873,456
Other comprehensive loss

Unrealized losses on derivative instruments designated as

cash flow hedges - Note 20 -(191,491) (42,910)

Future recoveries in lieu of corporate income taxes 47,870 10,730

- (143,621) (32,180)

Comprehensive Income 2,145,991 1,841,276

See accompanying notes Page 8



Brantford Power Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2011 2010
$ $
Operating activities
Net income 2,289,612 1,873,456
Items not affecting cash
Amortization - note 18 4,113,716 3,641,081
Future payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 1,028,630 486,000
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (19,025) (51,067)
Other items not affecting cash 46,873 220,957
. 7,459,806 6,170,427
Changes in non-cash working capital components - note 17 (599,969) 534,028
6,859,837 6,704,455
Investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (4,877,144) (5,847.684)
Decrease (increase) in regulatory assets 899,233 (1,446,754)
Decrease in regulatory liabilities (3,679,967) (79,270)
Decrease in special deposits ) 434,908 70,305
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 19,025 89,488
(7,203,945) (7,213,915)
Financing activities
Proceeds of issuance of long-term debt 550,000 5,700,000
Capital contributions received 265,560 196,588
Repayment of long-term debt (567,012) (499,546)
Decrease in customer deposits (434,908) (70,305)
Dividends paid (1,450,000) (750,000)
(1,636,360) 4,576,737
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,980,468) 4,067,277
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 11,180,750 7,113,473
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 9,200,282 11,180,750
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flows :
Interest received 158,760 73,961
Interest paid 2,202,707 2,020,425
Payment for income taxes 1,025,877 1,632,950

See accompanying notes
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

1.

Incorporation

On March 1, 2000, Brantford Power Inc. (the Company) was incorporated under the Business
Corporations Act (Ontario) along with its affiliate companies, Brantford Hydro Inc. and
Brantford Energy Corporation. Another affiliated company, Brantford Generation Inc., was
incorporated in 2007. The incorporations were pursuant to the provisions of the Energy
Competition Act, 1998. The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Brantford Energy
Corporation. The Company provides electricity distribution services to residents of the City of
Brantford. The operations of the company are regulated by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB).

Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and policies as set forth in the Accounting
Procedures Manual issued by the OEB under the authority of the Ontario Energy Board Act,
1998. Significant accounting policies are summarized below:

Regulation

The Company is regulated by the OEB and requires OEB approval for any distribution service
rate adjustments. The following accounting policies applicable to rate regulated operations
differ from GAAP for companies operating in an unregulated environment:

Regulatory assets and liabilities

Regulatory assets primarily represent costs that have been deferred because they are
expected to be recovered in future rates. Similarly, regulatory liabilities can arise from
differences in amounts bifled to customers under the regulated pricing mechanism and the
corresponding wholesale market cost of power incurred by the utility.

Regulatory assets and liabilities will be recognized for rate-setting and financial statement
purposes only to the extent allowed by the regulator. The Company continually assesses
the likelihood of recovery of each of its regulatory assets and continues to believe that it is
probable that the OEB will factor its regulatory assets and liabilities into the setting of
future rates. If, at some future date, the Company judges that it is no longer probable that
the OEB will include a regulatory asset or liability in future rates, the appropriate carrying
amount will be reflected in the results of operations in the period that the assessment is
made. Asset and liability balances and current year activities are detailed in Note 8.

Page 10



Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Contributions in aid of construction

Contributions in aid of construction consist of third party contributions towards the cost of
constructing company assets. Capital contributions for the year of $265,560 (2010 -
$196,588) have been recorded as an offset to capital assets. Amortization of contributed
capital is recorded at an equivalent rate to that used for amortization of the related assets.

Allowance for use of funds during construction

The company capitalizes an allowance for use of funds during construction representing the
cost of funds during the construction period. The rate used is prescribed by the OEB and
updated on a quarterly basis. The total allowance for use of funds during construction
capitalized for the year amounted to $56,469 (2010 - $63,402).

Stranded meters

As a result of the OEB's smart meter initiative, the Company has removed conventional
meters and replaced them with smart meters. The net book value of the conventional
meters removed from service prior to the end of their useful life has been classified as
stranded meters and reallocated from property, plant and equipment to intangible assets.
The OEB will allow the Company to recover the costs of these stranded meters through a
future rate application process.

Payment in lieu of income taxes

The Company is currently exempt from taxes under the Income Tax Act (Canada) and the
Ontario Corporations Tax Act. Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Company is required to
make payments in lieu of corporate taxes (PILS) to the Ontario Electricity Financial
Corporation (OEFC), beginning on October 1, 2001. These payments are recorded in
accordance with the rules for computing income and taxable capital and other relevant amounts
contained in the /ncome Tax Act (Canada) and the Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario) and modified
by the Electricity Act, 1998, and related regulations.

The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for payments in lieu of
corporate income taxes. Accordingly, future tax assets and liabilities are recognized for future
tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax rates. Future tax assets and liabilities
are measured using enacted or substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
In addition, the effect of future tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in
income in the year that includes the enactment or substantive enactment date.
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Brantford Power Inc.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure and contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year. During the years
presented, management has made a number of estimates and valuation assumptions including
allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, unbilled revenue, useful lives, certain accruals,
valuation of financial instruments including derivatives and future income tax liabilities.
Estimates are based on historical experience, current trends and various other assumptions that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from
estimates, including changes as a result of future decisions made by the OEB or the Minister of
Energy.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term investments with maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition.

Inventories

Inventories consist of repair parts, supplies and materials and are valued at the lower of cost or
net realizable value determined using a weighted average method. The Company classifies
major construction related components of its electricity distribution system to property, plant
and equipment.

Unbilled revenue

Unbilled revenue is an estimate of customers' consumption of power from the last meter
reading during the year to the balance sheet date.
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the vear ended December 31, 2011

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and removed from the accounts when disposed
or retired. Costs of assets which are pooled are removed from the accounts at the end of their
estimated average service lives. Gains or losses at retirement or disposition of such assets are
credited or charged to other income. Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful service life as follows.

Buildings a 50 years
Transformer station 40 years
Distribution stations 30 years
Distribution lines - overhead 25 years
Distribution lines - underground 25 years
Distribution transformers _ 25 years
Distribution meters 25 years
Vehicles .' 5-8 years
Tools and other equipment ‘ 5-10 years
Capital contribution 25 years

Other electric plant and work in progress are amortized when put in service.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at cost and amortized over their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. Stranded meters represent distribution meters that have been replaced with
smart meters and reallocated from property, plant and equipment. The OEB has allowed these
retired meters to remain in rate base for rate making purposes. Amortization is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful service life as follows.

Stranded meters 25 years

Software 5 years
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Long-term prepaid expenses and special deposits

Long-term prepaid expenses consist of service fees paid providing the Company with the right
to use non-owned specified tangible assets for future periods. These charges are amortized on a
straight-line basis over 10 years representing the expected benefit period.

Amounts are recorded as special deposits when cash is collected related to customer deposits
and are expected to be held for a period exceeding one year.

Revenue recognition

Distribution revenue is recorded as revenue in the period to which it relates. Distribution
revenue includes an estimated accrual for the variable component of the distribution rate based
on the electricity delivered but not yet billed to customers from the last meter reading date to
the year end.

Other revenue is recognized as services are rendered or contract milestones are achieved.

Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company reviews the valuation of long-term- assets when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the assets’ carrying value exceeds the total undiscounted cash flows
expected from their use and eventual disposition. There was no impact on the financial
statements as a result of asset impairments for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Customer deposits

Customer deposits are cash collections from customers to guarantee the payment of electricity
bills as prescribed by the OEB's Retail Settiement Code. Deposits expected to be refunded to
customers within the next fiscal period are classified as a current liability.

Employee future benefits

The Company provides post-retirement medical and life insurance benefits to eligible
employees. The cost of post-retirement medical and life insurance benefits is expensed using
the projected benefit cost method prorated on services.

The Company has adopted the corridor method of accounting for the actuarially determined
gains and losses. Cumulative gains and losses in excess of 10% of the beginning accrued
benefit obligation are amortized into expense on a straight-line basis over the expected
remaining lifetime of the inactive members receiving benefits under the plan (15 years).
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Asset retirement obligations

The Company recognizes the liability for an asset retirement that results from acquisition,
construction, development or normal operations. The liability for an asset retirement is initially
recorded at its fair value in the year in which it is incurred and when a reasonable estimate of
fair value can be made. The corresponding cost is capitalized as part of the related asset and is
amortized over the asset's useful life. In subsequent years, the liability is adjusted for changes
resulting from the passage of time and revisions to either the timing or the amount of the
original estimate of the undiscounted cash flows. Any adjustment to the liability of its fair
value as a result of the passage of time is charged to earnings.

Comprehensive Income

CICA Handbook Section 1530 requires the presentation of comprehensive income and its
components in a financial statement. Comprehensive income is composed of the Company’s net
income and other comprehensive income (OCT), which includes unrealized gains and losses on
changes in the fair value of the effective portion of cash flow hedging instruments. The
Company discloses comprehensive income in the financial statement “Statement of
Comprehensive Income”. The cumulative changes in OCI are included in Accumulated other
comprehensive income net of tax (AOCI), which is prfesented as a category of Shareholder's
equity on the Company’s Balance Sheet. :

Financial Instruments

The Corporation designates its financial instruments in one of the following five categories: (i)
held for trading (HFT); (ii) available for sale (AFS); (iii} held to maturity (HTM); (iv) loans and
receivables (LR); or (v) other liabilities (OL). All financial instruments are initially measured at
fair value. Financial instruments classified as held for trading or available for sale are
subsequently measured at fair value, with any change in fair value recognized in earnings and
other comprehensive income, respectively. All other financial instruments are subsequently
measured at amortized cost.

The Company has elected to add transaction costs related to financial instruments classified as
other than HFT to the carrying amount of the financial instrument.

The Company has elected to use settlement-date accounting for regular-way purchases and sales
of financial assets.
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Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

3. Future Changes in Accounting Framework

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

In February 2008, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) confirmed that publicly
accountable enterprises would be required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian GAAP effective
January 1, 2011. Subsequently, in September 2010, the AcSB issued an optional one year
deferral in adoption of IFRS for rate-regulated entities. The Company qualifies for this deferral
and has elected to defer adoption until January 1, 2012. The adoption date of January 1, 2012
will require the restatement, for comparative purposes, of amounts reported by the Company for
its year ended December 31, 2011, and of the opening balance sheet as at January 1, 2011.

The Company is continuing to assess the financial reporting impacts of the adoption of IFRS on
its financial statements. The Company does anticipate significant changes to those accounting
policies which are unique to rate regulated entitics under Canadian GAAP. In particular, the
adoption of IFRS is expected to result in significant changes to the accounting of regulatory
assets and liabilities and to the capitalization and other accounting policies applicable to self
constructed property, plant and equipment. The Company also anticipates a significant increase
in disclosure resulting from the adoption of IFRS and is continuing to assess the level of
disclosure required. At this time, the preliminary impact on the Company's 2011 financial
position and results of operations is expected to be a reduction of pre-tax income by
approximately $2,500,000 related to rate regulation, capitalization policy changes, useful life
changes and changes in the treatment of employee future benefits.

4. Rate Setting

The rates of the Company's electricity distribution business are subject to regulation by the
OEB. The Company purchases electricity from the Independent Electricity System Operator
(the TESO) at spot market or prescribed rates and charges its customers unbundled rates. The
unbundled rates include the actual cost or prescribed cost of the electricity, transmission,
wholesale market service charges and an approved rate for electricity distribution. The cost of
electricity transmission and connection charges and debt retirement charges are collected by
Brantford Power Inc. and remitted to the IESO and the Ontario Electricity Financial
Corporation (the OEFC) respectively. The Company retains the distribution charges reflected
on the customer billings. The distribution charges also incorporate, where applicable, OEB
approved rate adders or riders that are necessary to dispose of regulatory assets and liabilities.
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Brantford Power Inc.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

4. Rate Setting - continued

The OEB has the general power to include or exclude costs, revenues, losses or gains in the
distribution rates of a specific period, resulting in a change in the timing of accounting
recognition from that which would have applied in an unregulated company. Such change in
timing gives rise to the recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities. The Company's
regulatory assets represent certain amounts receivable from customers in the future and costs
that have been deferred for accounting purposes because it is probable that they will be
recovered in future rates. In addition, the Company has recorded regulatory liabilities which
represent amounts of expenses incurred in different periods than would be the case had the
company been unregulated. '

Specific regulatory assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 8.

In the absence of rate regulation, distribution revenue would have been lower by $3,367,713
(2010 - $1,707,866), cost of power would have been lower by $985,278 (2010 - $3,753,601),
other income would have been lower by $14,601 (2010 - $16,144), distribution operations and
maintenance would have been higher by $51,216 (2010 - lower by $46,971), general
administration would have been higher by $57,877 (2010 - $68,032), amortization would have
been higher by $315,364 (2010 - $373,781), and interest income would have been higher by
$48,937 (2010 - $43,600). The net effect, in the absence of rate regulation, is a pre-tax decrease
in net income for 2011 of $2,772,556 (2010 - increase of $1,678,349).

The Company administers several programs through’ the Ontaric Power Authority (OPA)
conservation project. The revenues and expenses related to these programs are not subject to
the regulation of the OEB.

On October 21, 2009 the Company filed an application for 2010 rates on the basis of the OEB's
third generation Incentive Regulation Mechanism (IRM) policy which incorporates an OEB-
approved formula that considers inflation and efficiency targets. On April 12, 2010, the OEB
released its decision. This decision included the repayment of $7,650,132 in regulatory
liabilities over a two year period. The revised rates were approved with an effective date of
May 1, 2010.

On October 29, 2010 the Company filed an application for 2011 rates also on the basis of the
OEB's third generation IRM policy. On March 28, 2011, the OEB released its decision. This
decision included the repayment of $1,192,282 in regulatory liabilities. The revised rates were
approved with an effective date of May 1, 2011.
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Brantford Power Inc.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

4. Rate Setting - continued

On November 10, 2011 the Company filed an application for 2012 rates also on the basis of the

OEB's third generation IRM policy.

This application has proposed the repayment of

$5,841,761 in regulatory liabilities. Included in this total is $2,021,450 in PILs that resulted
from the OEB PILs proceeding concluded during 2011. The PILs amount was previously not
reflected in the regulatory liabilities total and will reduce distribution revenue as it is returned to

the customers.

These rates would be effective May 1, 2012, The OEB has not released its

decision regarding the application.

5. Property, Plant and Equipment

2011 2010
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value
$ $ $ $
Land 181,961 - 181,961 181,961
Buildings 1,163,732 171,258 992,474 1,015,748
Transformer station 4,507,912 780,833 3,727,079 3,801,417
Distribution stations 74,427 27,544 46,883 49,364
Distribution lines - overhead 28,522,309 9,630,502 18,891,807 18,624,257
Distribution lines - underground 32,009,172 9,026,027 22,983,145 22,225,393
Distribution transformers 17,352,178 5,670,172 11,682,006 11,830,709
Distribution meters 3,988,195 1,014,467 2,973,728 1,984,840
Vehicles 3,033,111 2,142,108 891,003 852,652
Tools and other equipment 800,611 209,499 591,112 640,041
Capital contributions (3,851,573) (684,783) (3,166,790) (3,055,303)
Other utility plant 54,756 - 54,756 51,816
Work in progress 24,008 - 24,008 104,107
87,860,799 27,987,627 59,873,172 58,307,002
Intangible Assets
2011 2010
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value
$ $ $ $
Land rights and easements 5,968 - 5,968 5,968
Stranded meters 5,269,572 2,032,381 3,237,191 4,457,373
Software 435,330 199,178 236,152 84,272
5,710,870 2,231,559 3,479,311 4,547,613
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Brantford Power Inc.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

7. Related Party Transactions

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Brantford Energy Corporation and Brantford
Energy Corporation is wholly owned by The Corporation of the City of Brantford (the City).
Brantford Energy Corporation also owns Brantford Hydro Inc. and Brantford Generation Inc.

The Company obtains certain administrative and management services from the City and
Brantford Energy Corporation. The Company also provides services to the City, Brantford
Generations Inc. and Brantford Hydro Inc. These services were made in the normal course of
business and have been recorded at the exchange amounts.

The Company has entered into a shared services agreement with the City, whereby the City will
provide administrative, customer care, maintenance and operational services for the Company.
The exchange amount for these services has been set out in the agreement. Total charges from
the City under this shared agreement were $8,063,255 (2010 - $8,696,419). As at December
31, 2011 the balance owing to the City for these services was $1,489,970 (2010 - $1,697,640).

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company provided electricity to the City in the
amount of $5,109,891 (2010 - $5,113,692). The Company also provided other services to the
City in the amount of $138,410 (2010 - $273,143).

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company paid property tax to the City in the
amount of $16,868 (2010 - $18,887)

The Company obtains management services from Brantford Energy Corporation. Total charges
for these services were $151,041 (2010 - $124,125). As at December 31, 2011 the balance
owing to Brantford Energy Corporation for these services was $23,312 (2010 - $11,123).

The Company charges pole rental fees to Brantford Hydro Inc. These rental fees allow fibre
optic cables to be attached to the Company's distribution assets Total rental fees for this access
were $42,532 (2010 - $41,102).

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company provided electricity to Brantford
Generation Inc. in the amount of $104,059 (2010 - $48,091). A long term customer deposit of
$6,955 (2010 - $7,665) has been paid to the Company from Brantford Generation Inc.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company purchased electricity from Brantford
Generation Inc. in the amount of $1,641,833 (2010 - $243,060). As of December 31, 2011 the
balance owing to Brantford Generation was $192,299 (2010 - $36,410).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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8. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

Based on existing regulatory orders or the expectation of future regulatory orders, the Company
has recorded the following amounts, net of income tax and amortization where applicable,
which are expected to be recovered from or refunded to customers:

2011 2010
$ $

Regulatory assets
Retail Market Settlement

Retail settlement variance account - Global Adjustment - 527,990

Retailer cost variance accounts 339,637 320,955
Other

Smart meters 3,048,342 3,520,157

Distribution revenue rate change 527,214 388,432

Special purpose charge 19,478 136,836

Other regulatory assets 212,657 152,191
Net regulatory assets 4,147,328 5,046,561
Regulatory liabilities
Retail Market Settlement .

Retail settlement variance accounts ) 4,265,592 5,117,572

Retail settlement variance account - Global Adjustment 205,504 -
Other

Regulatory future income tax liability 509,205 466,778
Regulatory liabilities refundable through approved rate

riders 2,349,523 5,425,441
Net regulatory liabilities ’ 7,329,824 11,009,791

Retail settlement variance accounts

The retail settlement variance accounts represent differences between charges billed to
customers using the prescribed prices as outlined in the OEB's Retail Settlement Code and the
actual costs billed to Brantford Power Inc. by the IESO.

Retail cost variance accounts

The retailer cost variance accounts represent differences between charges billed to retailers
using the prescribed prices as outlined in the OEB's Retail Settlement Code and the actual costs
paid by Brantford Power Inc. to operate and maintain the systems related to the retail market.
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8. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities - continued

Smart meters

On April 12, 2006, the OEB approved the establishment of regulatory deferral accounts for
smart meter-related expenditures and approved a monthly rate adder charge of $0.28 per
metered customer for the Company. Effective May 1, 2009, the OEB increased the monthly
adder to $1.00 per metered customer. Effective May 1,2010, the OEB increased the monthly
adder to $2.07 per metered customer. Effective May 1, 2011, the OEB maintained the monthly
adder at $2.07 per metered customer. . In its 2012 application to the OEB, the Company has
requested the monthly adder be removed.

The Company has recorded a regulatory asset consisting of the net balance of capital and
operating expenditures for smart meters, less recoveries received from the rate adder. These
expenditures and recoveries will continue to be reported as regulatory assets or liabilities until
the Company applies to the OEB to redistribute the amounts to capital or operations.

Distribution revenue rate change

On February 25, 2009, Brant County Power Inc. (BCPI) filed a motion with the OEB to review
and vary the Company's 2008 Electricity Distribution Rates. BCPI disputed the rates they were
being charged as well as the date that the Company could bill retroactively. The OEB released
it decision and order related to this motion on August 10, 2010. The decision allowed the
Company to record a regulatory asset consisting of the revenue deficiency between the rates
that were approved during the 2008 cost of service application for the Company's embedded
distributor and the rates that were approved as a result of the BCPI motion.

Special purpose charge

On April 9, 2010, the OEB informed electricity distributors of a Special Purpose Charge (SPC)
assessment under Section 26.1 of the OEB Act, for the Ministry of Energy and Infrastructure
conservation and renewable energy program costs. The OEB assessed the Company the amount
of $376,534 for its apportioned share of the total provincial amount of the SPC of $53,695,000
in accordance with the rules set out in Ontario Regulation 66/10 (the SPC Regulation). In
accordance with Section 9 of the SPC Regulation, the Company was allowed to recover this
balance. The recovery was completed as at April 30, 2011. As at December 31, 2011, the
balance in the account consists of the Company’s assessment less the recoveries received from
customers.
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8. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities - continued

Regulatory future income tax liability

The Company has recorded a regulatory liability account that relates to the expected future
electricity distribution rate reduction for customers arising from timing differences in the
recognition of future tax assets.

Regulatory liabilities refundable through approved rate riders

The regulatory liabilities refundable through approved rate riders consists of balances of
regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities approved for disposition by the OEB through rate
riders. The amount is subject to carrying charges following the OEB prescribed methodology

and related rates.

Long-Term Debt

2011 2010
$ 3
Note payable, bearing interest at 5.87%, repayable to the
City, interest only payable annually - due February, 2016 24,189,168 24,189,168
Royal Bank, non-revolving term facility with interest at
prime repayable in quarterly instalments, due January,
2013 : 4,361,278 4,715,635
Royal Bank, non-revolving term facility with interest at
prime repayable in quarterly instalments, due November,
2016 683,657 798,292
Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation non-
revolving term facility with interest at 5.14% repayable
in semi annual instalments due December, 2032 2,212,664 2,268,400
Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation non-
revolving term facility with interest at 4.95% repayable
in semi annual instalments due December, 2050 4,769,966 4,808,821
Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation construction
advances with interest at 1.75% (2010 - 1.54%) 5,301,704 4,750,364
41,518,437 41,530,680
Less current portion 598,986 1,250,304
40,919,431 40,280,376
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9. Long-Term Debt - continued

The City has an option to extend the maturity date of the promissory note for successive five
year periods. The City also has the option to convert the principal sum outstanding into
common shares of the Company at a conversion ratio of $ 100 per common share. Interest
payable to the City of $1,427,564 (2010 - $1,511,823) was outstanding as at December 31,
2011.

The Company entered into a swap agreement during 2006 with Royal Bank to hedge against
exposure to interest rate fluctuations. The agreement represents a notional principal amount of
$ 5,900,000. Under the terms of the agreement, the company has contracted to pay interest at a
fixed rate of 4.71% while receiving a variable rate equivalent to the one month Canadian Dollar
Offered Rate to be repriced quarterly.

The Company entered into a second swap agreement during 2006 with Royal Bank to hedge
against exposure to interest rate fluctuations. The agreement represents a notional principal
amount of $ 1,200,000. Under the terms of the agreement, the company has contracted to pay
interest at a fixed rate of 4.97% while receiving a variable rate equivalent to the one month
Canadian Dollar Offered Rate to be repriced quarterly.

These credit facilities are secured by general security agreement over all assets of the Company
and an assignment of related fire insurance.

Estimated principal repayment requirements are as follows:

$
2012 598,986
2013 4,230,214
2014 249,710
2015 263,489
2016 24,466,732
Thereafter 11,709,306
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10. Employee Future Benefits

The Company acquired various life insurance, health care related and dental coverage plan
liabilities for certain retired employees of the former Hydro-Electric Commission of the City of
Brantford. Travel, dental, vision and semi-private health care coverage is continued until the
retiree reaches 65 years of age. Life insurance and extended health care coverage is continued
until the retiree's death. The Company is also obligated to provide post retirement benefits to
an active employee.

The Company measures the accrued benefit obligation for accounting purposes as of December
31 of each year. The accrued benefit obligation as at December 31, 2011 and the expense for
the period ended December 31, 2011 are based on an actuarial valuation done as at January 1,
2008.

The obligation is unfunded since no assets have been segregated and restricted to provide the
post-retirement benefits.
Significant Assumptions

The key weighted-average assumptions used by the Company for the measurement of the
benefit obligation and benefit expense are summarized as follows:

2011 2010
$ $
To determine benefit obligation at end of year
Discount rate 3.25% 4.5%
Assumed long-term rate of return on assets N/A N/A
To determine benefit expense (income) for the year
Discount rate 4.5% 5.0%
Assumed long-term rate of return on assets N/A N/A
Rate of increase in future compensation N/A N/A
Health care cost trend rates at end of year
Initial rate 6.45% 7.30%
Ultimate rate 4.75% 4.75%
Year ultimate rate reached 2013 2013
Sensitivity Analysis Change in Change in
Obligation Expense
$ $
Impact of 1% increase in assumed health care trend rate 119,000 13,000
Impact of 1% decrease in assumed health care trend rate (103,000) (11,000}
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10. Employee Future Benefits - continued

2011 2010
$ $
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year 1,810,444 1,713,447
Interest cost on benefit obligation 80,151 85,054
Benetfits paid (58,616) (24,737)
Actuarial (gain ) loss on accrued benefit obligation (68,747) 36,680
Benefit obligation at end of year 1,763,232 1,810,444
Change in fair value of assets
Fair value of assets at beginning of year - -
Employer contributions 38,616 24,737
Benefits paid (58,616) (24,737)
Fair value of assets at end of year - -
Reconciliation of funded status to accrued benefit
liability )
Deficit of fair value of assets over benefit obligation at end
of year - 1,763,232 1,810,444

Unamortized actuarial loss (786,653) (916,705)
Accrued benefit liability at end of vear 976,579 893,739
Reconciliation of accrued benefit liability
Accrued benefit liability at beginning of year 893,739 774,365
Benefit expense recognized 141,456 144,111
Benefits paid (58,616) (24,737)
Accrued benefit liability at end of year 976,579 893,739
Annual benefit expense
Interest cost on benefit obligation 80,151 85,054
Actuarial loss 61,305 59,057
Benefit expense recognized 141,456 144,111
Cash payments
Benefit premiums paid 91,633 86,464
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11.

12.

13.

Contingencies and Commitments

General Liability Insurance

The Company has obtained general liability and enhanced directors and officers insurance
coverage from the Municipal Electric Association Reciprocal Insurance Exchange (The Mearie
Group) expiring January 1, 2013. The Mearie Group is an insurance reciprocal whereby all
members through the unincorporated group share risks with each other. Members of the Mearie
Group are assessed a premium deposit at policy execution. Should the group experience losses
that are in excess of the accumulated premium deposits of its members combined with reserves
and supplementary insurance, members would be assessed a supplementary or retro assessment
on a pro-rata basis for the years in which the Company was a member.

As at December 31, 2011, the Company has not been made aware of any additional
assessments. Participation in The Mearie Group covers a three year underwriting period which
expires on January 1, 2013.

Smart Meter Initiative

The OEB has mandated that the Company is to bill Time of Use Prices using "Smart Meter"
electricity meters and the Provincial Meter Data Management/Repository effective July 2011.
The Company was granted an extension of the effective date to December 2011.

The Company has installed approximately 37,134 (2010 - 35,255) Smart Meters as of the end
of 2011 and anticipates having installed a total of 37,240 Smart Meters upon completion of its
mass deployment.

Subsequent Event

During December 2011, the City announced plans to restructure the Company to better meet the
Affiliate Relationship Code of the OEB. The major change relates to approximately 60 staff
members currently employed by the City becoming employees of the Company. The
restructuring will be effective April 1, 2012. At this time, the impact on the Company's future
financial position and results of operations is not reasonably determinable or estimable.

Share Capital
Authorized
Unlimited number of common shares
2011 2010
$ $
[ssued
1,001 common shares 22,437,505 22,437,505
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14. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

011 2010

$ $
Balance at beginning of year (374,658) (342,478)
QOther comprehensive loss, net of tax (143,621) {32,180)
Balance at end of year, net of tax - (518,279) (374,658)

15. Pension Plan

The Company participates in the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System (OMERS),
a multi-employer plan, on behalf of its employee. The plan is a contributory defined benefit
pension plan. Contributions are 7.4% for employee earnings below the year's maximum
pensionable earnings and 10.7% thereafter. The contribution rates are expected to change to
8.3% for employee earnings below the year's maximum pensionable earnings and 12.8%
thereafter for 2012. During 2011, the Company expensed contributions totaling $Nil (2010 -
$11,554) made to OMERS in respect of the employer's required contributions to the plan as its
employee had reached 35 years credited service in the OMERS plan.
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16. Electricity Distribution Service Charges

17.

The company is licensed by the OEB to distribute electricity. As a licensed distributor, the
Company is responsible for billing customers for electricity generated by third parties and the
related costs of providing electricity service, such as transmission services and other services
provided by third parties. The Company is required, pursuant to regulation, to remit such
amounts to these third parties, irrespective of whether the Company ultimately collects these
amounts from customers. The Company may file to recover uncollected debt retirement
charges from OEFC once each year. Otherwise, the Company is unable to recover uncotlected
amounts formerly remitted to these third parties. The Company retains only its electricity
distribution service charge that is regulated by the OEB.

Electricity distribution service charges comprise:

2011 2010
$ $
Gross customer billings 105,109,712 102,691,543

Less pass through charges billed by the Company

Electricity charges paid through to generators (66,724,020) (62,528,186)
Transmission and miscellaneous charges (10,618,115) (12,192,434)
Market service charges (6,186,857) (6,234,467)
Debt retirement charges (6,422,286) (6,442.,494)
Total electricity distribution service charges 15,158,434 15,293,962
Statement of Cash Flows
2011 2010
$ $
Changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable 1,109,739 (1,329,770)
Unbilled revenue 358,818 617,437
Inventories 100,514 48,853
Prepaid expenses 39,379 (6,769)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (1,465,361) 874,241
Accounts payable to the City of Brantford (207,670) 42,758
Interest payable to the City of Brantford (84,259) -
Due to affiliates 226,604 20,653
Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes (677,733) 266,625
(599,969) 534,028
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18.

19.

Amortization
2011 2010
$ $
Amortization of capital assets 3,842,300 3,374,841
Amortization of capital assets charged to distribution
aperations and maintenance 271,416 266,240
4,113,716 3,641,081
Capital Disclosures
The Company's main objectives when managing capital are to:
. ensure ongoing access to funding to maintain and improve the electricity
distribution system;
. ensure compliance with covenants related to its credit facilities; and
. align its capital structure with the debt to equity structure deemed by the OEB.

As at December 31, 2011, the Company's definition of capital includes shareholder's equity and
long-term debt. This definition remains unchanged from prior years. As at December 31,
2011, shareholder's equity amounts to $34,278,132 (2010 - $33,582,141) and long-term debt,
amounts to $41,518,437 (2010 - $41,530,680). The Company's capital structure as at
December 31, 2011 is 55% debt and 45% equity (2010 - 55% debt and 45% equity). There
have been no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the year.

The Company's long-term debt agreements include both financial and non-financial covenants.
As at December 31, 2011 and as at December 31, 2010, the Company was in compliance with
all covenants.
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20. Financial instruments

All financial instruments are initially recorded on the balance sheet at fair value except for
certain related party transactions. They are subsequently valued either at fair value or amortized
cost depending on the classification selected by the Company for the financial instrument. All
financial instruments are classified into one of the five categories: held-for-trading, loans and
receivables, other liabilities, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assets

Held-for-trading (HFT) financial instruments are financial assets and financial liabilities
typically acquired with the objective of resale or short-term buyback. The carrying amount is
recorded at fair value determined usig market prices. Interest earned and gains and losses
incurred are recognized in net income. Cash and cash equivalents and special deposits are
designated as financial assets held-for-trading and are measured at fair value with changes
being recorded in net income at each period end. Derivative liabilities are designated as
financial liabilities held-for-trading and are measured at fair value with changes being recorded
in other comprehensive income at each period end.

Loans and receivables (I.R) are non-derivative financial assets resulting from the delivery of
cash or other assets by a lender to a borrower in return for a promise to repay on a specified
date, or on demand, usually with interest. Loans and receivables are measured at amortized
cost. Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue are classified as loans and receivables and are
measured at fair value at inception, which due to their short-term nature, approximates
amortized cost.

Other liabilities (OL) are promises to repay on specified dates or on demand usually with
interest. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and accounts payable to the City of Brantford,
interest payable to the City of Brantford and due to affiliates are classified as other liabilities
and are measured at fair value at inception, which due to their short-term nature, approximates
amortized cost. Long-term debt and customer deposits are also classified as other liabilities.
After their initial fair value measurement, they are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. '

Held-to-maturity (HTM) financial assets have fixed or determinable payments and maturity,
and management’s intention and ability are to hold to maturity. These financial assets are
measured at amortized cost. The Company does not hold any financial assets under this
classification.

Available-for-sale (AFS) instruments are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or that are not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments or held-for-trading financial assets. Available-for-sale instruments are measured at
fair value with unrealized gains and losses recognized in OCI. The Company does not hold any
financial assets under this classification.
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20. Financial Instruments - continued

Interest Rate Risk

Interest is paid on customer deposits at a market rate reset quarterly as directed by the Ontario
Energy Board.

Two term facility loans bear interest at floating rates and thus, the carrying values approximate
fair values. However, the Company has entered into two interest rate swap transactions,
derivative instruments designated as a cash flow hedges, the effect of which is to fix the interest
rate on the first $4,369,000 term facilify loan at 4.71% and the second $686,000 term facility
loan at 4.97%. The potential replacement cost to Brantford Power Inc. of the interest rate
swaps, representing estimated fair value as presented on the balance sheet, was $713,683 (2010
- $525,435), which was in the favour of Royal Bank. Net unrealized loss in fair value of
$191,491 (2010 - $42,910) is presented in current year Other Comprehensive Loss. The
Company entered into these interest rate swap transactions to fix the interest rates over the long
term and intends to hold these to maturity at which time there should be no replacement cost.

Credit Risk

The Company grants credit to its customers in the normal course of business and monitors their
financial condition and reviews the credit history of new customers. The Company is currently
holding customer deposits on hand in the amount of $2,073,612 (2010 - $2,508,520) which is
reflected on the Balance Sheet. Customer deposits are limited to those allowed under the
OEB's Retail Settlement Code. Allowances of $680,000 (2010 - $608,000) are also maintained
for potential credit losses. The Company's accounts receivable do not reflect the concentrated
risk of default from exposure to large customers. At December 31, 2011, the outstanding
amounts receivable from the largest ten customers represented $1,923,019 or 27% (2010 -
$2,426,830 or 29%) of the total outstanding accounts receivable. Management believes that it
has adequately provided for any exposure to normal customer and retailer credit risk.

Liquidity Risk
The Company's objective is to have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. The

Company monitors its cash balances and cashflows generated from operations to meet its
requirements.
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20. Financial Instruments - continued

Prudential Support

Brantford Power Inc. is required, through the Independent Electricity System Operator (IESO),
to provide security to mitigate the company's risk of default based on its expected activity in the
clectricity market. The IESO could draw on this guarantee if Company fails to make a payment
required by a default notice issued by the IESO. The maximum potential payment is the face
value of the bank letter of credit. As at December 31, 2011, the Company provided prudential
support in the form of a bank letter of credit of $9,375,721 (2010 - $9,375,721).

Revolving Term Facility

As at December 31, 2011, the Company has been authorized for a revolving term facility of
$7,000,000 of which NIL had been drawn upon. The facility bears interest at prime and is
secured by a general security agreement over all assets of the Company and assignment of
related fire insurance.

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments
a) Establishing fair value

The catrying values of cash and cash equivalents] accounts receivable, special deposits,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, accounts payable to the City of Brantford, interest
payable to the City of Brantford, and due to Brantford Energy Corporation approximate
thetr fair values due to the immediate or short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

Fair values for other financial instruments, detailed below, have been estimated with
reference to quoted market prices for actual or s1m11ar instruments where available, except
for certain related party transactions.

Customer deposits fair value equals carrying value. Interest is paid on deposits on a
monthly basis at a market rate, reset quarterly, as directed by the Ontario Energy Board.

The fixed rate long-term debt facility, maturing December 2032, funded by the Ontario
Infrastructure and Lands Corporation (OILC) has an estimated fair value of $2,492,700
(carrying value - $2,212,664). The fair value was determined using the present value of the
cash flows using the quoted OILC market rate for the debt at December 31, 2011, of 3.78%
per annum, (actual rate — 5.14% per annum). The loan is classified as an Other Liability
(OL) with no resulting adjustment to carrying value.
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20. Financial Instruments - continued

The fixed rate long-term debt facility, maturing December 2050, funded by the OILC has
an estimated fair value of $5,442,200 (carrying value - $4,769,966). The fair value was
determined using the present value of the cash flows using the quoted OILC market rate for
the debt at December 31, 2011, of 4.00% per annum, (actual rate — 4.95% per annum). The
loan is classified as an Other Liability (OL) with no resulting adjustment to carrying value.

The promissory note payable to the Corporation of the City of Brantford, classified as an
OL, is valued at face value. It is not practicable within constraints of timeliness or cost to
measure reliably the fair value of this financial liability that originated in a related party
transaction.

Construction advances funded by the OILC, classified as OL are valued at face value.
Upon completion of construction the term of the loan will be 15 years.

The fair value of derivative instruments is calculated using pricing models that incorporate
current market prices and the contractual prices of the underlying instruments, the time
value of money and yield curves.

b) Fair value hierarchy

Financial instruments recorded at fair value on the Balance Sheet are classified using a fair
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 - valuation based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilittes;

Level 2 - valuation techniques based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level |
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (ie as prices) or indirectly (ie
derived from prices);

Level 3 - valuation techniques using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The fair value hierarchy requires the use of observable market inputs whenever such inputs
exist, A financial instrument is classified to the lowest level of the hierarchy for which a
significant input has been considered in measuring fair value.
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20. Financial Instruments - continued

The following table presents the financial instruments recorded at fair value in the Balance
Sheet, classified using the fair value hierarchy described above:

Total financial

assets and
liabilities at fair
Level 1 Level2  Level3 value
$ $ $ $
Financial Assets o
Cash and cash equivalents 9,200,282 - - 9,200,282
Special deposits 2,073,612 - - 2,073,612
Total financial assets 11,273,894 - - 11,273,894
Financial liabilities
Customer deposits 2,073,612 - - 2,073,612
Total financial Liabilities 2,073,612 - ~ 2,073,612

During the year, there has been no transfer of amounts between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
financial assets or liabilities have been identified as Level 3.

Page 34



Brantford Power Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

21.

22,

Payments in Lieu of Corporate Income Taxes

The Company's income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2011 consists of the

following:

Temporary differences which give rise to future income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

2011 2010
$ $
Regulatory assets 643,641 1,658,807
Cumulative eligible capital 156,910 170,190
Allowance for doubtful accounts 178,500 171,760
Property, plant and equipment 1,063,135 1,047,872
Employee future benefits 244,390 224,150
Unrealized losses on derivative liabilities 171,620 123,750
Future income tax assets 2,458,196 3,396,529
Distributed as such:
Future payments in lieu of corporate income tax asset
Current : 178,500 171,760
Non-current 2,279,696 3,224,769
2,458,196 3,396,529

The impact of differences between the Company's reported payments in lieu of corporate
income taxes and the expense that would otherwise result from the application of statutory rates

is as follows:

2011 2010
$ $
Income tax expense at the combined basis federal and
provincial statutory tax rate 1,003,091 1,192,799
Net change in regulatory assets 8,794 1,161,325
Capital cost allowance in excess of amortization (140,633) (779,373)
Net change in tax reserves (95,268) 47,254
Tax effect of gain on sale of fixed assets 6,373) (15,831)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for income
tax purposes 423 754
770,034 1,606,928

Comparative Figures

Certain prior year figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.
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RECONCILIATION BETWEEN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REGULATORY
ACCOUNTING

The only reconciliation required between financial statements and regulatory accounting relate to
those expenses which the Board has disallowed for Application purposes. These have been
identified in the table below. These expenses have been removed from requested OM&A
expenses for the 2013 Test Y ear in Exhibit 4 of this Application.
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Table 1.6 — OM&A Reconciliation to Audited Financial Statements

Description 2008 2009 2010 2011

OM&A as per Audited Financial

Statements 7,973,320 | 7,688,125 (7,548,966 | 6,971,079
Add Special Purpose Charge 0 0| 376,534 0
Add IESO Fees and Penalties 54,424 51,567 51,566 51,758
Add Retailer RCB Avoided cost 30 0 0 0
Less Smart Meter Amortization 0 0 373,781 315,364
Less Property Taxes 11,149 10,498 11,272 9,052
Less OPA CDM 321,479 0 0 0
Less Donations 1,150 1,125 7,075 1,450
OEB Trial Balance 7,693,996 |7,728,069 (7,584,938 |6,696,972
OM&A Contra Account Adjustment 0 0 373,781 315,364
Total OM&A Expenses 7,693,996 |7,728,069 | 7,958,719 | 7,012,336
Less Special Purpose Charge 0 0| 376,534 0
Total Recoverable OM&A Expenses |7,693,996 |7,728,069 | 7,582,185 | 7,012,336

BPI aso notes that for 2008, 2009, and 2010, it had not adopted the half year rule for
In 2011, BPI

completed an adjusting entry that recorded the cumulative difference between actual depreciation

depreciation in the year of acquisition in its audited financial statements.

expense for these three years and the amount that would have been recorded using the half year
rule. This difference was booked to depreciation expensein 2011. Asof 2011, BPI has adopted
the half year rule for depreciation in the year of acquisition. Thisis reflected in 2012 & 2013
amortization expense and related continuity schedules as found in Exhibit 2 and Exhibit 4.
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